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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The Company's investment objective 1s to maximise shareholders’ total returns by investing
in the shares and securities of property companies and property related businesses
internationally and also in investment property located in the UK

{ntroduction
The Company was formed in 1905 and has been a dedicated property investor since 1982 The Company I1s an
Investment Trust and its shares are premium listed on the London Stock Exchange

Benchmark
The benchmark 15 the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net Total Retum Index in Steriing

Investment Policy

The Company seeks to achieve its objective by investing in shares and secunties of property companies and property
related businesses on an ternational bas:s, although, with a Pan-European benchmark, the majonty of the investments
will be located in that geographical area The Company also invests in investment property, located in the UK only

Further details of the Investment Policies, the Asset Allocation Guidehnes and polces regarding the use of geanng and
denvatives are set out In the Strategic Report on pages 23 to 24 and the entire portfolio 1s shown on page 17

Investment Manager

F&C Investment Busmess Limited acts as the Company's alternative investment fund manager ("AIFM") with portfolio
management delegated to Thames Rwver Capital LLP ("the Portfolio Manager”) Marcus Phayre-Mudge has managed the
portfolio since 1 Aprnl 2011 and been part of the Fund Management team since 1997

Independent Board

The directors are independent of the Manager and meet regularly to consider investment strategy, to monitor adherence
to the stated objective and mnvestment polices and to rewew performance Detalls of how the Board operates and fulfils
its responsibilities are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 37

Performance
For the year to 31 March 2015 the net asset value total return was 28 3% against a benchmark total return of 23 3%
The share price total return was 29 5%

Over the ten year penod to 31 March 2015 the share price total return was 232 6% and the net asset value total retumn
187 9% Over the same penod the benchmark total return was 110 30

The Financial Highlights for the current year are set out opposite and Histoncal Performance can be found on page 2

Dividend
An intenm dividend of 2 95p (2014 2 85p) per share was paid on 6 January 2015 to shareholders on the register on
5 December 2014

A final dividend of 4 75p (2014 4 60p) will be paid on 4 August 2015 to shareholders on the register on 26 June
2015 The shares will be quoted ex-diwidend on 25 June 2015

Income growth Over the past ten years the annual net dwidend per share has grown by 2 7 times, equwalent to 10 5%
per annum compounded

Retail Investors advised by IFAs

The Company currently conducts its affairs so that s shares can be recommended by Independent Financial Adwsers ("IFAs™)
In the UK to ordimary retal investors in accordance with the Finanoal Conduct Authonty (“FCA”) rules in relation to non-
mainstream investment products and ntends to continue to do so The shares are excluded from the FCA's restnctions, which
apply to non-mainstream investment products, because they are shares in an authonsed investment trust

Further information

General Shareholder information and detals of how to nvest in TR Property Investment Trust plc, including an
investment through an ISA or saving scheme, can be found on pages 80 to 84 This information can also be found on
the Trust's website www trproperty com




Financial Highlights and Performance

| Year ended Year ended
L 31 March 31 March %
P 2015 2014 Change
Balance Sheet | L |
Net asset value per share o8 12p 254 94p +24 8%
Shareholders’ funds (£'000) 1,010,045 809,438 +24 8%
Shares 10 issue at the end of the penod {m) : §1v1.5 3175 +0 0%
Net debt' 128% 14 0%
Share Price k e
Share prce ' 310.50p 24750p +25 S%
Market capitalisation { v;Eg_BGmﬁ £786m +25 4%
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March o
2015 2014 Change
Revenue
Revenue earmings per share 8.89p 809p +9 9%
Net dvidend per share? 7.70p 745p +3 400

Total Return Assets and Benchmark
Benchmark performance (total return}
Net asset value total return

+233% ' +149%
+28 3% +22 4%

Share price total return +29.5% = +377%
i

Ongoing Charges® J

Excluding performance fee 076% | 0 80%

including performance fee 1.64% | 208%

Excluding performance fee and direct property costs 0.70% ' 075%

1 Net debt s the total value of laans (induding notional exposure ta CFDs) and debentures less cash as a proporuon of net asset value

2 Net dwdends per share are the dwdends In respect of the finenaal year ended 31 March 2015 An intenm dwdend of 2 95p was paid 1n January 2015 and 2 final
dradend of 4 75p will be paid w1 August 2015

3 Ongoing charges cakulated in accordance with the AIC methodology
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Historical Performance for the years ended 31 March

2005

{Restated) 2006 20610 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
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Figures from 2006 onwards have been prepared in accordance wath IFRS Figures for 2005 have been restated in accordance with IFRS All previous figures were
prepared under UK GAAP

(A) Total revenue — 1s as set out in the Group Statement of Comprehensive income prepared n accordance with IFRS
(B) The Sigma share class was launched in 2007 and Sigma shares redesignated as Ordinary shares on 17 December 2012
(C) Capital only indices These do not reflect dwvidends paid

(D) Benchmark Price only Index composite index compnsing the S&P/Citigroup European Propenty Index up te Margh 2007, the FTSE EPRA/NARET Developed Europe
Index up to March 2012, the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Net Index for the year to March 2013 and thereafter the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Index Source Thames River Capital
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Chairman’s Statement

Caroline Burton
Chairman

Introduction

Property and properiy equites had another year of strong
performance As the sector is pro-cychcal and the vast
majonty of property assets are teveraged, it performs best

n an environment of improving economic fundamentals
coupled with a low cost of borrowing This year, as we
anhapated, our portiolio’s UK equities have benefited from
rental growth spreadng beyond London and across most
property sectors At the same ttme, our Continental
European equities, particularly in the second half of the year
benefited from an acceleration in the fall n the cost of
bomowing, dnven by the ECB's programme of quantitative
easing finally actoned in January 2015 | commented in my
outlook in the Intenm Statement that the extent and focus of
any asset purchase programme was difficult to predict and
so it has proved to be The central banks appear determined
to persist with this approach and negative nominal rates on
so many sovereign bonds place us in unchartered waters
What 15 clear 15 that in this type of interest rate environment
well managed, high quahty property companies with
sustainable earmings and dvidend yields across Europe are
likely to maintain therr attractiveness to investors Indeed
many mvestors appear happy to own even those companies
waith hittle prospect of genuine undertying rental growth as
long as the curtent levels of eamings are sustainable

Our management team, whilst mamntaining their strategic
focus on markets likely to expenence rental growth, and
hence a strong relative UK btas in the portfolio, have made
matenal changes to the European portfolio in the light of
such central bank mtervention Comprehensive detail
follows n the Manager's Report,

Currency movements in the pencd have also been
dramatic with EUR weakening by over 14% aganst GBP
Whilst this 1s good news for Eurozone exports 1t had a

STRATEGIC REPORT

darmpening effect on the performance of our GBP
denominated portfolio Eurozane property stocks returned
an astonishing 40 7% in local currency which almost
halved to 23 1% n GBP terms However, if sustained, this
currency devaluation further fuels the attractiveness of real
assets in Europe for overseas investors

The Trust's size, hquidity and position as the only
Investment Trust with a mandate to invest in pan European
property companies continued to prove attractive to
investors The share price total return was broadly in lne
with the underying asset value return reflecting a very
similar discount to the net asset value at both ends of the
penod of ¢. -3% However the stock did trade at modest
premiums to net asset value for part of the penod with a
range of +2 7% to -4 1%

For the second year in a row | both report a substantial
mcrease N earnings and also highlight that the dwvidend
has not grown by the same proportion We have
expenenced hke-for-hke underying income growth but
due to nmng differences of income receipts this has been
inflated for the penod under review Full details are
contained later in the report Notwithstanding these tming
differences the Board are pleased to announce the
dwvidend mcrease which brings the Trust's record of annual
increases to 21 out of last 22 years

In the Intenm | commented that we intended to add
further to our UK physical portiolio and | am pleased to
report acquisitions 1n the year in Plymouth, Bristol and
wimbledon The sale of Park Place, Vauxhall reported at
the intenm, fits with the strategy of reducing expostire to
Central London residential markets for the time being,
whilst the sale of the Milton Keynes office to the tenant
was opportunistic at 30% ahead of book value

NAV and Share Price Performance

| am pleased to report that the NAV total return for the
year was 28 3% whilst the benchmark total retum was

23 3% The share price total return was even greater at
29 5% reflecting the narrowang of the discount mentioned
in the Introduction

More detaill and commentary on performance 15 set out In
the Manager's Report

Revenue Results
At 8 89p (2014 8 (39p) the revenue return 1s almost 10%
ahead of the revenue return for the previous year

As pointed out in the Intenm Report, a number of events
which had already occurred in the first half of the financial

TR Preperny mvesamen Trust 3
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Chairman’s Statement coninved

' Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased) -
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year, together with further one-off situations anbcipated in
the second half resulted in earmngs which are ahead of the
expectation at the outset of the year Without these one-off
items, earmings would have been 764p

Dividend

The Board 15 proposing a final dwidend of 4 75p, 3 3%
ahead of the final dwvidend for the prior year and bringing
the total dwidend for the year to 770p, an mcrease of

3 495 over the 745p paid last year

Revenue Outlook

Once agan we are hyghhghting that one-off events and
changes have nflated the earmings in the current year
Underlying eamings are growing modestly but our
development at the Colonnades 1s underway and this wall
result in a fall in iIncome from our direct property assets for
the remamder of the 2015/16 financial year In addian, the
deprecaton of the Euro would reduce our earmings in Steding

We therefore continue to express caution and expect a fall
in earnings for the 2015/16 financal year

Reflecting the one off nature underlying the current year's
increase N earnings, the payout ratio for the dividend 1s
around 87% Although we anucipate a fall in income for
the forthcoming financial year, we still expect to grow the
dmvdend The Company has healthy revenue reserves, and
provicing the Board can see sustainability in the longer
term, we will not hesttate to utilise the reserves to
supplement a fall in revenue in the short term

4 TR Propesy ~ 2vmen Taut

Net Debt and Gearing

Net debt throughout the year has remaned broadly in the
14 0% to 15 0% range, ending ihe year marginally lower
at 12 8% These figures include the impact of the CFD
exposure, around half of the geanng at the year-end was
achieved through the CFD positions

Currencies

Currency movements have been significant over the
penod We have continued to use FX forward contracts

to mamntain the currency exposure of our Balance Sheet
broadly in hne with the benchmark. The resulting exposures
are set out in Note 11 to the Financial Statements

Discount and Share Repurchases

| have already commented on the discount in my
opening remarks There were no share repurchases 1n
the period Our Portfolio Manager continues to be tasked
with investor communication and our dedicated website
(www trproperty com) provides current and background
data on the Trust, including a monthly commentary

The Company 15 offered as part of the F&C savings plans
and our Regsstrars, Computershare, offer dealing options for
certified holders and a Dvidend Rewnvestment Plan (DRIP)
option for those on the marn register Further details can be
found on pages 80 to 83

The Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive
The Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (AlFMD)
came Inta effect on 22 July 2014 This necessitated the
appointment of an FCA regulated Altemative lrwestment
Fund Manager (AIFM) as investment manager F&C




Chairma n's Statement wninved

Investment Business Limited was appointed as Investment
Manager with effect from 17 July 2014 with portfolio
management delegated to the former Investrment Manager,
Thames River Capital LLP There 1s no change in the way in
which the Fund 1s managed, or of the managerment team

In addition BNP Panbas Secunties Services have been
appointed to provide Depository services to the Fund
(another AIFMD requirement) alongside the existing
Custody arrangements This 15 a new senice and carnes

an annual fee which 1s tiered according to the assets under
management. Based on the year end positton this equates
to a fee of 0 01% per annum

Investment Management Fee Review

The base element of the Investment Management Fee is
subject to an annual review As part of that review at the
end of March the following changes have been made with
effect from 1st Apnl 2015

Histoncally, @ number of third party costs have been
incduded n the Investment Management fee The Board
decded that as most of these do not generally form part
of the Investment Management Fee of other investment
trusts, these should be charged directly to the Company
by the providers of these services and separately disclosed
to ensure that the arrangements are fully transparent

The Base Investment Management Fee consists of a core
fixed element and a smaller vanable element. The fixed
element of the base fee has not increased for the last 4
years For the year to March 2016 an increase of £130,000
has been agreed on a like for hke basis after deducting the
third party costs to be billed directly as outlined above, this
15 an increase of 400 Since the last fixed fee increase four
years ago Shareholders’ Funds have increased by over 50%

The fina! change is that the cap on the Performance Fee
has been reduced from 2% to 1 5% of NAV Full details
are set out i the Directors” Report on page 30

Awards

The Board Is pleased to report that the Company has
been named Best Alternative Investment Trust in the
“What Investment” Investment Trust Awards 2014

Outlook

In fast year's Outlook | stated that the building blocks for
continuing performance from this sector were finmly in place
In certain areas of our markets The improving economtc
fundamentals n these regions have indeed translated into
tenant demand and rental growth, in turn augmenting
further investor appetite This has been particularly the case
in the UK together with core aities in Germany and Sweden

STRATEGIC REPORT

With property retums increasingly being dnven by property
fundamentals, mare investors in more markets are
antcipating rental growth and treating acquisitons as growth
assets As | stated in my mtroduction property benefits from
low Iinterest rates and whilst we may well see the beginning
of a rate tighterung cycle in the UK in the next twelve
months, rates in their histoncal context wll sull be low

The stark differences between the UK's GDP forecasts and
those of the Eurozone set out as recently as in last
November's Intenm Report look set to fade, potentially
faster than anticipated, as currency depreaiation and
determined unorthodox monetary stmull impact across
Continental Europe Our concerns focus on asset pnang

as the capital flood into Eurapean property and property
equities has resulted n substantal price appreciation

Our Portfolio Manager remains focused on property market
fundamentals and whilst they have responded appropniately
to this year's central bank intervention, such rapid price
appreciation merely strengthens their conwiction that 1t 15
only rental growth which will support pricing in the medium
term, and gves them concern that some compantes may
find 1t difficult to support current valuations

Whilst rental growth may take some time to appear more
broadly across markets, investors should take real
encouragement from two witally important charactenstics

of this current environment — the source of capital being
deployed and the lack of speculative development, The
appreciation n asset prices this year has not been driven by
nsing levels of debt, but by equity investors seeking income
and foreign nvestors buying Euro denominated assets
Listed property companies across Europe (with the
exception of Sweden) are not increasing their debt levels
even as asset values nse We expect them to continue to
refinance, taking full advantage of competitive pnang, but
the majonty have hopefully learnt some lessons from 2008

Income producing assets have appreciated far more than
development opportuniies Speculative finance 15 stll a rare
commodity The lack of this type of finance naturafly restncts
development and reinforces our view that current asset pnang
whilst shamply up from a year ago 1s sustanable We expect
this nsk aversion towards non income produang assets to
continue and for this development cyde to remain somewhat
muted, and the Company will be posibtoned accordingly

Further purchases of direct holdings of UK property will be

made if the nght investments are found As usual,
opportunities are beng actively sought

Caroline Burton -
Chairman
9 June 2015

TR Property lrwestment Trust 5
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Manager’s Report

Marcus Phayre-Mudge MRICS
Fund Manager
9 June 2015

Performance

The Net Asset Value total return of +28 3% was ahead of
the benchmark total return of +23 3% This 15 the third
year in a row 1 which the NAV has nisen more than 20%,
a single statistic iliustrating the demand for and ongoing
recovery of pan-European property equities and the
underlying real estate markets In the same ven as last
year, the benchmark shghtly outperformed the broader
European equity markets where the EuroStoxx 600 Net
Index (n EUR) rose +22 1% Most of this performance
was in the second half of the financial year and
particularly in the last quarter (Q1 2015} At the interim
stage, NAV growth was +4 5% and whilst that was &
respectable half year performance, 1in excess of the

10 year average, it was put firmly in the shade by the
tremendous growth in the second half, fuelled initially by
speculation around the probability of an £ECB 'quantitative
easing ("QE™) programme and from January 2015
onwards, by the reality of it

Whilst in danger of repeating comments made in last year's
Report, levered asset dasses such as property equities are
clear beneficianes of monetary stimul Althaugh Draghi's
announcement of the €60bn per month bond buying
programme was increasingly well flagged, what was not
necessanly expected by the market was the open-ended
nature of it Much like his May 2012 comment of °  doing
whatever it takes ' In the depths of the previous Euro ¢nsis,
he has made it clear that this programme could run
beyond September 2016 if deemed necessary

The ECB has been aided in its quest to stimulate the
Eurozone by the steady depreciation of its currency and

a review of performance would be incomplete without
highlighting what has been a dramatic pernod for
currencies Over the twelve months under review EUR
weakened against GBP by 14 5% and against the USD by
22 1% This has been very positive for European exports
and for overseas investors buying fixed assets such as

[ TP Propert twestment Trust

commercial property The Eurozone component of our
benchmark returned +23 1% when wiewed 1n GBP,
broadly in ine with the non-Eure countries’ performance
over the year However when viewed in EUR terms the
total returmn was an astorishing +40 7% To further
ilustrate the overwhelming impact of the macro monetary
stimulus, the performance of the Eurozone property
stocks (in local currency) from mid-October (about the
time investors began to firmly price In the expectation of
QE) to 31 March was +31 1% Another side effect of the
ECB's policy was the decision by the Swiss National Bank
that they did not wish to defend the Euro/Swiss Franc
peg if EUR was going to weaken substantally On

15 January 2015, the SNB announced the removal of the
peg and EUR fell aganst the Swiss Franc by 13% on the
day | will expand on how our portfolio positioning in
Switzerland responded to this later in the report

Bond yields continued to fall in response to the central bank's
behaviour, the yield on the 10yr Bund tightened from 1 6%
on 31 March 2014 down to 0 2% 12 months later The nsk
free rate utlised in calculating the 'nisk prermia’ apphed in the
valuation of nsk assets continues to fall and this dnves up
prces A consequence of such broad revaluation has been
the lack of dispersion of retums amongst certain groups of
stocks, this will be examined later in the Report.

In the Intenm Report | stated that our focus remained

on seeking out those businesses which were likely to

be early beneficianes of rental growth However, the
response of asset pnces to the ECB's programme
encouraged us to maintain exposure across the Eurozone
even though rental growth remamns anaemic in most
markets The portfolio remained overweight the UK,
Germany and Sweden throughout the year German
property stocks were the strongest performing national
group (+35 2% n CBP) combining the benefits of faling
cost of debt leading to asset value appreciation with real
rental growth as economic conditions improved




Manager's Report coninued

Property Investment Markets

| reported last year that we were seemg significant
evidence of increasing demand into regional property
with buyers moving beyond the strongest, dominant
commercial locations At the half year we reported that
the gap between prnime and secondary yields in the UK
was tightening faster than expected and the IPD measure
of the ratio between the top and bottom yield quartile
which began narrowing from its widest in Apnl 2013 has
accelerated over the last 12 months CBRE report that
outside of London and the South East, office investment
actmvity reached £3 9bn in 2014, almost double the

£2 2bn 1in 2013 Weight of money into the sector has
driven this search for assets nationwide Between July and
December 2014, £1 5bn of investment flowed into open-
ended UK retail funds CBRE estimate that 60% of all
major aty centre investment (ex-London) was domestic
institutional buyers utiising modest or zero debt

UK commercial property transactional volumes reached
£596bn in 2014, up from £44 9bn 1n 2013 and
compares to the record year of 2006 at £61 7bn

The equivalent yield on the IPD All Property Index has
dropped from 75% to 6 4% in 2 years, fueiling capital
growth of 19 3%

Last year } commented that this huge valuation shift and
increase In transactional volumes had been LK focused in
2013 This was no longer the case in 2014, transactional
volumes have leaped n all sectors and in all European
countnes with the exception of Poland and Russia Taking
the retail sector as just one example, pan European
volumes reached EUR 52bn, a nise of 24% on 2013

The UK was predictably busy (+25%) but France
(+72%) and Spain {(+96%) reflected the renewed
liquidity and demand for property Spain was clearly
coming off a low base but it reflects mvestors’ desire

to participate in the nascent recovery in that market

With bond yields tumbling everywhere, penpheral
European nwvestment markets have become very popular
with mvestors hoping to capture the 'yield compression’
as increasing investment demand dnves up prices, thus
compressing yields, even if the underlying rental markets
are stili some way from equiibnum The Spanish 10y
sovereign bond yield dropped from 3 2% in March 2014
to 1 200, twelve months later This dramatic lowenng of
the nsk free rate has impacted pnong particulady in pnme
office assets in Madnd and Barcelona as well as amongst

STRATEGIC REPORT

dominant retail centres The best perforrming penpheral
market was Dubhn, a physically smal! investment market
which 1s seeing strong underlying rental recovery — a
combination of features which has dniven pnme yields
down 200bps In 18 months amidst predictions of new
record rents of €60 per sq ftin 2016

Offices

London continues to extibit the tnumwirate of rental

grawth dnvers - lack of new supply, accelerating take-up !
(particularly pre-lets) and alternative use demand for

existing space | have written extensively over the last

three years on the positive supply/demand dynarmics in

both London's office and retall markets Not only have we

witnessed these strengthening market conditions but we

have had the vehicles through which to access the

market Alongside the UK's two largest property \
comparnies {which each hold 50%+ of their assets and
the bulk of ther development pipeline in the capital) we
are fortunate to have a further half dozen smalier, more
nimble, manufacturers of retum and 1t 1s one of those
CEQs who recently described the office leasing market ‘as
the best I've seen in 30 years’ City of London take up at '
over 8 million sq ft was a record year, whiist the West End
at over 4 million sq ft was second only to 2007 Vacancy
at 76% and 3 4% respectively still masks a severe
shortage of Crade A space, particularly in the West End
Record rents are being set In many of the emerging
locations north and east of the City and areas such as
Kings Cross and SE1 are reinvigorated and vibrant
However yields are at record lows and rental growth will
need to be sustaned n order to maintain this level of
nvestor appetite The supply response will inewitably
armve but our forecasts predict that this will still be below
the long term average in the core markets n which our
preferred stocks are focused Employment growth 1s the
dniver and the increasing population brings particular
sociat, housing and infrastructure 1ssues which could
prove restrictive We remain overweight Great Portland
Estates, Derwent London, Shaitesbury and CLS whilst
retaning a market weight in Workspace

Pans rermamns the Company's second largest geographical
investment and we continue to focus our exposure on the
oty centre rather than the wider lie de France (Greater
Pans) region The vacancy figures explain our rejuctance to
increase exposure Vacancy across Greater Pans at the end
of 2014 stood at 74%, a tota! of 5 million sq m, the same

TR Property investment Trust 7




STRATEGIC REPORT

Manager's Report contnued

as 2013, whilst take up rose 13% to 2 1 milhlon sq m,
which was matched by growth in new supply The 10
year average 15 2 3 milion sq m per annum Vacancy rates
range from 16% in the Pen-Defense area {west of La
Defense) to 5% n Pans Inner City Our largest Pans
investment 15 Terrets which owns assets in the core CBD
Looking forward, the situation is at best described as stable
with speculative supply at a 10 year low and French
service sector employment surpnisingly resilient, showing

a small net mcrease in 2014

Sweden's economy continues to iImprove with GDP
growth expectations greater than Continental Europe,
asded by a depreciating currency (The Swedish Krone
was down 18 6% against GBP in the last 12 months)
and a strong banking sector lending to both business and
consumer Population growth and stable employment has
dnven rental values in both Stockholm and Gothenburg
up 5% this year Not on a par with London but
significantly ahead of most European cities

Whilst Germany has been the greatest beneficiary of
the weakening EUR, the fortunes of the office markets
of its 6 largest cities have been more mixed Frankfurt,
the largest, continues to suffer from oversupply whilst
Berlin, Hamburg and in particular Munich showing
renewed equilibrium between landliord and tenant

We have increased our exposure to Alstria, the largest
pure German office play VIB Vermoegen remains a key
holding providing a pure play on Bavana, the strongest
performing region in Germany

Amongst the peripheral markets | have already touched
on Dublin (our exposure has been through Green Reit
+36 8% over the year) and rents in central Madnd,
Barcelona and Milan are showing signs of stabilising
amidst early indications of occupancy growth

Outside of these dominant cites, the only regional office
markets which are expenencing renewed take up and a
posttive impact on rents are n the UK Overall M25 office
vacancy has dropped from 16% to 13% with take up of
over 4m sq ft n 2014, ahead of the long run average
Again within that broad region-wide statistic there are
many hot spots of much lower vacancy and we maintain
our exposure to the Thames Valley through McKay
Securities Further away from London, the largest regional
cittes are also expenencing real rental growth for the first
time since 2007 Office rents for the 9 biggest aties
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outside London grew by 5 8% in 2014 and the shortage
of space 15 only set to continue this trend

Retail

Last year | highlighted the ongoing ‘structural seismic
shifts’ at work in this market as retailers and landlords
contmue to grapple with amni-channel retaiing and seek
to nght size their physical presence The UK remains the
most advanced in this evolution with the combimation of
high per capita spend, population density and digital
penetration prowviding retailers and (some) landlords with
critical data analytics on the rapidly changing customer
habrits Several themes which | have highlighted in recent
years have evolved further Supermarket operators remain
in the forefront of investor concems, the disruptive
technology of online shopping and home delvery
coupled with a good old fashioned prce war from ever
strengthenng discounters has resulted in shrinking
portfolios and falling rents Not a sector we want exposure
to The opposite applies to oty centre convenience stores
where we see larger operators captuning market share
and responding to our changing food shopping habits —
fresher food and smaller basket sizes but bought more
often This 1s a hard sub-sector to get access to but we
have significant exposure through our redevelopment
{and near doubling i size) of our Wartrose store In
Bayswater

Two other themes continue to resonate With consumers
making fewer but fonger trps and demanding a wide
cross-section of companson shopping we have
mantained our expasure to the largest centres where we
expect rents ta recover first Given the Eurozone's woes,
it may appear counterintuitive when | state that our focus
has been on Continental retail businesses such as Unibail
and Klepierre rather than the UK names This Is pnmarily
a function of rent sustainability and affordability Wage
inflation and spending power 1s defimtely improving faster
i the UK than on the Continent (ex Germany) and whilst
we expect this to feed through nto retaillers’ figures we
remain pessimistic about UK landiords being able to
share in this Improving situation With the 5 yearly
upward-only rent review cycle many retail landlords
continue to have over rented units in their malls Intu’s
like for like rental income fell -3 2% for the year to
December 2014

Reflecting on affordability, we have increased our
exposure to a particular segment of the ‘squeezed middle’
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of the retail buiit environment This euphemism refers

to all sub regional centres which have (and may well
continue to) suffer from the challenges of omni-channel
retabng Rents and rental values have fallen preciptously
over the last 7 years and this sector has been shunned
by investors, resulting in appropnate valuation levels
However in many cases they are a dominant part of the
local infrastructure and retailers are happy to trade from
these centres if the rent 15 affordable and the
management of the centres competent We have
increased our exposure to three specalists in this market,
NewRiver Retall and Capital & Regional in the UK and
Meraalys in France All three are developing sustanable
earnings and dividend yields over 5%

The final theme within retail has been the growth in rents
In prime European city centres in 2013 the CBRE
European Prme High Street Rent Index rose 6 2%, but
softened in 2014 to a still healthy 2 4% Dominant city
centres, particularly those with high tounst footfall
continue to see buoyant demand and rental growth
Capital and Counties, the major landowner in Covent
Garden has generated a 32% ncrease in rental values
over the last 3 years

Distribution and Industrial

According to IPD, this sector has the second highest total
return in 2014 beaten only by Central London offices
Traditionally this 1s the asset class where rents respond
{astest to economic growth but where the supply
response 15 also the quickest The IPD Industnal sub-sector
rutial yield tightened by 71bps from March 2014 to March
2015 resulting i a total return of 22 7% The distnbution
sector has been a huge beneficiary of the supply chain
evaolution expenenced by their retailer customer base
Forrester, a retail consultancy, estmate that pan European
online retaihing will double between 2014 and 2018 from
€81bn to €190bn All of these goods pass through a
distnbution chain direct to the consurmer rather than the
traditional destination of erther the shopping centre or high
stieet retail unit The logistics network 1s undergoing the
same seismic shifts as the retallng environment and
Investors are keen to own the sector In the UK, logstics
mvestment tumover rose +54% to £4 2bn whilst on the
Continent it rose +29% to €30bn

Industnal rents have begun to see growth particulary in the
South East of the UK with Segro reporting 3 2% ERV growth
for 2014 whilst their Northem European assets reported
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-0 8% reflecang the spare capaaty in core European markets
and the lack of demand pressure to drive rents Hansteen's
assets 1 the Low Countnes and Genmany saw vacancy
reduce from 16 2% to 14 8% over 2014 However, this
year-end figure does also reflect the acquisition of a large
Dutch portfalio with lower vacancy Adjusting for this the
reduction n vacancy over the year was modest,

CBRE's EMEA Industnal Rent Index rose just 0 8% in
2014 but with the strongest gains in the UK, Germany
and lreland

Residential

This sector has continued to grow In importance within
the portfolio The combination of structural undersupply,
uitralow interest rates and renewed wage growth in our
preferred markets has led to increased exposure in the
UK, Germany and Sweden In both Germany and Sweden
our focus remains on the pnvate rented sector as
opposed to the development driven businesses in the

UK Stockholm apartment values rose +15% in 2014 and
were up 93% in Q1 2015 an astonishing acceleration
reflecting both the undersupply in a aity whose population
1s growng fast but also the availability and cost of
mortgages Our exposure 1s pnmanly through Wallenstamn,
Baider and D Camegie This last company raised just SEK
600m (£50m) n Apn! 2014 and has nsen 48% since
then It joins a long list of smaller businesses that we
believe occupy particular niche markets In Germany,
where rents are ultimately controlled through the
Meitspeigel ‘rent table’, we have continued to see upward
pressure as demand continues to outstrip supply The
companes we invest in have wirtually no vacancy Once
again, rental growth varies hugely across the country with
Deutsche Wohnen's Berlin apartments (70% of its assets)
recording average growth of 2 5% 2014 was another
year of consolidation with Deutsche Annington acquinng
Gagfah The combined entity has 230,000 apartments
and a market cap of €11bn The pnvate rental sector 1
big business i Germany and econormies of scale are
critical n growing eamings

The UK market has not been such a one way street The
Bank of England's morigage lending review has certainly
impacted larger mortgages and higher loan-to-values as
well as slowing the pace of transactions as mortgagors
become increasingly ngorous in their assessment of
borrowers” ability to afford repayments This resulted in
slower natiorwide house pnce growth than 2013, but
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the successful use of these macro tools to manage price
growth whilst keeping short term rates very low will,

| believe, come to be viewed most positively The house
builders have not been deterred, they appreciate

the strong fundamentals and continue to buy land and
bring forward their planning pipeline Our overall exposure
to the sector in the UK did not matenally change in the
penod, but our focus shifted towards the regions and
away from London Alongside St Modwen (a longstanding
favourte stock} we hold Urban & Ciwvic which owns two
large development sites at Alconbury (south of
Cambridge) and Rugby, whilst we reduced exposure to
the London focused businesses, Quintain and Capital

& Counties | was not calling the top of the London
residential market, merely suggesting that these
businesses could ‘mark ame’ as capital growth paused in
the face of vanous pressures ranging from affordability
(particularly domestic sterling buyers) through to fears at
the time of a 'mansion tax’ In the year to March 2015,
both stocks underperformed the benchmark over the year,
Quintain fell -8 2% and Capital & Counties rose +15%

Debt and Equity Capital Markets

Seven years on from the start of the global financial crisis,
commercial real estate lending to both public and private
companies accelerated strongly in 2014 Whilst the overall
amount of debt only increased modestly by €23bn
(CBRE estimate a total pool of €978bn) the mteresting
statistic 15 that this includes €49bn of debt sold in foan
portfolio sales which is roughly 5% of the aggregate
commercial real estate debt on all European banks
balance sheets This I1s crucial evidence of banks
successfully deleveraging from their nonperforming legacy
loan books 80% of these sales were to US private equity
buyers who continue to focus on Europe as a recovery

play Sales of non-performing loans enables banks to clear

the provisions on their balance sheets and begin a new
vintage of loans In fact, adjusting for these loan sales,
CBRE estmate new lending was up 47% on the
equwvalent 2013 hgure This figure 1s still less than half the
amount let n the peak year of 2007

Listed comparies have enjoyed not only this renewed
lending from traditional banking sources but also the deep
demand from the public debt markets The search for
income continued to dnve bond yields down and property
companies raised £9 5bn in the year to March 2015,
compared to £5 6bn n the previous 12 months In last

1 TR Property avestmen* Trust

year's report | highlighted Urvbail's €700m 10 year bond
ssued in June 2013 at an all in coupon of 2 5%
commenting on the attractveness of such cheap, long
term debt Little did | expect to report that in October 2014,
they 1ssued a €750m 7 year bond at 1 375%, a neat
comparable ilustrating how far debt costs have come down

It 15 smportant {0 note that whilst the amount of debt
raised has clearly increased we have aiso seen a steep
increase in the amount of existing debt being
renegotiated With investors seeking out businesses with
higher earnings and payout ratios, many companies have
sought to reduce their cost of debt by paying banks to
cancel expensive swaps In return for newer cheaper debt
This 15 clearly a case of ' robbing Peter to pay Paul’ but
the market's positive response ta the resulting higher
earnings reflects the appetite for iIncome

Equity capital markets have also had a busy year but it
has been dorminated by prmary 1ssuance from exsting
companies rather than IPOs Rights issues and raisings
{often just accelerated book builds of 10% of existing
equity) raised £72bn of equity in the penod Last year
| wrote about the huge growth in the number and size
of the German listed residential businesses as therr
predominantly prvate equity owners sold down their
controlling stakes This process continued in 2014 with
large placings in both Deutsche Annington and Gagfah

Spain continued to see a flurry of ‘cash box' 1POs in the
first half of 2014 with Hispania (raising €336m) and
Merlin (raising €1 2bn) These companies start life with
the cash proceeds from the IPO and then aim to nvest
this caprtal (together with debt) in suitable acquisitions
In the case of Merhin it had acquired a nationwide
portfolio of banking premises let to BBVA in anticipation
of the flotation

In Norway we saw the long awaited sale of 50% of the
state owned Norwegian office property business valuing
the business at Norwegian Kroner 12bn (£1 1bn) It has
been a steady perfarmer nising 28% despite the concerns
over the lack of employment growth in oll related
businesses Neighbouring Sweden also saw the return

of an industry veteran, Jens Engwall floating his highly
leveraged company Hemfosa in March 2014

With such buoyant capital markets and demand for
commeraal property it Is no surpnse that we have seen
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two delistings in the year, Max Property In the UK and CFI
in France The latter was more of a trade sale as UGC, the
tenant of all 12 canemas had the option to buy the
portfolic The history of Max Property was covered in detail
in the Intenm Report in November Whilst the snvestment
was a successful one for the Company (a total retumn of
84 2%) the key point 1s that the entire portfolio was
bought by Blackstone very shortly after the company
announced its 2 year winding up programme It would
not be a great surpnse if we saw more large private equity
businesses acquinng listed assets The highly regarded
management team behind Max quickly resurfaced in the
pubhc domain with the UK's only 2014 IR0, the listing

of Secure Income Reit in May This vehicle rased a very
modest £15m of fresh capital, of which the Company
mvested £2m It owns a mixed leisure and healthcare
portfoho of very long leased properties with high leverage
The stock rose 73% over the perod and we expect more
equity issuance as more acquisttions are undertaken

Property shares

In my mtroduction | highlighted the impact of vigorous
ongoing monetary easing on the performance of a
leveraged asset class such as real estate equities The UK
benefited through both 2012 and 2013 with sigmificant
outperformance by domestic property companies
compared with their European cousins However through
2014 and in particular Q1 2015 it was the turn of
Continental real estate shares to benefit from the largesse
of the central bank To illustrate the paint, Continental
stocks outperformed UK stocks, all in local currency, by
10 3% 1n the fourth quarter alene with the ECB
announcing thewr bond buying programme on 15 January

The performance of the Eurozone companies, when
viewed in local currency, was very drarmatic returning
+40 7% over the year At the country level, the spread

i performance was not as broad as we have seen in
previous years The asset inflation assisted by further falls
in both bond yields and the cost of capital was felt across
the entire region

Germany was the top Eurozone performer with a total
return of 54 4% The combination of strong domestic
growth coupled with Bund yields dnving inexorably down
to close to zero was a very attractive backdrop for the
asset ctass Global demand for the large, liquid residential
businesses which dominate the German listed property
index was strong International investors saw these
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comparves as a perfect way to combine pure domestic
German exposure with an attractive leveraged asset dlass

Sweden was once again a very strong performer when
viewed mn local currency with the group of stocks
returning 42 9% in SEK but only 20 7% in GBP Swedish
property companies do not benefit from the tax
transparent ‘Reit’ structures and therefore they maintain
higher levels of debt, partly as a tax shield With asset
pnces nsing and the Riksbank cutting the base rate
(twice) in the year, net asset values quickly appreciated
as did eamings estimates (as mterest bills fell} In addition
these rate reductions helped mantain the steady
depreciation of the currency Local banks have been
enthusiastic lenders to the property sector and
competition has reduced debt margins further Sweden
suffers from a shortage of housing, particularly in 1ts larger
crties and with the economy forecast to grow by 2 3% n
2014 and 3% in 2015 (UBS Economics forecast) the
rapid growth in house prices was reflected in the
performance of Balder, our preferred residential name,
which rose 86% in the year The sharp eyed will have
noticed that | fughlighted this same stock in last year's
annual report after it rose 71% m the year to March
2014 The founder and CEO continues to own 39%

of the company

The other standout performer in the year was also
Swedish, Hemfosa whose PO was mentioned earher The
stock returned 97% since coming to the market n March
2014 The company rapidly invested the equity raised and
took its LTV to 62% as at December 2014 It has since
raised more capital through preference shares, which
carry an annual coupon and are therefore debt (as far as
we are concerned) and the current loan to value s a
stretched 68% | admit that we sold our holding too early
but | don't hold businesses with that level of leverage
unless it 1s heawly discounted, which i this case it 1sn't

Swiss property stocks have been a longstanding
underweight in this portfolio Asset values have been
stagnant for many years with low levels of turover, the
underlying rental markets erther suffer from oversupply
(Zunch offices) or at best offer pedestnian growth whilst
the comparues lack dynamic management The sector has
had an annualised retumn of 6 5% over the last 3 years
versus the pan European benchmark retumn of 18 4%
However, as mentioned n the ntroduction, the dramatic
intervention by the Swiss National Bank 1n not only
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remowving the CHF/EUR cap but also moving to negative
overnight rates was a catalyst for the sleepy world of
Iisted Swiss property companies The two large
compames, PSP Swiss and Swiss Pnme Site both rose
nearly 20% between 16th January and the end of
February as domestic investors quickly bought into therr
steady dindend yields (3 7-4 0%j) rather than leaving their
money in the bank who now charged 0 75% for the
pleasure of looking after it We reacted quickly, increasing
our exposure from 1 7% to 4 5% of net assets This was
a good example of an envircnment in which we needed
to adjust our long standing wview of the underlying weak
property market fundamentals which were being
overruled by exogenous central bank policy decisions

The UK stocks collectively rose 25 19% and therefore
outperformed the rest of Europe when viewed in GBP
as highlighted earlier Again there was iess dispersion of
returns than in previous years with a handful of notable
exceptions Within the London specialists, Workspace
returned 46 1% as it benefited from a rerating of its
portfolio and a surge 0 investor interest in its SME
focused, shorter term lease model The other outstanding
performance was from Unite, the specialist student
accommodation provider which rose 36 3% Strong
demand from insttutional investors and private equity
has drniven yields down sharply in this sector Unite, as
the largest manager in the country, benefits from
economies of scale and a marketing reach well beyond
its competitors particularly for the growing overseas
student market

At the half year | wrote that our residential exposure was
focused increasingly outside of London and indeed those
businesses with the greatest Central London residential
exposure (with the exception of Workspace) were
amongst the poorest performers, Capital & Counties and
Quintain New build residential remains the one market
which is showing signs of near term oversupply We also
completed the sale of the Vauxhali property following
receipt of the permitted development night for conversion
to residential further reducing our London residential
exposure In the longer run we reman confident of the
strength of the London residential market as a store of
wealth and that key infrastructure such as Crossrail will
enable this capital aty to cope with the forecasted
population growth rate
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Distribution of Assets

UK equity exposuie at 42 B% was lower than in March
2014 (43 3%) and due in part to the significant return
of capital (2 4% of NAV) from the delisting and sale of
Max Property in August Continental European exposure
increased ta 50 6% from 49 0% Investors rmight have
expected this percentage to have grown more but the
movement 1n the currency had a dramatic effect on the
relative size of the non-GBP denominated asset base

Our physical property asset exposure fluctuated with the
sales and purchases ending the penod at 6 6%

Investment Activity

Over the penod, turnover (purchases and sales divided
by two) totalled £249 4m and equates to 27 4% of the
average net assets over the period This percentage is
a very similar level to last year (27 8%) but the last two
years have been higher than the long term average
The reasons given In fast year's annual report apply
equally to this year, namely higher levels of equity
issuance (both primary and secondary) coupled with
the response required to changes in macro driven
sentiment in additon the two de-listings (Max
Property and CFl) also meaningfully increased the
turnover figures

As noted under Distnbution of Assets, the ratio of UK and
Continental European exposure hardly altered over the
year In the mtenm report | commented that, given the
expectation of further monetary easing in the Eurozone

I would expect Continental exposure to increase from

this point Indeed, as detailed below, our exposure to
Eurozone companies did increase, only for the currency
depreciation to impact the ratios The focus remains on
businesses exposed to sound underlying property markets
rather than the greatest short term beneficianes of central
bank largesse Civen this approach, the most significant
increase In exposure was in German residential The fund
not only participated in secondary placings in Deutsche
Anrington and Gagfah but also bought into Buwog, the
residential arm of Immofinanz (an Austrian listed property
company) which was spun out in October We also added
to all other existing residential names over the penod
with Deutsche Annmington acquinng Gagfah in March the
combined entity together with Deutsche Wohnen are now
ranked #4 and #7 largest companies in our pan
European benchmark
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The other major sector consolidation 1n the year was
the merger of Klepierre and Cono This was effectively a
takeover by Klepierre, masterminded by the 23%
controlling shareholder Simon Property (the largest US
retall REIT) Announced in late July, Corno's stock leapt
11% on the day as investors welcomed a fresh
management approach

Following further IPOs, the Spanish exposure 1n the
benchmark has increased modestly to 1 4% Our
exposure remains fower than the index Whilst we
partiapated in both Hispania and Merhin Properties we
have traded most of these positions and bought back
only when the stocks were on hefty discounts to asset
value last summer The Spanish economy 15 indeed
improving fast but we remain sceptical that a refurn to
rental growth is imminent What i1s plainly apparent 1s the
wave of caprtal driving up asset pnces and weakening the
‘cash box’ business model as potential purchases have
become more expensive

In the UK we participated in a number of corporate
situations Capital & Counties, Hammerson and NewRiver
Retail al! camed out 10% overmight placings at single digit
discounts to the previous price In each case the proceeds
had a clearly defined purpose and such placings enable a
large fund such as this one to participate on an
appropnate scale | explained earler the decision to invest
In certain businesses focused on sub-regional shopping
and we participated in the Capital & Regional £160m
capital raise to acquire the remainder of the Mall
partnership from Aviva The company now owns outnght
7 UK shopping centres (plus interests in a further 2) and
has sold virtually all its non-core activities These centres’
rents have been reset down to new, posi-crisis, levels and
tenant affordability will enable these centres to generate
very acceptable returns even as they continue to deal
with the structural changes in retaiing This company will
also be able to drive down its overheads as its business
mode! simplifies and we hope 1t will act as a platform

for further consolidation n this fragmented sub-rmarket

Revenue

As tughhghted in both the intenm Report and in the
Manager's Report, the current year earmings of 8 89p
nclude a number of one-off events The two with the
most significant impact were an unexpected dwvidend
from Max Properties, which paid out its accumulated
earnings prior to a takeover by a pnvate equity group,
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and our largest investment, Uniball mowving from paying a
singie annual dvidend to semi-annual distnbutions The
Company received the last annual dwvdend from Uribail
in May 2014 and the first intenm dnadend in March
2015, so effectively recewved one and a half imes the
usual dividend from this holding in the financial year
Other corporate actions also led companies to pay out
earnings earlier than anticipated The cumulative effect
of all these was 1 25 pence per share

Without the tems highlighted above, the anticipated fall in
eamings from the prior year, (which had also included a
number of one off items) would have matenalised
Underlying growth 1n the divdends has come through,
albert not at the rate that the 10% growth in eamings set
out in the Financial Highhights might suggest Without the
one-off items mentioned above, the eamings weuld have
been around 764p per share The full year dwdend at
770p, some 3 4% ahead of the prior year, takes this

into account

Revenue Outlook

At the nsk of being repetitive, | must caution again that a fall
in eamings 15 anticipated In the 2015/16 financial year This
Is due in part to the fact that we are seeing a fall In ncome
from our direct property portfolio as the redevelopment at
the Colonnades 1s underway This 1s temporary and will
benefit the income account In the longer term In addition,
the acquisition of Coro by Klepierre benefitted the mcome
account in the year under review by bnnging ncorne
forward, however, it will result in a fall in income from this
holding sn the next financial yeas, although normal business
15 expected to be resumed thereafter

importantly, we expect the rate of growth 1n income from
the underlying portfolio to slow but remam positive In the
last two years, companies have benefitted from
refinancing at lower rates than the retinng debt which has
provided a significant boost to incorme accounts However,
much of this refinancng actvty 1s now complete and
further income growth will be determined by underlying
rental growth which we expect to be modest

As usual, we cannot foresee more one—off events which
will iImpact the revenue account 1n & positive or negative
way Timing of dmdends close to our year ends, the
impact of currency movements on our non-stering
income, and the way 1n which companies pay the
dividends which 1n turn can affect the way n which they
are taxed are all factors that we are unable to control
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As the Chairman highlighted in her Statement, the Board
will not be afraid of utitsing the revenue reserves to
maintain and even grow the dwidend, prowding they are
confident that the shortfalls will not be long term and there
is evidence of underlying income growth in the portfolio

Gearing, Debt and Debentusres

Geanng levels have not changed markedly duning the
perniod, although the end of the perniod saw a modest fall
in the levels of debt drawn

Our facility with RBS was renewed in January and the

financing terms improved We have just completed the
renewal of the ING facility, also on lower margins The
CFD portfolio was a source of cheaper funding dunng

the year and around half of the geanng was achieved

in this way

We are also in discussion with other potential lenders as
our GBP15m debenture 15 finally due for repayment in
February 2016 This 1s a smail labiity for this size of
Investment Trust, but at a fixed interest rate of 11 5%
we will be happy to repay

Direct Physical Portfolio

It was another busy year for the physical property portfolio
which produced a total retum of 15 0% over the 12
months made up of a capital return of 11 2% and an
income return of 3 7% The iIPD Monthly Index total retum
was 18 3% (a capttal return of 11 6% and an income
return of 6 Q%) During the year 5 separate property
transactions were concluded totalling £30 8 mullion

There were three purchases over the year In the Intenm
Report we wrote about the acquisition of a logistics unit
N Bristol for £4 58m, reflecting a net iniial yield of 6 9%
and an industnal bullding 1in Plymouth, where we paid
£3 25m reflecting a net inmial yield of 8 0% Since the
Intenm report we acquired Beacon House in Wimbledon
for £3 5m which reflects a net mitial yreld of 4 5% and a
capital value of £300 per sq ft The property is a 12,500

sq ft office located close to the train station in this affluent

London suburb The upper floors are let on short leases
expinng In March 2016 and the ground floor 1s let to the
British Red Cross on a long lease at a nommnal rent The
purchase rationale centres on the refurbishment and
releting of the building to prowide good qualty office
accommodation in a London suburb where prime rents
are £45 per sq ft and there is a distinct lack of available
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stock Excluding the Red Cross income the average rent
i the bulding 1s £18 per sq ft

There were two sales, Vauxhall and Mifton Keynes The
sale of Vauxhall completed at the beginning of the year
4 2% ahead of the March 2014 valuation, foliowing
confirmation from Lambeth Borough Councl that the
building could be converted to residential use The sale
was in line with the Company's strategy of reducing
exposure to the central London residential market in
December we concluded the sale of the Milton Keynes
office to the tenant for £5 million, a 30% premigm to
the September book value

At The Colonnades, Bayswater, following receipt of
planning permission and completion of the agreement

for lease with Waitrose i March 2014, constructon of the
extended and refurbished commercial accommodation
began in September At the time of writing the project 1s
on time and on budget with handover to Wartrose of their
new supermarket set for August 2015 The construction
Investment for the year was £2 5m with a further £6m

of capital expenditure remaming Completion of the entire
scheme s set for November 2015 and we have started to
market the 5 ground floor retall units with good expression
of interest receved Residential lease extensions also
continued with another 11 completions in the year
providing the Trust with net receipts of £09m Close to
509% of 242 flats have now completed lease extensions

Outlook

The ultra-low and ndeed, in some instances, negative
bond yield environment acrass the Eurozone fostered by
the ECB's bond buying stimuius drives an unprecedented
hunt for yield It also reduces the cost of capital leading to
asset value inflation in Continental Europe Our view 1s
that the ECB will ensure that the programme centinues
untl they are very comfortable that the benefits are being
felt in the wider real economy However, as should be
diear from the tone of this report we prefer companies
that are close to, or experencing real rental growth 1n
therr portfchios Asset prices stimulated by central bank
mntervention need to eventually find an underpinning from
occupter demand and we watch closely for appropnate
data points Importantly the lack of new construction and
reluctance of banks to fund speculative development
continues to reassure us that improving economic
fundamentals which delwer tenant demand will translate
into rental growth promptly
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At the time of gong to pnnt the Conservatives had,
against almost universal expectation, won a shm majonty
at the UK General Election Whilst this certainty is good
news for business in general it does bring renewed focus
on the possibility of an EU referendum in 2017 The
abilty of the single cumency to deal with its immense
structural issues wall remain a central theme for investor
sentment and the immediacy of the Greek debt
renegotiation reminds us of the complexites We expect
the European Central Bank's monetary policy to remain
accommodating

Meanwhile i the UK, the expectation of the
commencement of an upward rate cycle may weigh on
short term asset apprecation n the UX However we
think that quite quickly commercial property investors will
adapt to the new environment where modest Increases
in the base rate will be the appropnate response of the
central bank to an economy growing faster than its
neghbours Combined with so httle new development
over the last 7 years ongoing tenant demand will be
good news for rental growth

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager
9 June 2015
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Portfolio
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UK Secunties — quoted 434,539 407 365,242 413
! - fixed interest 6,130 06 5,565 06
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UK Total 516,113 484 441,922 439
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- quoted 539,007 505 435929 494
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UK Securities
— quoted 434,549 382 365,242 394
! — fixed interest 6,130 05 5,565 06
— CFD exposure? 46,791 41 30,532 33
UK Investment Properties 75,434 66 71,115 77
. P UK Total 562,904 494 472,454 510
- European Secunties
- — quoted 539,007 473 435,929 470
- fixed interest 868 01 2,632 03
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. UK Property Equtes CFD exposure 36,002 3 16,21¢ 17
Total Investment Exposure’ 1,138,781 1000 927234 1000
. iy e —
rPOI’thllO Summary N
as at 31 March
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
£000 E'000 £'000 £000 £ 000
Total investments £1,056m E£880m E£740m £516m £571m
Net assets £1,010m EB0SmM £684m E470m £531m
UK guoted property shares 41% 41% 37% 349% 34%
UK fixed interest 1% 1% 0% 0% 0%
Qverseas quoted property shares . 510 50% 560 56% 58%
Overseas fixed interest 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Drwect property (externally valued) 7% 8% 7% 10% 8%
N S/

I Net unrealised gain an CFD contracts held as balance sheet debtor
2 Gross value of CFD positions
3 Total investments ilustrating market exposure including the gross value of CFD posiions
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investment Portfolio by Country asat 31 March 2015

Market value Market value
£'000 % E'000 Gh
Austna Sweden
CA Immobihen 6,428 06 Wihlborgs 13,863 13
Buwog 4,559 04 Kungsleden 11,887 11
Fabege 11,113 10
10.987 10 Castellum 9,356 09
Belgium Hufvudstaden 8,631 08
Warehousing and Distnbution de Pauw 6,845 07 Atnurn Ljungberg 8566 08
Befimmo 1,751 02 Fastighets Balder 8,533 08
Wereldhave 493 - D Carnegie 1,927 0z
Wallenstam 1,410 0}
9,089 09 Fast:ighets Balder (Pref) 760 01
Finland Hemfosa 699 01
Sponda 2,983 03 Klovern (Pref) 282 -
Citycon 1,424 01 Klovern 1 —
Technopolis 356 - 77,028 72
4,763 04 Switzerland
France PSP Swiss Property 25,067 24
Unibail-Rodamco 86,671 81 Swiss Pnme Site 22,892 21
Klépierre 34,930 33 Mabimo 725 01
Terreis 11,683 Tl 48,684 46
Foncigre des Régions 10,990 10
Gecina 10,425 10 United Kingdom
Foncere des Murs 7722 07 Land Secunes 77292 72
Mercialys 7482 o7 Great Portland Estates 44,478 42
Argan 5912 06 British Land 42,063 39
ANF immobiher 865 01 Hammerson 39,295 37
Derwent London 34,584 33
176,630 166 St Modwen 28,880 27
CLS Holdings 21,073 20
German 3 /
LEG Y 42776 40 Unite Group 20,094 19
Deutsche Annungton 41,818 39 ::‘Eg‘es';uw :;’ ég; } ;
Deutsche Wohnen 33,279 31 CC tay] &eéum'fs |1 e4s 0
Deutsche Euroshop 17384 16 apia ounies '
Gramger 9,338 09
Alstria Office 13,685 13
Capital & Regional 8,742 08
VIB Vermoegen 9,491 Q9
Safestore Holdings 7997 07
TLC 2,834 03 Id 79 7
Prme Office 1367 o1 Hansteen Holdings 995 0
! Big Yellow Group 7.467 07
162,634 152 NewRnwer 7246 07
Ireland Workspace Group 7,110 07
G'e a"R . 5046 05 SEGRO 6,554 06
reen Re - Quintain Estates & Developments 5,942 06
5,036 05 Urban & Cwic 4,883 05
italy Picton 3,686 03
Secure Income Reit 3,391 03
Bers Stabil 2418 02 Local Shopping Reit 2,808 03
2,418 02 Hehcal Bar 2,416 02
herland Redefine 2,350 02
Netherlands | Londonmetnc Property 737 01
Eurocommercial Properties 11,960 11 Pactolus Hunganan 301 _
Wereldhave 9,369 03 Nanette Real Estate 86 -
Vastned Retail 8,599 08
434,549 407
29,928 28
Direct Property 75,434 71
Norway
Norwegian Property 3,760 04 Fixed Interest
Entra 3,636 03 NewRwver 5 85% 31/12/15 (United Kingdom) 6,130 06
7396 07 VIB Vermoegen 4 00% 05/12/16 (Germany) 868 01
6,998 0.7
Spain
Merlin 3,439 03
Hispania Activos 905 01 CFD Positions (included in
current assets) 10,604 10
4,344 (L)
Total Investment Posihions 1,066,592 1000
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Twenty Largest Equity Investments

Shareholding value

% of mvestment exposuret

9% of equity owned
Share prce at
31 March 2015 (2014)

Comment
Note Market caps yields and share prce returns all at end March 2015

Land Secunties
(UK)

£100 0m (£B4 53m)
8 8% (9 1%)
10% (1 0%}
1,253 0p (1,021 Op)

The UK's largest real estate investment trust (REIT) by market cap and portichio value,
with 2 portfolio of £13 3bn induding share of joint ventures and developments

The company 15 exposed to Central London Offices and Retall {47%), Shopping
Centres (30%), Retall Warehouses & Superrnarkets {11%) and other investments
{predommnantly Accor hotels and lesure-focused assets) (12%) The group has
continued its exit from mature ex-growth regional retail assets with reinvestment into
Bluewater (a dominant shopping centre in the South East} and the London
development schemes Development exposure remains strong with Nova in Victona
and New Street Square in the aty progressing well The group has also committed to
develop the Westgate Shopping Centre in Oxford to satisfy demand i this
undersupphed affluent catchment Last reported loan to value was a low 35% and
will be tawer post the FY 15 results and the group remains cormmitted to a strict
capital allocation process The five year total shareholder retum has been 121 5%

N

Unibail-Rodamco
(France)

£93 46m (E76 48m)
8 2% {8 3%)

05% (0 5%)

€251 05 (€188 50)

Europe's largest quoted property company by both market cap and gross assets,
following the June 2007 merger with Rodamco Its €27bn portfolio 1s located in
France (53%), Central Europe (18%), Scandinavia (10%) Spain {10%}, Austna
(9%} and the Netherlands (6%) The focus is on targe dominant shopping centres
in the main European ates, which generate higher sales density/footfall and lower
structural vacancy The group dispesed its exhibition/cenvention business in March
2015, and intends to use the proceeds to fund is £8bn development pipeline To
supplement retums the group also pursues an opportunistic strategy (buy/build and
self} on offices (12%) mostly located in Pans CBD and La Défense Management
recently upped its guidance for EPS growth from 5-7% to 6-8% over the next 5
years, although this was from a lower starting base The current loan 1o value stands
at 37% with an average debt matunty of almost 6 years The five year total
shareholder return has been 150 4%

Klépiere
{France)

£45 10m (£19 10m)
40% (2 195)

0 4% (0 29%)

€45 69 (€32 45)

Klepierre ewns a Pan-European shopping centre portfolio valued at €16 4bn located in
France (43%g), Scandinavia (25%), Italy (11%), Ibera (8%]) and Central Europe
(7%) The portfolio size will Increase to around €21bn after completion of the Cono
acquistton Klepierre has an attractve €3 7bn development pipeline (of which €1 1bn
commutted), which s set to grow further post inclusion of the Cono development
pipeline i the Nethedands Simon Property Group, the largest global shopping centre
REIT owns a 29% stake and has been a positive force since it acquired the shares in
2011 The five year totel shareholder retumn has been 106 8%

Great Portland Estates
(LK)

£44 69m (€34 90m)
39% (3 8%)

1 6% (1 6%)
8120p (6310p)

This Central Lendon office investor and developer manages £2 8bn of property
with exposure to West End and City Offices and Retail (77% and 23% respectwely)
The group has had another strong year with significant lettings signed at s
developments schemes and an un-geared LFL portfolio growth of ¢ 15% in the
mine months of its financial year to December 2014 Great Portland s a total return
investment with the majonity of returns generated from management's ability to
redevelop or refocus an asset through development to dove rental growth and
capital appreciation In total, the group has 2 2m sqft of short and medium tern
developments compared to a current portfolio of 4 0m sgft Alongside
management’s commitment to capital recycling, the strong balance sheet (27% LTV)
provides capacity to deliver these developments and future acquisitons The five
year total shareholder return has been 179 6%

Bnhsh Land
(UK)

£42 90m (£42 64m)
3 8% (4 6%)

0 5% (0 6%)

833 0p (654 Op)

With a £12 8bn portfolio (induding developments) covenng Central London Offices
(419%}), Shopping Centres, Retall Warehouses and department stores (47%),
Supermarkels (10%), and Residental (2%0) Briush Land 15 the UK's second largest REIT
The portfolic 15 generally of a high-quality with an above-average lease profile (Weighted
Average Lease Length to first break of 10 1years) In London, the office exposure 15
focused on three core dusters Broadgate, Regents Place and Paddington The group
completed many developments aver the last year and has replenished the pipeline with
a focus on pme central London residential schemes and its newest duster in
Paddington Strong revaluations have seen the last reported loan to value reduce to 39%,
and management has indicated it wall not leverage up n to vield compression, so the LTV
15 ikely to continue to reduce The five year total shareholder retum has been 121 2%

{Percentage of Investment Exposure positions include exposure through CFDs
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Twenty Largest Equity Investments conunved

Sharehelding Value

9 of investment expasure!
% of equity owned

Share price at

31 March 2015 (2014)

Comment
Note Market caps, yields and share pnce returns all at end March 2015

6 LEG £42 80m (£26 11m)
(Germany) 3 800 (2 8%)
1 4% () 3%)

€73 74 (€4749)

LEG 15 a German residental company focused on the economically strong region of
North Rhine-Westphahia The company s one of the largest real estate comparnues in
Germany with more than 100,000 uruts under management with a combined value
of €6bn LEG s partcularly charactenzed by s strong balance sheet wath an LTV of
just under 4B9%, an average debt matunty of 10yrs and an average cost of debt of
2 8% The company has 2 well maintained portfolic with 97% occupancy and a
strong platform from which ¢ intends 1o grow further The total shareholder return
since lisung in February 2013 has been 75 7%

7 Deutsche Annington
{Germany)

£4182m (E5 63m}
3 7% (0 6%)

05% (0 194)

€31 41 (€2065)

Deutsche Annington 1s the largest German residenual landlord following the
acquisiion of Gagfah in 2014, with a total of 350 000 units under management.
The large in-house craftsman orgamization enables the company to run its current
€21bn portfoho highly efficently to optimize rental levels, while offenng further
economies of scale by acquinng addiional portfolios The company reported an LTV
of 5086 as of December, but this 15 expected to go up to around 60% following
completion of the Gagfah acquisiton The company reported a low cost of debt at
3 29, and there appears to be room to bring this down over the next year The total
shareholder retum since hstng in February 2013 has been 85 190

£3929m (£41 34m)
3 5% (4 5%)

08% (i 0%)

665 Op (554 Op)

8  Hammerson
(UK)

This UK-based REFT 1s actve in both the UK and France as an investor and
developer The £5 4bn portfoko 15 spht 439 UK Shopping Centres, 25% UK Retall
Parks and 29% French Shopping Centres Retall markets have continued to be
tough over the last year and wathout the benefit from developments eamings growth
dropped to 3 5% from c 10% in the prior year However, despite the tough
economic environment and threat from the internet the portfolio contmues to be
well managed with strong lettings and low vacancy, and the group 1s at the forafront
of mult-channel and dick-and-collect in:tiauves The development pipeline remains
srong with near-term schemes (e g Victona Gate (Leeds), Le Jeu de Paume)
progressing well and longer-term, transformatonal schemes (Croydon, Brent Cross
and Bishopsgate Goodsyard) slowly moving forward The balance sheet remains
strong with an LTV of 32% The five year total shareholder retum has been 103 0%

9  Derwent London
{UK)

£38 35m (E28 00m)
3 4% (3 0%)
1 0% (1 C%)
34240p (2,7100p)

Derwent London s a specialist London REIT (97% of portfolio) operaung a £3 obn
portfolio with a specific focus on Offices n the West End and areas bordenng the
City of London Demand for the group's high-quality space remains at record levels
(largely dnven by the TMT sector) with management guiding rental growth of
6%-8% for 2015 The strategy of low leverage coupled with a sector-feading
operational platform and a proven track record of acquisition, reposittorung and
capital recycing enables management to contnuingly deliver sector leading total-
tetums. Over the last finanaal year to December 2014 LFL un-geared valuations ‘
were up 20% The group 1s a total retum business with a long track record of
delvenng retumns in excess of iis cost of capital Following strong revaluations, the
balance sheet 15 possibly shghtly under-geared with a loan-to-value ratio of only
24% The five year total shareholder retum has been 172 3%

10 Deutsche Wohnen
{Germany}

£33 28m (£18 84m)
29% (2 0%)

0 7% (0 5%)

£2387 (€1553)

Deutsche Wohnen 1s Germany’s second largest residental company with the bulk
of 1ts exposure to Greater Berin (73%b), while the company also holds assets ;i
ates like Rhine-Man and medium-sized aiues like Hanover/Brunswck/Magdeburg
The company owns 2 high quality portfolio consisang of 150,000 units with a
combined value of around €10bn Deutsche Wohnen saw strong rental growth and
valuation uplifts dunng the year in Berin (values +13%), thereby increasing the NAV
of the company by 25% compared 10 a year earher The company launched a bid
for Conwert In March, but falled to acquire the necessary 50% -+1 share of the
outstanding shares in Aprl, after which it decided to withdraw the bid The five

year total shareholder retum has been 261 8%

tPercentage of Investment Exposure, positions ndude exposure through CFDs
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Twenty Largest Equity Investments conunved

Shareholding Value

% of investrent exposurel
% of equity owned

Share pnee at

31 March 2015 (2014)

Comment
Note Market caps yields and share pnce returns alk at end March 2015

St Modwen Properties

(UK)

£28 88m (£26 62m)
2 5% (2 9%)

2.9% (3 0%)

444 0p (400 0p)

St Modwen focusses on land remediabon whereby it acquires brown field land
which it progresses through the plannung process to create oven-ready land for
future development. The majonty of this land 1s for restdential uses and 15 pnmanly
sold to housebuilders, although the group now has its cwn small house building
business The group also remedsates land for in-house commercial development an
area that has finally recovered post the finanaal crisis and s showing signs of
continued growth To support the cost of its development actmties the group cwns
a vanety of secondary offices retal and industnal assets The group will continue to
benefit from a growng housting market and from exposure 1o three key
development opportunities — New Covent Garden Market, Swansea University's
Second Campus and Longbndge Town Centre The strong balance sheet (LTV 31%)
prowides & sound base from which to benefit from the continued strength of the
UK's economy The five year total shareholder return has been 148 2%

12 Unite Group

(UK)

£2712 (E18 05m)
2 4% (2 0%)

2 1% (1 9%)

586 0p (434 0p)

Unite 1s the UK's largest purpose-built student housing developer, owner and
operator The graup manages ¢ 43,000 student beds either wholly-owned or on
behalf of joint ventures Unite has a 52% economic interest in the portfcho and its
share of assets 1s worth £1 6bn To enhance returns the group uses its established
development team and it recently raised equity again to mvest further in the
regional pipefine Management's decision to focus on income producing assets,
topped-up with development exposure has produced significant results with
recurnng profits up 350% over the last 4yrs and are forecast to double by 2018
The recent equity raise further improved the balance sheet (pro-forma LTV 32%)
and supports future development actvity The five year total shareholder retum
has been 138 1%

13 PSP Swiss Property £2507m (£2505m) Based in Zurich, PSP 15 a real estate investment company owning a portfolio valued
(Switzerland} 2 2% {2 7%) at over CHF 6 6bn at the end of 2014 55% of assets by value are located in Zunch,
09% (1 0%) with the remaining properties split mainly between Geneva (13%), Basel {7%),
CHF 21 60 (CHF 83 05) Lausanne (5% and Bern (4%) Two thirds of rent comes from offices with the
remainder coming from retall and parking operauons PSP has a solid balance sheet
with a 28 9% LTV, 1 70% average cost of debt and 7 8x interest cover rato The fve
vear total shareholder return has been 63 8%
14 Swiss Pnme Site £22 9m {£9 96m) Swiss Pnme Site (s the largest Swiss nvestment property company both by market
(Switzerland) 2 0% {1 19%) cap and portfolio size (CHF 9 8bn) It1s predominantly mvested in offices (40%)
06% (0 3%) and retail (32%}) assets in Zunch (40%) and Geneva (21%) The company has a
CHF 84 50 (CHF 7510} relatively high LTV at 51%, but was nevertheless able to successfully raise €600mn
of new bonds at an average low interest rate of 1 5% for seven years dunng 2014
The five year total shareholder return has been 65 S%
15 CLS Holdings £2107 (£1585m) CLS Holdings 1s a pan Eurcpean office owner with a £1 3bn portfoho spht 54%
UK) 19% (1 7%) London, 17% France, 18% Cermany, 7% UK regional and 4% Sweden The group

2 9% (2 8%)
1,720 0p (1,328 Op)

targets higher yrelding assets with a preference for leases which include fixed annual
rental growth and aims to finances these with a very low cost of debt
Supplementing this property income return 1s the ¢ £500m mixed-use development
in Vauxhall and an investment in high-yielding corporate bonds The group chooses
to buy-back shares annually rather than pay a convenuonal dwidend, which further
boosts the NAV growth While the balance sheet geanng 1s higher than peers (LTV
44%) 1t has reduced substantially in the last year through property revaluations and
we believe the group's assets remain conservatively valued The five year total
shareholder retum has been 234 0%

tPercentage of investment Exposure positicns include expesure though CFDs
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Twenty Largest Equity Investments contnved

Shareholding Value

% of nvestrment exposuref

% of equity owned
Share pnce at
31 March 2015 (2014)

Comment
Note Market caps, yields and share pnce returns all at end March 2015
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Fonciere Des Regions
(France)

£2044m (£10 15m)
18% (1 19)

0 4% (0 39%)

£92 17 (€67 16)

Fonciére des Régions 1s a dwversified European property company with a
consoldated portfofio of €16 4bn of assets (€3 8bn in group share) The asset

focus rests on French and Itahan offices (65% group share) let on long-term lease
contracts o tenants such as France Telecom, EDF, IBM, Suez Environment and
Telecom ftalia The ttalian office exposure s held through Bem Stabth (BNS) In
addition, Fonciére des Régtons has a strategic stzke in in Fonagre des Murs, &
French and German leisure and lodging business of which it owns 28%
Furthermore, the company has increased its exposure towards German residential to
a group share af 17%, while 1t also conunues to hold minor exposure to the French
pasking business The group has a 46 1% LTV, with an average cost of debt of 3 3%,
down from 4% a year ago The five year shareholder total return has been 64 194

Deutsche Euroshop
(Germany)

£1738m (£1763m)
1 5% (1 90%)

1 0% (1 2%)

£46 24 (€32 97)

Deutsche EuroShop owns a €3 7bn portfolio of pnme shopping centres its portfola
includes sixteen centres in Germany, one each in Austaa, Hungary and Poland
Deutsche Eurcshop's centre management, development and acquisition sourcing

15 undertaken by third party ECE, the largest developer/manager of shopping centres
in Germany The portfolio 1s charactenzed by well positoned pnme assets, that have
long CPI inked or tumnaver-linked leases (~6 4 years), low vacancy {1%) and a
strong tenant mix The company has a solid balance sheet with a 40% LTV and

a & 6yr weighted average debt matunty The five year total shareholder return has
been 136 3%

Segro
(UK

£13 90 (£4 57m)
1 2% (0 50%)

0 4% (0 2%)
4170p (332 0p)

Segro 1s the largest operator of mdustnial property histed in the UK, with a total
portfolic of £4 8bn split 73% in the UK and 27% in Conunental Europe Since
management announced its strategic review In 2011 the group has completely
refocused its portfolio towards moderm warehousing, hght industnal and data centre
assets around core conurbations The vacancy rate has reduced from 12% to 6%
through disposals and asset management. With the restructuning largely complete,
the group 15 now moving on to the front foot and I1s stepping up development
activity, looking at acquisitions and pushing through rental growth across the UX
However, the European assets rematn more problemanc given greater competition
and a weaker economy The 42% loan-to-value ratio, continues to reduce as
revaluations come through and prowides a solid base The five year total shareholder
return has been 67 9%

Wihlborgs Fasugheter
(Sweden)

£33 86m (£12 40m}
1 2606 (1 3%)
14% {1 4%)

SEK 166 5 (SEK 125 75)

Wihlborg's 1s & commeraat property company focused n the Oresund region of
Sweden (Malmo, Lund and Helsingborg) and Copenhagen The portfoko 1s valued
of SEK 22 8bn (excluding projects which are valued at SEK 1 5bn), consisung of
18% warehouses/logistcs and 82% office/retal Wihlborg's has a strong
management tearn and ts geographic focus efficent portfolio and significant
development capabiliies have tradiionally daven excess total retumns There is a
nsk that these are tempered in the current year due to oversupply ssues in its
core markets While the LTV 1s hugh at 57% on a Europe-relative basis it1s low in
a purely Swedish context The five year shareholder total retum has been 165 0%

20

Alstria Office
{Germany)

£13 69m (£9 67m)
1 2% (1 Q%)

1 7% (1 4%)

€13 06 (€9 66)

Alstna 15 an office pure-play across Germany, with a substantial portion of its
portfolio located in Hamburg (43%) and the Stuttgart region {21%) The good
quality porifoho has an average lease length of 13 6 years and 1s currently valued

of a 5 1% weld, with potental to compress further should current low nterest rate
environment continue to persist More recently the company took advantage of the
strong equity market, and raised €100mn of fresh equity to finance further
acquisiions The company s soldly financed with 50% LTV 5 3 years tll matunty
and an average cost of debt of 3 40, which 1s expected to dedine to 2 1% 1n 2016
The five year total shareholder retumn has been 101 5%

tPercentage of Investment Exposure possuons include exposure through CFDs
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Investment Properties as a: 31 March 2015

Value in excess of £10 million

- _\I
Property Sector Tenure Size (sq ft) Principal tenants
The Colonnades Mixed Freechold 60,000 Waitrose Ltd
Bishops Bndge Road Use 180 space car park

London W2 242 residential units

The property compnses a large mixed-use block in Bayswater, constiucted in the mid-1970s The site extends o
approximately 2 acres on the north east comner of the junction of Bishops Bridge Road and Porchester Road, close o
Bayswater wbe station and the Whiteleys Shopping Centre

Planning consent was granted for the extension and refurtbishment of the commercial element in March 2014
Construction started in September 2014 and completion 15 expected to be in November 2015

Ferrier Street Industnial Industrial Freehold 35,800 Absolute Taste
Estate, Ferner Street Kougar Tool Hire Ltd
Wandsworth SW1B and Mossimans
adjacent plots Page Lacquer

The Ferner Street Industnal Estate occupies a site of just over an acre 50 metres from Wandsworth Town rallway station
in an area that 1s predominantly residential The estate compnses 16 small industrial unis generally let to a mix of small
to medium sized private companies

Property Sector Tenure Size {sq ft) Principal tenants
Field House Offices Freehold 66,000 Teva UK Ltd
Station Approach
Harlow

Located next to Hardow Town railway station, the bullding was constructed n the late 1980s and comprises a 66 000
sq fi office bulding on a sie o 35 acres The bulldng 15 let to Teva on a vanety of leases expinng in January 2023

Beacon House Offices Freehold 12,300 British Red Cross
26-28 Worple Road Sourcecode
Wimbledon

Beacon House 15 located in the mam office distnct of this affluent London suborb Least expires on the upper parts in
2016 and will faciltate a refurbishment of the building

Yodel Urut Industnal Freehold 53,115 Yodel Delwery
Woodlands Park Network Ltd
Almondsbury

Bnstol

Located on the junction of the M4 and M5 this 53,155 sq ft industnal building 15 fet to Yadel, the parcel delivery
company, on a lease expinng in 2019 at a low rent of £5 per sq ft The bulding sits on a 5 75 acre site giving a low site
density and a large yard offening a vaniety of alternative uses for the site

Ut H1 Industrial Freehold 66,157 Invensys plc
Parkway Industrial Estate

5t Modwen

Plymouth

This 66 157sq ft. ndustnal building 15 lacated on the main industnal estate in Pymouth beside the A38 't s let to
tnvensys untl 2021 off a low rent of £4 50 per sq ft offenng good potential for growth at the next rent review 1n 2016

(Spread of Direct Portfolio by Capital Value (%) h qease Lengths within the Direct Property Portfoho )
as at 31 March 2015 Res:der;r;i: as ar 31 March 2015 Gross rental ncome
d
Office Retal  Industmal Gr;::m Cther Toual less than 1 year (including voids) 34 2%
West End of London 104% 24 5% 146% 61% 556% V1o 3 years 155%
Inner London* 510 16% 140% 20 7% 410 5 years 110%
Around M25 12 200 12 2% 6 to 10 years 33 8%
Other South East 11 5% 11 5% 1110 15 years -
Over 15
Total 277% 261% 255% 146% 61% 100% oD YeRrE 15%
\_*Inner London defined as inside the North and South circular J A 100% )
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Overview of strategy, performance measurement
and risk management

Management Arrangements and Business Model !
The Alternative Investment Managers Directive ("AIFMD") became effective dunng the finanaal year The Board has appointed F&C

Investment Business Limited as the Altemative Investment Fund Manager with portfoho management delegated te the former

Investment Manager, Thames River Capital LLP,

Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund Manager to the Company on behalf of Thames River Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur 1s
Deputy Fund Manager George Gay Is the Direct Property Manager and loanne Elhiott the Finance Manager They are supported by
a team of equity and porifolio analysts

The Company has no employees Its wholly non-executive Board of six Directars retains responsibility for corporate strategy,
corporate governance, nsk and control assessment, the overall mvestrment and dwidend policies, setting Iimits on geanng and
asset allocation and monitonng investment performance .

Further information In relation to the Board and the arrangements under the Investment Management Agreement can be found in
the Report of the Directors on pages 30 to 31

In accordance with the AIFMD, BNP Panbas has been appointed as Depository to the Company BNP Panbas also provide custodial
and admimistration services to the Company Company secretanal services are prowided by Capita Company Secretanial Services

The specific terms of the investment management agreement are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 30 1

Investment Objective and Policy
The Company's Objective 15 to maximise shareholders’ total return by investng in the shares and secunties of property companies
and property related businesses intemationally and also n investment property located in the UK

Benchmark

The benchmark 15 the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net Total Retumn Index in Sterling The index, calculated by
FTSE, 15 free-float based and cumently has 91 constituent companies The index imits exposure to any one company to 10% and
reweights the other constituents pro-rata The benchmark website www epra com contains further details about the index and
performance

Policy
The investment selection process seeks to identify well managed comparies of all sizes The Manager generally regards future
growth and capital appreciation potential more highly than immediate yield or discount to asset vatue

Although the investment objective allows for investment on an international basis, the benchmark 1s a Pan-European Index and
the majonty of the mvestments will be located in that geographical area Direct property investments are located m the UK only

As a dedicated investor in the property sector the Company cannot offer diversification outside that sector, however, within the
portfolio there are limitations, as set cut below, on the size of Indwidual nvestments held to ensure diversification within the portfoho

Asset allocation guidelines
The maxmum holding i the stock of any one issuer or of a single asset 1s hmited to 15% of the portfolio at the point of
acquisition In addition, any holdings in excess of 5% of the portfolio must not In aggregate exceed 40% of the portfolio

The Manager currently apphes the following guidefines for asset allocation,

UK listed equities 25 — 50%
Conhnental European listed equities 45 — 75%
Direct Property — UK 5 — 20%
Other hsted equities 0-5%
Listed bonds 0-5%
Unquoted investments 0-5%
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Overview of strategy, performance measurement
and risk management contnved

Gearing
The company may employ levels of gearng from time to time with the aim of enhanang returns, subject to an overall maximum
of 25% of the portfolio value

In certain market conditions the Manager may consider it prudent not to employ geanng on the balance sheet at all, and to hold
part of the portfolio in cash

The current asset allocation gutdeline 1s 10% net cash to 25% net geanng (as a percentage of portfolio value)

Property Valuation

Investment properties are valued every 6 months by an external mdependent valuer If a matenal event occurs in the intervening period,
then an intenm valuation will be instructed on the property in question Valuations of all the Group's properties as at 31 March 2015
have been carned out on a “Red Book" basis and these valuations have been adopted in the accounts

Allocation of costs between Revenue & Capital
On the basis of the Board's expected long term split of returns in the form of capital gans and income, the Group charges 75% of
annual base management fees and finance costs to capital All performance fees are charged to capital

Performance and Key Performance Indicators

The Board appraises the performance of the Company and the Manager as a key suppher cf services to the company against Key
Performance Incicators (KPIs) The objectves comprise both specific financial and shareholder related measures These are listed
below together with a brief descnption of how the Board monitors the KPIs and the outcome

Net Asset Value Total Return relative to the Benchmark Total Return
The Directors regard the Company's net asset value total return performance in companson with the benchmark as being the
overall measure of value delivered to shareholders' over the long term

The Board reviews the performance in detall at each meeting and discusses the results and outlook with the Manager

For the year to 31 March 2015 the Company delivered a total return of 28 3% compared with a benchmark return of 23 39, an
outperformance of 50% This continues a long term track record where over a ten year penod the NAV total return of 1879%
has outperformed the benchmark total return of 110 3%

Delivering a reliable dvidend which 1s growing over the long term
The pnncipal objective of the company 1s a total return objective, however, the Portfolio Manager aims to deliver a reliable
dwidend wath growth over the longer term

The Board reviews statements on income recewved to date and income forecasts at each meeting

The full year dvidend declared for the year to 31 March 2015 1s 770p, an increase of 3 4% over the pror year dmdend
The dwidend has grown by 2 7 times in 10 years, equivalent to 10 5% per annum compounded The dvidend has increased in
each of 9 of the last 10 years, with just one year where the dmidend was flat n 2010

The discount or premium at which the Company’s shares trade compared with Net Asset Value

Whilst investment performance 15 expected to be a key dnver of the share price discount or premium to the net asset value of an
investment trust over the longer term, there are penods of volatility when the discount can widen The Board is aware of the
vulnerability of a sector-specialist trust to a change of investor sentiment towards that sector

The Board takes powers at each AGM to buy-back and issue shares When considenng the ments of share buy-backs or ssuance,
the Board looks at a number of factors 1n addition to the short and longer-term discount or premium to NAV to assess whether
action would be beneficial to the shareholders overall Particular attention s paid to the potential tmpact of any share buy back
actwity on the hguidity of the shares and on ongoing charges in the longer term

Dunng the year under review, no shares were repurchased

The discount to NAV (including ncome) started the year at 2 9% and ended at just under 2 4% and through the year traded
between a discount of 4 19% and a premium of 2 7%

Level of Ongong Charges
The Board is conscious of expenses and aims to deliver a balance between strong service and costs

The AIC definiton of Ongoing Charges includes any direct property costs i addon to the management fees and all the ather
expenses incurred in runming a pubhcly histed company As no other Investment Trusts hold part of their portfolio in direct property,
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Overview of strategy, performance measurement
and risk management contnued

(they either hold thewr portfolios as 100% securties or 100% direct property), we show this statistic with and without the direct
property costs to allow a clearer companson of overall administrative costs with other funds investing in securtties

Expenses are budgeted for each finanaal year and the Board reviews regular reports on actual and forecast expenses throughout the year

For the year to March 2015, the ongoing charges (without direct property costs) decreased from 0 75% to 0 70% One factor in this
15 the construction of the base management fee, a large part of which s a fixed sum, so in a nsing market the increase in
management fee 1s modest.

Investment Trust Status
The Company must continue to operate in order to meet the requirements for Sections 1158 and 1159 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010

The Board reviews financial information and forecasts at each meeting which set out each of the tests outined in Sechons 1158 and 1159

The Directors believe that the condions and ongoing requirements have been met in respect of the year to 31 March 2015 and that
the Company wll continue to meet the requirements

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
In delvenng long-term retumns to shareholders, the Board must also identfy and monitor the nsk that has been taken in order to
achieve that retum

The first group of nsks relate pnmarly to the nsks of investing in worldwide stock markets in general and then the geographical
and sector focus of the portfolic and the construction of the portfolio in particular,

& The Company's assets compnse mainly hsted equities so a principal nsk 1s the performance of equity markets and exchange
rates Both share prices and exchange rates may move rapidly and adversely 1mpact the value of the Company's portfolio

# Although the portfolio 1s diversified across @ number of geographical regions, the investment mandate 1s focused on a single
sector and therefore the portfolo will be sensttive towards the property sector, as well as global equity market more generally

e Property companies are subject to many factors which can adversely affect their performance, these indude the general
economic and finanaial environment in which their tenants operate, interest rates, avallability of investment and development
finance and regulations i1ssued by govemments and authonties

e The Company's portfalie 1s acuvely managed In addition to mvestment secunties the Company also invests in commercial
property and accordingly, the portfolio may not follow the return of the benchmark.

@ The shares of the Company are listed on the London Stock Exchange and the share price 15 determined by supply and
demand The shares may trade at a discount or at a premium to the Company's underlying NAV and this discount or premium
may fluctuate over tme

The Board mitigates these nsks through the regular monitoning of investment performance and analytical data prowded by the
Manager at board meetings The composition of the portfolio, analysis in companson with the benchmark, detals of sales and
purchases, foreign cunency exposures, tracking error data and the views of the Manager are discussed in detall

The second group of nsks relate to the finanaal, accountng, operatonai, taxaton, legal and regulatory requirements of the Company itself,

® The financial nsks that the Company is exposed to include market pnce nsk, credit nsk, kquidity, exchange rate and interest rate
nsks Details of how those nsks are managed are set out in note 11 to the accounts on page 62

® The accounting and operational nsks that the Company 15 exposed to include disruption to or failure of the systems and
processes provided by the third party service providers and the nsk that these service providers prowide a sub-standard service

e The taxation nsks are that the Company may fall to obtain qualification as an investment trust and the Company may fail to
recover withholding taxes levied on overseas investment mcome

e legal and regulatosy nsks indude falure to comply with the London Stock Exchange listing rules and Transparency and Disdosure
rules, failing to meet the requirements under the Attemative Investment Funds Directive, meeting the prowisions of the Companies
Act 2006 and ather UK, European and overseas legislation affecting UK companies and compliance with accounting standards

e Geanng, erther through the use of bank debt or the use of denvatives, which may be utilised from time to time according to the
Board and the Manager's assessment of nsk and reward Whilst the use of geanng 15 intended to enhance the NAV total return,
it will have the opposite effect when the return of the Company’s investment portfolio s negatve
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Overview of strategy, performance measurement
and risk management contnved

Other nsks are monitored by reports to the Board on the control environments and business continuation provisions by the
Manager on both the Manager's cwn processes and those of third party service prowders The Board also receves regular
regulatory updates from the Manager, Company Secretary, legal adwvisers and the Auditors The Board considers these reports and
recomrendations and takes action accerdingly

Corporate Responsibility

Exercise of voting power

The Board has approved a corporate governance voting pohcy which, in its opinion, accords with current best practice whilst
maintaining a prmary focus on financial returns

The exerase of voting nghts attached to the Company’s portfolio has been delegated to the Manager who take a global approach
to engagement with 1ssuers and therr management in all of the junsdictions in which it invests The Manager 15 required to include
disclosure about the nature of therr commitment to the Financial Reporting Committee’s Stewardship Code and detalls may be
found at www fandc com

Environmental policy & Socially Responsible Investment

The Company considers that good corporate governance extends to policies on the environment, employment, human rnights and
community relationships Corporates are playing an increasingly important role 1n globa! economic actmty and the adoption of
good cofporate governance enhances a company’s economic prospects by reducing the nsk of government and regulatory
intervention and any ensuing damage to its business or reputation

The Company has adopted an environmental policy in respect of its investments in both physical property and listed property
companies Within the context of the overall aim of the Company to maximise shareholders’ returns the directors will seek to limut
the Company’s and 1ts investee companies’ impact on the environment and will comply with all relevant legislation relating to its
operations and activities

The environmental policies and behawviour of all the companies in which the Company invests are taken nto account in deasion-
making Good enviranmental management can play a role in overall nsk management and also have a financial tmpact in terms of
savings through energy and water efficiency Where appropnate the Manager will engage with investee companies to raise
concerns about environmental matters

So far as direct property investments are concerned, the Company conducts envtronmental audrts pnor to purchase to identify
contamination or matenals considered ervironmentally harmful The Company will take remedial action or enforce tenant
obligations to do sa wherever appropnate The Company's adwisers assess the environmental impact of its properties on an
ongoing basis and will take all necessary action to comply with environmental responsibilities

Diversity, Gender Reporting and Human Rights Policy

The Board recogrises the requirement under Section 414 of the Compantes Act 2006 to detail informaton about employee and
human nghts, including information about any policies it has in relation to these matters and effectiveness of these policies As the
Trust has no employees, this requirement does not apply

The Board currently comprises 4 male and 2 female directors The Board's diversity pohicy 1s outiined m more detail in the
Corporate Governance Report The Manager has an equal opportunity policy which 1s set out on its website www fandc com

By order of the Board

Caroline Burton
Chairman
9 June 2015
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Directors

Caroline Burton

Hugh Seaborn

John Glen

Carohine Burton, joined the Board of
the Company on & June 2002 She
joined Guardian Royal Exchange plc's
investment Department in 1973 and
remained with the group until 1999
From 1987 she was Managing Director
of Guardian Asset Management and,
from 1990 to 1999, Executve Drector —
Investments She 15 a non-executive
director of Blackrock Smaller Companies
Trust plc, Liverpao! Victona Fnendly
Society Ltd and a member of the
Appointments Committee of Hermes
Property Unit Trust She adwises a
number of pension funds

N

Hugh Seaborn, jomed the Board

of the Company on 24 July 2007

He 1s 3 Chartered Surveyor and has
considerable expenence m the property
arena, he 1s currently the Chief
Executive Officer of the Cadogen Estate
He was a member of the Council and
Audit Commuttee of the Duchy of
Lancaster untl December 2013

From 2000 ta 2009, he was Chief
Executive Cfficer of the Portman Estate
and he 15 Chairman of the Estates
Business Group and 1s a past
Chairman of the Westminster Property
Owners Association

John Glen, joined the Board of the
Company on 17 February 2014 and

15 presently the Chief Executive of
Buccleuch Previously, John was based
in Pans as CFO of Arr Liquide and also
served as the Vice Chairman of the
European Financial Reporting Group
(EFRAG) John 15 also a non-executive
drector for BIC, charrman of the Board
at Alba Trees and a member of the
Board for Project Scotland John 1s also
a member of the 2020 Climate Change
Group and Charman of one of the
subcommuttees, which focuses on land
use and forestry in Scotland

-/

Simon Marrison

Suzie Procter

David Watson

Al directors are independent of the manager and are members of the Audit Committee

GOVERNANCE

Stmon Marrison, joined the Board of
the Company on 28 September 2011
Mr Marnson 15 CEO of Europe and Chief
Investment Officer at LaSalle Investment
Management and has responsibility for a
portioho of over $20bihon across
Europe Mr Mamson has been based n
Panis since 1990 having started his
career in London Untl 1997 he was a
partner at Healey & Baker {now
Cushman & Wakefield) and from 1997
to 2001 he was at Rodamco where he
became Country Manager for France He
joined LaSalle in 2001 as Managing
Director for Continental Europe

Suzie Procter, jomed the Board of

the Company on 1 March 2013 She

15 presently Executve Head of
institutonal Client Service and a partner
of Cantllon Capital Management LLP
She has been Director of Fixed Income
Business at Pictet International
Management, Head of Institutional Sales
at Invesco and Managing Director, Head
of Consultant Relations and Chent
Dhrector at Lazard Asset Management
She bnngs asset management
expenence and expertise n strategic
business development and distnbution

Dawid Watson, joned the Board of

the Company on 1 Apnl 2012 He s

a Charntered Accountant and has had

a distinguished career in the Financial
Senvices Industry He spent 9 years

as Finance Director of M&G Group plc,
where he was a director of four equity
mvestment trusts, and most recently at
Aviva ple as Chief Finance Officer of
Aviva General Insurance Me 15 currently
Deputy Charrman of Countrywide plc
and a nen-executive director of Charles
Taylor plc, Kames Capital ple and
Hermes Fund Managers Umned, where
he 15 Chairman of the Audt Committee
He became Chairman of the Company's
Audit Commuttee on 1 January 2013
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Managers

' [ [ b

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

Jo Elliott

Alban Lhonnteur

28 TR P openty Investmen Trust

Marcus Phayre-Mudge, Fund Manager, joined the Management team for the Company at Henderson
Global Investors in January 1997, mitially managing the Company’s direct property portfolio and latterly
facusing on real estate equities, managing a number of UK and Pan European real estate equity funds
N addition to actties in the Trust. Marcus moved to Thames River Capital n October 2004 where he 15
also fund manager of Thames River Property Growth & Income Fund imited Prior to joimng Henderson,
Marcus was an investment surveyor at Kmght Frank (1990) and was made an Associate Partner in the
fund management dwision (1995) He qualified as a Chartered Surveyor in 1992 and has a B5¢ (Hons)
in Land Managerment from Reading University

Jo Eiliott, Finance Manager, has been Finance Manager since 1995, first at Henderson Global Investors
then, since January 2005, at Thames River Capital, when she joned as CFO for the property team She
joined Hendersan Global Investors n 1995, where she most recently held the position of Director of
Property, Finance & Qperations, Europe Previously she was Corporate Finance Manager with London
and Edinburgh Trust plc and priar to that was an investment/treasury analyst wath Heron Corporation ple
Jo has a BSc (Hons} n Zoology from the Unwersity of Nottingham and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with Emist & Young n 1988

George Gay, Direct Property Fund Manager, has been the Direct Property Fund Manager since 2008
He jomed Thames River Capital In 2005 as assistant direct property manager and qualified as a
Chartered Surveyor in 2006 George was previously at niche City investment agent, Morgan Pepper
where as an investment graduate he gained considerable industry expenence He has an MA in Property
Valuation and Law from City University

Alban Lhonneur, Deputy Fund Manager, jomed Thames River Capita! in August 2008 He was previously
at Otigroup Globa! Markets as an Equity Research analyst focusing on Continental European Rea! Estate
Pnor to that he was at Societe Generale Secuntes, where he focused an transport equity research He
has a BSc in Business and Management from the ESC Toulouse including one year at the Brunel
University, London He also attended CERAM Nice High Business School In 2005 he abtained a post-
graduate Speaalised Master in Finance in 2005 from £5CP-EAP




GOVERNANCE

Report of the Directors

The directors present the audited financial statements of the Group and the Company and their Strategic and Directors’
Reports for the year ended 31 March 2015 The Group comprnises TR Property Investment Trust ple and its fully owned
subsidianes The review of the business of the Company, recent events and outlook are contamed within the Strategic
Report on pages 3 to 15

Status
The Company Is an investment company, as defined in Section 833 of the Compantes Act 2006, and operates as an
nvestment trust i accordance with Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010

The company has a single share class, Ordinary shares, with a nomina! value of 25 pence each which are premium
hsted en the London Stock Exchange

The Company has applied for and recewed confumation from HM Revenue & Customs that on the basis of the
information provided, the Company has been accepted as an approved investment trust for accounting penods
commencing on or after 1 Apnl 2012 subject to the Company continuing to meet the eligibility conditions of Section
1158 Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the ongoing requirements for approved compantes 1in Chapter 3 of Part 2
investment Trust (Approved Company) (Tax) Regulations 2011 (Statutory Instrument 2011/2999)

The Directers are of the opinion that the Company has conducted and will continue to conduct its affairs so as to
maintain nvestment trust status

The Company has also conducted its affairs, and will continue to conduct its affairs, 1n such a way as to comply with the
Indwidual Savings Accounts Regulabons The Ordinary shares can be held in Individual Savings Accounts (1SAs)

Financial Review
For the year to 31 March 2015 the net asset value total returm was 28 3% against a benchmark total return of 23 3%
The share price total return was 29 5%

At 31 March 2015 the net assets of the company amounted to £1,010,045 (2014 £809,438,000), on a per share
basis 318 12p (2014 254 94p) per share

Revenue eamings for the year amounted tc 8 89p (2014 8 09p) and the directors reccmmend the payment of a final
dividend of 4 75p (2014 4 60p) per share bringing the total dwidend for the year to 770p (2014 745p), an increase
of 3 4% for the full year In arrving at their dvidend proposal, the Board also reviewed the income forecasts for the year
to March 2016

Full detaiis and analysis of the eamings and capita! performance for the year are set out in the Chairman's Statement
and Manager's Report starting on page 3 of the Annual Report

Share capital and Buy-back Activity
At 1 Apnl 2015 the Company had 317,500,980 (2014 317,500,980) Ordinary shares in issue

At the AGM in 2014 the directors were given power to buy back 47593,396 Ordinary shares Since this AGM the directors
have not bought back any Ordinary shares under this authonty The outstanding authonty 15 therefore 47.593,396 shares

This authonty will expire at the 2015 AGM The Company will seek to renew the power to make market purchases of
Ordinary shares at this year's AGM

Since 1 Apnl 2015 to the date of this report, the Company has made no market purchases for canceflation

The Board has not set a specific discount at which shares will be repurchased However, around 171 mithon Ordinary
shares have been repurchased since the Board first took the decision to buy back shares in 1999
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Report of the Directors contnued

Management Arrangements and Fees
For the period up to 11 July 2014 investment management services were provided by Thames River Capital LLP under
the {nvestment Management Agreement

On 11 July 2014, the Board appointed F&C Investment Business Limited as the Altemnative Investment Fund Manager
(in accordance with the Altermative Investment Fund Managers Directive) with portfolio management delegated to the
former Investment Manager, Thames Rver Capital LLP

The significant terms of the Investment Management Agreement with the Manager are as follows

30

Notice Period
The investment Management Agreement (“IMA") provides for termination of the agreement by erther party without
compensation on the provision of not less than 12 menths’ wntten notice

Management Fees

The fee for the penod under review was a fixed fee of £3,325,000 plus an ad valerum fee of 0 20% pa based on
the net asset value (determined in accordance with the AIC method of valuation) on the last day of March, June,
September and December, payable quarierly n advance

The management fee included fund accounting and administrative sennces, safe custody and company secretanal
services which are all prowided by third parties The Company had a direct contractual relationship with the parties
providing these senices and the fees incurred were deducted from the gross fees due to the Manager

The fee amangerments were reviewed by the Board at the MEC meeting 1n March 2015 For the year to 3t March 2016
and going forward the fees incurred for the third party services described above will be paid directly by the Company and
the fund management fee will be stated net of these fees For the year to 31 March 2016 the fixed fee element will be
£2,975,000 plus an ad valorum fee of 020pa The fee amangements will be reviewed once agan in March 2016

Performance Fees
in addition to the management fees, the Board has agreed to pay the Manager performance related fees in respect
of an accounting pernod if certain performance objectives are achieved

A performance fee 1s payable if the total return of adjusted net assets (after deduction of all Base Management Fees
and other expenses), as defined in the IMA, at 31 March each year outperforms the total return of the Company's
benchmark plus 1% (the *hurdle rate”), this cutperformance (expressed as a percentage) 1s known as the “percentage
outperformance” Any fee payable will be the amount equivalent to the adjusted net assets at 31 March each year
multplied by the percentage outperformance, then multplied by 15%

For the pericd under review the maximum performance fee payable for the penod was capped at 2% of the
adjusted net assets However, if the adjusted net assets at the end of any penod are less than at the beginning of
the period, the maximum performance fee payable will be limited to 1% of the adjusted net assets

For the year to 31 March 2016, the performance fee cap of 2% of the adjusted net assets has been reduced to 1 5%

If the total retum of shareholders’ funds for any performance penod 15 less than the benchmark for the relevant performance
penod, such underperformance (expressed as a percentage) will be carmed forward to future performance periods

If any fee exceeds the cap, such excess performance (expressed as a percentage) will be camed forward and
apphed to offset any percentage undesperformance in future performance penods

in the event that the benchmark 1s exceeded but the hurdle 15 not, that outperformance of the benchmark can be
used to offset past or future underperformance These amounts can be used for offset purposes only and therefore
cannot have the effect of creating a fee In a year where a fee would not otherwise be payable or increasing the fee
in that year At 31 March 2015 there 1s a carry forward of outperformance of 1 8% (2014 1 8%)
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Report of the Directors contnued

No fee will be payable uniess the adjusted net assets outperform the hurdle rate, after taking into account any
accumulated percentage underperformance brought forward at the beginning of the financial year

Performance fees earned in the year ended 31 March 2015 were £7,745,000 (2014 £9,669,000)

Total fees paid to the Manager 1n any one year {Management and Performance Fees) may not exceed 4 99% of
Group Equity Shareholders’ Funds Total fees payable for the year to 31 March 2015 amount to 1 3% (2014 1 8%)
of Group Equity Sharehoiders Funds

Depository Arrangements and Fees

BNP Panbas was appoinied as Depository on 14 July 2014 in accordance with the Alternative investment Fund Managers
Directive The role 15 a new one mtroduced by the Directwe The Depository's responsibiliies indude cash monitonng,
segregation and safe keeping of the Company's financial instruments, and monitonng the Company's comphance with
mvestment and leverage requirements The Depository receves for its services a fee of 2 0 basis points per annum on the
first GBP 150m of the Company's assets, 14 basis ponts per annum on assets above GBP 150m and below GBP 500m
and 0 75 basis points on assets above GBP 500m

Custody, Admirustration and Company Secretanal Services

Custody and Admiristration Services are provided by BNP Panbas and Company Secretaral Services by Capita Company
Secretanal Services For the year under review the fees for these services were included 1n the Investment Management
Fee From 1 Apnl 2015 these will be charged directly to the Company and separately disclosed in the accounts

Basis of accounting and IFRS

The Group and Company financal statements far the year ended 31 March 2015 have been prepared on a gong concern
basis in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), which comprise standards and interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB), together with interpretations of the Intermational
Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee approved by the Intemational Accounting Standards
Committee (JASC) that remain In effect, to the extent that they have been adopted by the European Union and as regards
the Group and Company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

The accounting policies are set out in note 1 to the Ainancial Statements on pages 51 to 54

Going Concern

The Manager has prepared forecasts which have been reviewed by the Board which demonstrate that the Company will
be able to continue to meet 1ts habilities as and when they fall due In addition to 1its cash and remaiming uncalled debt
facilties, the assets of the Company consist mainly of secunties which are readily realisable and, accordingly, the Board
considers that the Company has adequate resources to meet 1ts business needs and it 1s therefore appropnate to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements

Annual General Meeting (the “AGM")

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 21 July 2015 at 12 00 noon The Notice of Annual General Meeting 15 set
out on pages 73 to 76 This notice contams resolutions to receve the Report of the Directors and audited financial
statements, approve the directors’ remuneration report, re-appoint the auditors and empower the Directors to set ther
fees The Directors are also seeking powers to allot ordinary shares, dis-apply statutory pre-emption nghts, and buy back
ordinary shares for cancellation The full text of the resalutions and an explanation of each is contained in the Notice of
Annual General Meeting and explanatory notes on pages 77 to 78

Material Interests

There were no contracts subsisting during or at the end of the year 1n which a director of the Company 15 or was
materially interested and which s or was significant in relation to the Company’s business No director has a contract
of service with the Company Further details regarding the appomntment letters can be found on page 36

TR Propeny Investent Trust 31



GOVERNANCE

Report of the Directors contnued

Donations
The Company made no political or chantable donations duning the year (2014 £nil)

Voting Interests

Rights and obligations attaching to shares

Subject to applicabie statutes and other shareholders’ nghts, shares may be issued with such nghts and restnctions as
the Company may by ordinary resolution deaide, or (if there 1s no such resolution or so far as it does not make specific
proviston} as the Board may deade Subject to the Articles, the Companies Act 2006 and other shareholders' nghts,
unissued shares are at the disposal of the Board

Voting
At a general meeting of the Company, when voting 1s by a show of hands, each share affords its owner one vote

Restrictions on vobing

No member shall be entitled to vote if he has been served with a restnction notice (as defined in the Articles) after
failure to provide the Company with information concerning mterests in those shares required to be provided under the
Companies Act 2006

Deadlines for voting rights
Votes are exercisable at the general meeting of the Company 1n respect of which the business being voted upon I1s being
heard Votes may be exercised in person, by proxy, or in relation to corporate members, by corporate representatives

The Articies provide a deadline for submission of proxy forms of not less than 48 hours (or such shorter time as the
Board may determine} before the meeting (not excluding non-working days)

Transfer of shares

Any shares In the Company may be held in uncertificated form and, subject to the Artides, title to uncertificated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant system Subject to the Articles, any member may transfer all or any of his
certificated shares by an instrument of transfer in any usual form or 10 any other form which the Board may approve

The instrument of transfer must be executed by or on behalf of the transferor

The Board may decline to register a transfer of a certificated share unless the instrument of transfer (1) 1s duly stamped
or certified or othenwise shown to the satisfaction of the Board to be exempt from stamp duty and is accompanied by
the relevant share certificate and such other evidence of the nght to transfer as the Board may reasonably require, (1) s 1n
respect of only one class of share, and (i) if joint transferees, are in favour of not more than four such transferees

The Board may dechne to register a transfer of any of the Company’s certificated shares by a person with a 0 25%
interest (as defined in the Articles) 1f such a person has been served with a restriction notice (as defined in the Articles)
after failure to provide the Company with information concerning mterests in those shares required to be provided
under the Companies Act 2006, unless the transfer is shown to the Board to be pursuant to an arm'’s length sale (as
defined in the Articles)

Significant Voting Rights
At 31 March 2015, no shareholders held over 3% of voting nghts on a discretionary basis However, at 31 March 2015
the following shareholders held over 3% of the voting nghts on a non-discretionary basis
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% of

Ordinary share

Shareholder voting nghts*
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd - 726%

Aliiance Trust plc 6 94%

Brewin Dolphin Limited 681%

Old Mutual ple 6 59%

investec Limited 6 26%

HSBC Holdings plc 561%

* See page 32 for further information on the voting nghts of Ordinary shares

Snce 31 March 2015 to the date of this report, the Company has been informed that the voting nghts held by Investec Limited
had reduced to 509% due to a change in their terms and conditons regarding voting nights to discretionary chent holdings

Corporate Governance Report
The Board of directors is accountable to shareholders for the governance of the Company's affairs

This statement describes how the prinaples of the UK Corporate Govemnance Code (“the Code™) issued by the Financial
Reporting Counaif {the "FRC") in 2012 have been applied to the affairs of the Company The Code can be viewed at
www frc org uk

Application of the AIC Code's Principles

in applying the principles of the Code, the directors have also taken account of the Code of Corporate Governance
published by the AIC ('the AIC Code"), which established the framework of best practice specfically for the Boards of
nvestment trust compantes There 15 some overlap in the pninaples laxd down by the two Codes and there are some areas
where the AIC Code 1s more flexible for investment trust compares The AIC Code can be viewed at www theaic co uk

The directors believe that dunng the penod under review they have complied with the Main Prinaiples and relevant
provisions of the Code, msofar as they apply to the Company’s business, and with the prowisions of the AIC Code

Compliance Statement
The directors acknowledge that the Company did not comply with the following prowisions of the Code in the year
ended 31 March 2015

A2 1 Due to the nature and structure of the Company the Board of non-executwe directors does not feel it is necessary
to appoint a chief executive

B 21 The Board does not have a separate Nomination Committee Dunng the year, this funchon was camed out by the
Board as part of the agenda of regular Board meetings when required However, the Board has decided to introduce a
Nomination Committee for the year ending 31 March 2016 to ensure there 15 additional focus on succession planning
in the future

C35 & C3 6 As the Company has no employees and its operational functions are undertaken by third parties, the Audnt
Committee does not consider 1t necessary for the Company to establish its own internal audit function

D2 1 The Board does not have a separate Remuneration Committee The functions of a Remuneration Committee are
carned out by the Management Engagement Committee

Composition and Independence of the Board

The Board currently consists of six directors, all of whom are non-executive and are independent of the Manager None
of the directors have any other hinks to the Manager The Board beleves that diversity of expenence and approach,
including gender diversity, amongst board members 15 of great importance and it 1s the Company’s policy to give careful
consideration to issues of board balance and diversity when making new appointments
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Powers of the directors

Subject to the Company's Articles of Assocration, the Comparies Act and any directions given by speaial resolution, the
bustness of the Company is managed by the Board who may exercise all the powers of the Company, whether relating to the
management of the business of the Company or not. In particular, the Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to
borrow money and to mortgage or charge any of its undertakings, property, assets and uncalled capital and to 1ssue
debentures and other secunties and to give secunty for any debt, hability or abligation of the Company to any thid party

There are no contracts or arrangements with third parties which effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the
Company

irectors

The Chairman 1s Ms Burton and the Senior Independent Director 1s Mr Seaborn The directors” biographies, on page 27,
demonstrate the breadth of mvestment, commeraial and professional experience relevant to their posttions as directors
of the Company

Directors’ retirement by rotation and re-election 15 subject to the Articles of Asscaation In accordance with the Code, all
directors will be subject to annual re-election

Ms Burton, Mr Glen, Mr Marnison, Mr Seaborn, Ms Procter and Mr Watson will retire at the forthcoming AGM i
accordance with the Code and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election All directors are regarded as being
free of any conflicts of interest and no issues In respect of independence anise The Board has concluded that all
directors continue to make valuable contributions and believe that they remain independent in character and judgement

Board Committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee and a Management Engagement Commuttee, which also cames out the
funchons of a Remuneration Committee  Further details are set out below As mentoned above, the Board does not
currently have a Nommation Committee During the year this function was carmed out by the Board as part of the agenda of
regular Board meetings when required However, the Board has deaded to mtroduce a separate Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2016 to ensure additional tme and focus 1s made to consider succession plannming &
management of the board evaluation process

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (“the Committee”) compnses all the members of the Board It has been the Company's pohicy,
to include all directors on all committees This encourages unity, clear communication and prevents duplication of
discussion between the Board and the Commuttee The Committee Charman 1s Mr Watson The Board has satished
itself that at least one Committee member has recent and relevant financial expenence

The Committee has written terms of reference, which clearly define its responsibiiies and duties These can be found
on the Company's website, are available on request and will also be avallable for inspection at the AGM

The Comimittee meets at least twice a year to review the intemal financial and non-finanaal controls and to review reports thereon
from the key third party service providers, to consider and recommend to the Board for approval the contents of the draft
Intenmm and Annual Reports to shareholders, and to review the accounting policies and significant financial reporting judgements,
and, together with the Manager, reviews the Cormpany’s comphance with financial reporting and regulatory requirements

The Committee considers the information and statements incuded n the Annual and Intenm Reports to ensure that,
taken as a whole, the Reports are fair, balanced and understandable and the information presented enables the
shareholders to assess the company's performance, business model and strategy

Representatives of the Manager's internal audit and compliance departments may attend these committee meetings at
the Committee Chairman’s request
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Representatives of the Company’s Auditor attend the Committee meetings at which the draft Intenm and Annual
Report and Accounts are reviewed, and are given the opportunity to speak to the Committee members without the
presence of the representatives of the Manager

Sigmficant Issues in Relation to the Financial Statements

The Committee has considered this report and finanaial statements and the Statement of Going Concern on page
31 The Committee considered the Auditor's assessment of nsk of matenal nmisstatement and reviewed the internal
controls in place in respect of the key areas identfied and the process by which the Board monitors each of the
procedures to give the Commuttee comfort on these nsks on an ongoing basis These risks are also highlighted 1n
the Company's Risk Map which 1s considered at each Audit Committee Meeting,

e Valuation of the Group's investments ~ The Group's investments are priced for the daily NAV by BNP Panbas
The quoted assets are pniced by the Administrator's Global Pneing Platform which uses independent external pnaing
sources The control process surrounding this 1s set out in the BNP Panbas AAF 01/06 Internal Controls Report and
testing by the reporting accountant for the peniod reported to 31 December 2014 did not reveal any significant
exceptions The quarterly control report to the Board from BNP Panbas covenng the penod up to 31 March 2015
had no issues to report The Company's Investment Property portfolio 1s valued every six months on an open market
basis by a professional external independent valuer

In addinon the Manager estimates the NAV using an alternative pncing source on a dally basis as an ndependent check

o Calculaton of Management and Performance Fees — These are calculated independently of the Manager by the
Adminsstrator The calculabions are rewiewed by the Auditor as part of the Audit Engagement and specifically reported
on to the Board in the Independent Auditors’ Report

s Existence and ownership of investments — The Custodian, BNP Paribas, 1s responsible for the custody of the
Company's investments Lists of investments held are reconciled to the Company's records on a regular basis and a
report on controls, which is audited by BNP Paribas’ independent reporting accountants, is produced annually for
consideration by the Manager and the Audit Cormmittee In addition, the quarterly contral report from BNP Parbas to
the Board covers any custody issues The Depositary's responsibilities include the segregation and safekeeping of the
Company's assets The Depositary reports quarterly to the AIFM and these reports are made available to the board
The Depositary presents to the board at least once a year The Depositary conducts safekeeping reviews as part of its
monitonng and oversight responsibiiites

There has been nothing brought to the Commuttee’s attention in respect of the financial statements for the penod ended
31 March 2015, which was matenal or significant or that the Commuttee felt should be brought to shareholders’ attention

Audttor assessment and independence

The Company’s external auditor 1s Emst & Young LLP In 2007, the Company conducted a full review of the services
prowded by the Auditor and invited the ncumbent and three other firms to subrmit proposals for the audit of the
Company A full tender process was undertaken with each of the four firms presenting thewr proposals in full to the
Board The conclusion of this process was that Emst & Young LLP should be reappointed

The Commuttee expects to repeat this process in 2016 in respect of the audit for the year ended 31 March 2017, 1n
hine with the latest Corporate Govemance provisions and EU Requirements

Emst & Young presented their Audit Plan for the year end at the intenm Committee meeting and the Commitiee
considered the audit process and fee proposal The Committee also reviewed Emst & Young's independence policies
and procedures including quality assurance procedures, it was considered that these policies remamned fit for purpose
and the Board 15 satisfied that Emst & Young remam ndependent

Total fees payable to the Auditor for the year to 31 March 2015 were £87,000 (2014 £91,000)
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The Committee has approved and implemented a policy on the engagement of the Auditor to supply non-audit
services, taking into account the recommendations of the Accounting Practices Board with a view to ensunng that the
external Auditor does not prowide non-audit services that have the potential to impair or appear to impair the
independence of their audit role The Committee does not believe there to be any impediment to the Auditor's
objectvity and independence

The fees for non-audit services for the year to 31 March 2015 were il (2014 £mi)
Full details of the Auditor's fees are provided in note 6 to the accounts on page 56

Following each audt, the Commuttee reviews the audit process and considers #s effectiveness and the quality of the
services provided to the Company The review following the completion of the 2015 Audd concluded that the
Committee was satisfied with the Audstors effectiveness and performance and therefere a resclution to re-appoint Emst
& Young as the Company’s Auditor wili be put to shareholders at the forthcoming AGM

Management Engagement Committee
The Management Engagement Committee (“MEC”) comprises all directors of the Company and s chaired by Ms Burton
The MEC meets at least on an annuaj basis, towards the end of the financial year The MEC met in March 2015

The MEC reviews, on an annual basis, the performance of the AIFM and the Portfolio Manager and therr continued suitabiity
to manage the Company's portfohio It also reviews the terms of the Investment Management Agreement, to ensure they are
competiive and fair and in the best interests of the shareholders, and to negotiate terms where appropnate

At the MEC meeting in March 2015, the MEC confirmed that the AIFM and Portfolio Manager should be retained for the
financial year ending 31 March 2016 In additon to the investment Management role, the Board has delegated to
external third parties the deposttary and custodial senvices (which include the safeguarding of assets), the day to day
accounting, company secretanal services, administration and registration services Each of these contracts was entered
into after full and proper consideraton of the quality of the senices offered, including the control systems in operation
nsofar as they relate to the affairs of the Company These contracts are reviewed annually by the MEC

In addition to the reviews by the MEC, the Board reviews and considers performance reports from the Portiolio Manager
at each Board meeting The Board also recewes regular reports from the Administrator and Company Secretary and the
Portfolio Manager also reports to the Board on the performance of all other third party senice providers at each meeting

Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration 1s reviewed by the MEC on an annual basis The MEC determines and approves directors’ fees
following proper consideration, having regard to the level of fees payable to non-executive directors in the mdustry
generally, the role that mdwidual directors fulfil in respect of Board and Committee responsibiiies and the tme
committed to the Company's affairs The Company's Articles of Association currently imit the total aggregate fees
payable to the Board of £300,000 per annum The results of the most recent review are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 40 and 41

Letters of Appointment

No director has a contract of employment with the Company Directors’ terms and conditions for appointment are set
out I letters of appomntment which are availlable for nspection at the registered office of the Company and will be on
display at the AGM

Board Evaluation

in order to review the effectiveness of the Board and its Committees and of the indiwidual directors, the Board carned
out an appraisal process This was implemented by way of a questionnaire and interiews with the Chairman The
process is considered by the Board to be constructive in terms of identfying areas for improving the functioring and
performance of the Board and the Commuttees, areas for additional focus going forward, the contnbution of indwidual
directors, as well as building on and developing individual and collective strengths
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The Chairman’s effectiveness was assessed by all other Board members and views fed back to the Senior Independent
Director The Chairman and the Senior Independent Director confirm that the performance of each director continues to
be effective and demonstrates therr commitment to therr role This includes extensive time for ad hoc communications
throughout the year in addition to formal board and committee meetings The Board believes it has a good balance of
skills, expenence and length of service o ensure it operates effectively The performance of the Company 1s considered
i detail at each Board meeting In accordance with the prowisions of the Code, 1t is the intenticn of the Board to engage
an external facilitator to assist wath the performance evaluation every three years

Appointment of New Directors

The Board annually reviews its size and structure, and s responsible for succession planning Going forward this role wall
be carned out by the Nommation Commuttee, who will also manage the appointment process for new directors The
Board appoints extemnal recruitment consultants to ensure best practice

Directors’ Training

When a new director 1s appointed, he/she 1s offered training to suit their needs Directors are also provided with key
information on the Company's activities on a regular basis, ncluding regulatory and statutory requirements and internal
controls Changes affecting directors’ respansibilities are adwised to the Board as they anse Directors ensure that they
are updated on regulatory, statutory and industry matters

Board Meetings
The number of meetings of the Board and Cormmittees held dunng the year under review, and the attendance of
indwvdual directors, are shown below

Board Audit MEC

2

No of meetings in the year
Cargline Burton

John Glen

Simon Marrison

Suzie Procter

Hugh Seaborn

David Watson

o2 JNa o) B4 ) BN I 0 R 03
RN R NN

In addition to formal Board and Commuttee meetings, directors also attend a number of informal meetings to represent
the nterests of the Company

The Beard

The Board 1s responsible for the effective stewardship of the Company's affairs Certain strategic ssues are mornitored by
the Board at meetings aganst a framework which has been agreed with the Manager Additional meetings may be
arranged as required The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for its decision, which are
categonsed under vanous headings, including strategy, management, structure, capital, financal reporting, internal
controls, gearing, asset allocation, share price discount, cantracts, investment policy, finance, nsk, investment restnctions,
performance, corporate governance and Board membership and appointments

In order to enable them to discharge therr responsibilities, all dwectors have full and tmely access to relevant information
At each meeting, the Board reviews the Company's investment performance and considers financial analyses and other
reports of an operational nature The Board monitors compliance with the Company's objectives and 1s responsible for
setting asset aflocation and nvestment and geanng hrmits wathin which the Portfolio Manager has discretion to act and
thus supervises the management of the mvestrment portfolio, which is contractually delegated to the Portfolio Manager
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The Board has responsibility for the approval of investments 1n unquoted nvestments and any investments n in-house
funds managed or advised by the Portfolio Manager it has also adopted a procedure for diectors, in the furtherance of
therr dutes, to take independent professional advice at the expense of the Company

Conflicts of Interest

In line with the Companies Act 2006, the Board has the power to authanse any potential conflicts of interest that may
anse and impose such limits or conditions as it thinks fit A register of potential conflicts 1s maintaimed and 15 reviewed
at every Board meeting to ensure all detalls are kept up-to-date Appropnate authonsation will be sought prior to the
appointment of any new director or if any new conflicts anse

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systems of internal controls and for reviewing therr effectiveness
The Portfolio Manager is responsible for the day to day investment management decisions on behalf of the Group
Accounting and company secretanal services have both been outsourced

The internal controls aim to ensure that the assets of the Group are safeguarded, proper accounting records are
matntained, and the financial information used within the business and for publication 1s reliable Control of the nsks
dentrfied, covering financial, operational, compliance and nsk management, 15 embedded in the controls of the Group by
a senes of regular Investment performance and attnbution statements, financial and nsk analyses, AIFM and Portfolio
Manager reports and quarterly control reports Key nsks have been identified and controls put in place to mitgate them,
ncluding those not directly the responsibility of the AIFM or Portfolio Manager The key nisks are explained 1n more detall
n the Strategic Report on page 25

The effectiveness of each third party provider’s internal controls 1s assessed on a continuing basis by the Compliance
and Risk departments of the AIFM and Portfolio Manager, the Administrator and the Company Secretary Each mainitains
1ts own system of internal controls, and the Board and Audit Committee receive regular reports from them The control
systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against matenal misstatement or loss and to
manage, rather than eliminate, risk of failure to achieve objectives

As the Company has no employees and its operational functions are undertaken by third parties, the Audit Committee
does not consider it necessary for the Company to establish its own intemal audit function instead, the Audit Committee
relies on internal control reparts received from its pnncipal service prowiders to satisfy tself as to the controls in place

The Board has established a process for identifying, evaluating and managing any major risks faced by the Group

The Board undertakes an annual review of the Group’s system of internal controls in line with the Turmbull guidance
Business risks have also been analysed by the Board and recorded in a nsk map that is reviewed regularly Each quarter
the Board recewves a formal report from each of the AIFM, Portfolio Manager, the Administrator and the Company
Secretary detailing the steps taken to monitor the areas of nisk, including those that are not directly their responsibility,
and which report the details of any known internal control farlures

The Board also considers the flow of information and the interaction between the third party service providers and the
controls 10 place to ensure accuracy and completeness of the recording of assets and iIncome The Board receives a
report from the Portfolio Manager setting out the key controls and the resuits of the audit testing of these

The Board also has direct access to company secretarial advice and services provided by Capta Company Secretanal
Services, which, through its norminated representative, 15 responsible for ensuring that the Board and Committee
procedures are followed and that applicable regulations are comphed with

These controls have been in place throughout the penod under review and up to the date of signing the accounts

Key nsks dentified by the Auditors are considered by the Audit Committee to ensure robust internal controls and
monitonng procedures are 1n place 10 respect of these nisks on an ongoing basis
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Relations with Shareholders

Shareholder relations are given high prionty by the Board, the AIFM and the Portfolio Manager The pnme medium by
which the Company communicates with shareholders 1s through the Intenm and Annual Reports which aim to
pravide sharehalders with a clear understanding of the Company's actvities and theur results This information 1s
supplemented by the daily calculation of the Net Asset Value of the Company's Crdinary shares which 1s published
on the London Stock Exchange, and intenim management statements

This information 1s also available on the Company's website, www trproperty com together with a monthly factsheet
and Manager commentary

At each AGM a presentation 1s made by the Manager following the business of the meeting Shareholders have the
opportunity to address questions to the Chaimman and the Chairman of the Audt Committee at the AGM Al
shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM

it 1s the intention of the Board that the Annual Report and Accounts and Nohce of the AGM be issued to shareholders
50 as to provide at least twenty working days' notice of the AGM Shareholders wishing to lodge questions in advance
of the AGM, or to contact the Board at any other time, are inwited to do so by wniting to the Company Secretary at the
registered address given on page 79

Ceneral presentations are given to both shareholders and analysts following the publication of the annual results
All meetings between the Manager and shareholders are reported to the Board

Directors’ Indemnity

Dwectors’ and Officers’ hiability insurance cover 1s in place in respect of the directors The Company’s Articles of
Association provide, subject to the provisions of UK legisiation, an indemmnity for directors in respect of costs which they
may incur relating to the defence of any proceedings brought against them ansing out of therr positions as directors, n
which they are acquitted or judgement i1s given in their favour by the court

To the extent permitted by law and by the Company's Articles of Association, the Company has entered into deeds of
indemruty for the benefit of each director of the Company i respect of iabihties which may attach to thern in their
capacity as directors of the Company These provisions, which are qualifying third party indemnity provisions as defined
by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006, were introduced i lanuary 2007 and currently remain in force

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditors
The directors who were members of the board at the time of approving the directors’ report are hsted on page 27
Hawing made enquines of fellow directors and of the Company’s auditors, each of these directors confirms that

o to the best of each director’s knowledge and belief, there 1s no information (that 1s, information needed by the
group’s auditors in connection with prepanng therr report) of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

e each director has taken all the steps a director might reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

This informatron 1s given and should be interpreted 1n accordance with the prowsions of Section 418 of the Companies
Act 2006

By order of the Board
Caroline Burton
Chairman

9 June 2015
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Introduction

The Board has prepared this report and the Directors Remuneration Policy, in accordance with the requirements of
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2013 An
ordmary resolution for the approval of this report will be put to the members at the forthcorming Annual General Meeting

The law requires the Company’s Auditors, Ermst & Young LLP, to audtt certan of the disclosures provided Where
disclosures have been audrted, they are indicated as such The Audttor’s opinion is included 1n the ‘Independent
Auditor’s Report’

Annual Statement from the Chairman of the Committee

Directors’ remuneration 1s reviewed annually by the Management Engagement Committee (MEC) compnsing the
Chairman and all directors of the Company The MEC met in March and considered the feedback received as part of
the board evaluation alongside other factors Non-executive fees of listed companies continue to nse, and the regulatory
burden continues ever upwards, particularly given the implementation of AIFMD However, at the MEC meeting in
March 2015 it was agreed that there would be no change to directors’ remuneration for 2015/16

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The Company’s policy 1s that the fees payable to the directors should reflect the time spent by the Board on the
Company’s affars and the responsibilibes borme by the directors and should be sufficient to enable candidates of high
calibre to be recruted The pohicy is for the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Senior Independent Director to be paid higher fees than the other directors 1n recognition of their more onerous roles
Thus policy was approved by the members at the 2014 AGM, and will continue for the year ending 31 March 2016 and
subsequent years In accordance with the reguiations, an ordinary resolution to approve the directors’ remuneration
policy will be put to Shareholders at least once every three years

The directors are remunerated in the form of fees, payable monthly in arrears, to the director personally or to a third
party specified by that director There are no long term incentive schemes, share option schemes or pension
arrangements and the fees are not specifically related to the directors’ performance, either indvidually or collectively

The Board consists entirely of non-executive directors, who are appointed with the expectation that they will serve for
a penod of three years Directors’ appointments are reviewed formally every three years thereafter by the Board as a
whole None of the directors have a contract of service and a director may resign by notice in witing to the Board at
any time, there are no notice periods The terms of their appointment are detaided in a letter to them when they join
the Board As the Directors do not have service contracts, the Company does not have a policy on termination payments

There 15 no notice penod and no payments for loss of office were made durning the penod

Shareholders’ views in respect of Directors’ remuneration are communicated at the Company’s AGM and are taken into
account in formulating the Directors remuneration policy At the last AGM, over 98 per cent of Shareholders voted for
the resolution approving the Drrectors’ Remuneration Report (1 7 per cent against) and over 97 per cent voted for the
resolution approving the Directors’ Remuneration Policy (2 per cent against), showing significant shareholder support

Annual Remuneration Report

The MEC comprises ali the Directors of the Company The Charrman of the Committee i1s Caroline Burton As the
Company has no executive Directors, the MEC meets, at least annually, to review the remuneration and terms of
appointment of the Investment Manager, and the level of the Board's fees, in accordance with the UK Corporate
Govemance Code .

For the year ended 31 March 2015, directors’ fees were paid at the annual rates of Chairman £70,000 (2014 £70,000),
Audit Commuittee Chairman and Senior Independent Dwector £35,000 (2014 £35,000) and all other directors £30,000
(2014 €30,000) The actual amounts paid to the directors dunng the financial year under review are as shown overleaf
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(
Amount of each director's emoluments (audited) h
The fees payable in respect of each of the directors who served dunng the financial year were as follows
"3 March2015 | 31 March 2014
‘ £l 3
C M Burton ' 70,000 59,063
J Glen 30,000 3,486
S Mamson 30,000 ' 30,000
S Procter 30,000 ' 30,000
P L Salsbury (retired on 23 July 2013) ’ n/a 21,875
H Seabom 35,000 33,438
D Watson 35,000 | 35,000
Total " 230,000 ' 212,862
No other remuneration or compensation were paid or payable by the Company dunng the year to any of the current
\or former directors

S/

Company Performance

The graph below compares, for the seven years ended 31 March 2015, the percentage change over each period in the
share pnce total retur to shareholders compared to the share price total return of benchmark, which the Board
considers to be the most appropnate benchmark for nvestment performance measurement purposes An explanation
of the performance of the Company 1s given in the Chaiman's Statement and Manager’s Report.

Directors’ Interests in Shares (audited)

The interests of the Directors in the shares of the
Company, at the beginming and at the end of the year, or
date of appomntment, 1f later, were as follows

31 March

j 31 March

: 205 | 2014

Ordinary ¢ Ordinary

shares of shares of

5p 25p

C M Burton ‘ 21,982 ; 21,982

J Glen - -

S Mamson ' 25000 25000

S E Procter 3,363 | -

H Seaborn 34,668 ' 34,668

D Watson 9,237 8,983
Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

ro-- b ] Pefcemage

{ 2015 | 2014 Increase

; £000 | £000 %

Dividends paid | 23971 | 22,860 49

Directors Fees 230 230 -

Performance Graph - Share Price Total Return
for Ordinary Share Class

' 3
4000

7~

o J
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o . A
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Mar Mar Mar Mar Mar Mar Mar
2009 2010 20h 2012 2013 2014 2015

—— 5hare Prce Total Retum assuming nvestment of £1,000 on
31 March 2009 and resvestment of all dvidends (excluding
dealing expenses) (Source Thames River Capital)

—— Benchmark Total Retum assuming notional investment into the
ndex of £1,000 an 31 March 2009 (Source Thames River Caprtal)

. J

For and on behalf of the.Board

Caroline Burto §

Chairman of the Management Engagement Committee
9 June 2015
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GOVERNANCE

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in relation to the Group
financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparng the Report and Accounts in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
law and International Finanaial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

Under Company Law the directars must not approve the Group and Company financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they present farrly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Group and
Company for that period

In prepanng the Group and Company financial statements the directors are required to

o select suttable accounting policies in accordance with 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes 1in Accounting
Estimates and Errors and then apply them consistently,

e present information, iInduding accounting pohicies, 1n a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

e provide addihonal disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS 1s insufficient to enable
users to understand the wnpact of paricular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group and Company’s
financial position and financial performance,

» state that the Group and Company has complied with IFRS, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained 1n the financial statements, and

e make judgements and estmates that are reasonable and prudent

The drrectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group
and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the finanaial posttion of the Group and
Company and enable them to ensure that the Group and Company financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

Responsibility statement
Each of the directors listed on page 27 confirm that to the best of ther knowledge

o the financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union, give a true and fair
view of the assets, habiives, financial position and profit of the Group and Company and the undertakings included
in the consolidation taken as a whole, and,

« the Annual Report, incfudes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the positon
of the Trust, together with a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties that it faces, and

o the accounting records have been properly mantained, and

» the Annual Report, taken as a whole, 1s fair, balanced and understandable and provides the necessary informaticn
for shareholders to assess the company's perfarmance, business model and strategy

By order of the Board

Caroline Burton
Chairrnan
9 June 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the Members of TR Property Investment Trust pic

Optnion on financial statements
In our opinion

¢ The financal statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group’s and Company's affairs as at 31 March
2015 and of the Group’s retum for the year then ended,

o The Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with International Financal
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union,

& The Company's finanaal statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with Internatronal Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Urion
and as apphed in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006,

& The finanoal statements have been prepared in
accardance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the Croup financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS regulation

Opmnion on other matters prescnbed by the Companies
Act 2006
In our opinion

® The part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, and

® The information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’
Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial
statements

What we have audited

We have audited the financal statements of TR Property
Investrnent Trust plc for the year ended 31 March 2015 which
compnse the Cansolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated and Parent Company Statement of
Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and Company Balance
Sheets, the Consoldated and Company Statement of Cash
Flows and the related notes 1 to 23 The financa! reporting
framework that has been applied in therr preparation 1s
applicable law and International Finanaial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we mught state to the Company’s members those matters
we are required to state to them n an auditor's report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we

GOVERNANCE

do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilittes of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Staternent set out on page 42 the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibibty 1s
to audit and express an opinion on the finanaal statements n
accordance with applicable faw and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and lIreland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the finanoal statements are free
from matenal misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or error
This indudes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are approprate to the Group's or Company's
arcumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the finanaal statements 1n additon, we read
all the finanoal and non-financial information in the Annual
Report to identsfy matenal inconsistencres with the audited
financial statements and to 1dentfy any information that 1s
apparently matenally mcorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course
of performing the audit f we become aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or Inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Centrol over the recording and reporting of financal
information and preparation of the financial statements for the
Group and the subsidianes Is camed out by the Company's
admunustrator, BNP and overseen by Thames River and the
Audit Committee In London The Group audit team has
audited all items matenal to the Group and Parent Company
financial statements

OQur assessment of nisks of matenal misstatement

We identified the followsng nsks of matenal missiatement that
had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the
allocation of resources in the audit, and direcang the efforts of
the engagement tearn The Audit Committee have set out their
assessment of the sigrificant 1ssues in refation to the financial
statements on page 35 The table also includes our responses
to the risks
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Independent Auditors’ Report connued

Risk Identified Our Response

The investment portfolo at the year-end compnsed of quoted e  We walked through the controls in place at the accounting
equities (£973,470,000), investment properties admunistrator, BNP Panbas Secunties Senaces over listed
(£75,434,000), contracts for difference (£10,604,000), fixed secunty pncing and holdings

interest {£6,998,000) and an unquoted equity nvestment
(£86,000) Note 10 to the financal statements sets out the
Group's investments held at farr value

e We reviewed the Service Organisation Controls Report
{prepared In accordance with AAF 01/06) of BNP Panbas
Secunties Services for the year ended 31 December 2014,

The valuation of the assets held in the investment portfolio 1s the reporting accountant for which was Mazars, and did

a key dnver of the Company's investment return not identfy exceptions i controls related to the valuation

Incorrect asset pricing of the assets held by the Group could of secunties

have a significant impact on portfolio valuation and, therefore, o  We agreed the year-end prices of each of the quoted
the return generated for shareholders equities, cantracts for difference and fixed interest
securities 10 an ndependent source

o We performed a walkthrough of the property valuation
pracess, ncluding the controls in place over the provision
of valuaton data to the valuer and review of the valuations
by Thames River Capstal

e We evaluated the independence and qualifications of
Deloitte LLP in accordance with International Standard on
Auditing 620 "Using the Work of an Expert”

s We engaged EY property valuation experts to review the
inputs, assumptions and valuation methods used by
Delonte LLP for a sample of mvestment properties We
concluded that the assumptions and methods used in
establishing the valuations were appropnate

e We reviewed the methods and assumptions used by
Thames River Capital to assess the valuation of the
unquoted equity investment The valuation of the
unquoted nvestment 1s below our performance matenality
threshold and as a result our testing was restnicted to
assessing the likelhoed that the valuation was matenally
understated
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Independent Auditors’ Report contnved

Risk identified
Fallure to maintain proper legal title of the assets held by the o
Group could have a significant impact on portfolio valuation

and, therefore, the return generated for shareholders

Our Response i

We reviewed the Service Organisatton Controls Report
(prepared in accordance with AAF 01/06) of BNP Panbas
Secunties Services for the year ended 31 December 2014,
the reporting accountant for which was Mazars, and did
not identfy exceptions m controls related to the execution
and recording of secunties transactions

We agreed the number of shares held for each secunty to
confirmations of legal title recewed from the Company's
custodian and depositary BNP Panbas Secunty Services

We agreed the contracts for difference held at the year-
end to an independent canfimation from the broker, ING
Bank NV

We independently confirmed with the Company's solicitors
that the Company holds title deeds to all investment
properties and that they are free from any liens or charges

Management and performance fees represent the Company's e
largest expenses and the performance fee 15 calculated using a
methodology as set out in the Ordinary Managament

Agreement between the Company and the Manager The
calculation methodology for management and performance

fees 15 given In the Report of the Directors on pages 30 and

31 Note 5 to the financial statements sets out the

management and performance fees for the year ended

31 March 2015

Incorrect calculationzof these fees could have a matenal
impact on the return generated for shareholders

We walked through the systems and controls of the
accounung admimsstrator, BNP Panibas Secunities Services,
in respect of the calculation of management and
performance fees

We re-performed the management and performance fee
calculations and confirmed they were performed in line
with the methodology set out in the Ordinary Management
Agreement

We validated the external inputs used In the calculation to
thurd party data

We tested the allocation of management and performance
fees between the income and capital return columns of
the income Statement and confirmed it had been
performed i line with the accounting policy set out on
page 51
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Our application of materiality

We determined planning matenality for the Group to be
£101m (2014 £8 1m) which 1s 1% of total equity This
provided a basis for determining the nature, timing and extent
of our nsk assessment procedures, identfying and assessing
the risks of matenal misstatement and determining the nature,
trmung and extent of further audit procedures We have denved
our matenalty calculation based on a proportion of total equity
as we consider it to be the most wnportant fimanaial metnc on
which shareholders would judge the performance of the
Group and Company

On the basis of our nsk assessments, together with our
assessment of the Group's overall control environment, our
Judgment was that overall performance matenality (ie, our
tolerance for misstaternent in an indnidual account or balance)
for the Group should be 75% of planning materialty, namely
£76m (2014 £6 1m) Our objective in adopting this approach
was to ensure that total undetected and uncorrected audit
differences in all accounts did not exceed our planning
matenality level

CGwven the importance of the distinction between revenue and
capital for the Group we have also applied a separate
performance matenality of £1 6m {2014 £1 5m) for the
revenue column of the Income Statement, being 5% of the
return on ordinary activities before taxation

We agreed with the Audit Commuttee that we would report all
audit differences In excess of £505,000 (2014 £405,000) as
well as differences below that threshold that, in our view,
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements aganst both the
qualitative measures of matenality discussed above and In the
light of other refevant qualitative considerations

Matters on which we are required to repaort by
exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the 15As (UK and Ireland), we are required to report to
you if, m aur opimion, information n the Annual Report 1s

® Matenally inconsistent with the information in the audited
financial statements, or

e Apparently matenally mcorrect based on, or matenally
Inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Company acquired
in the course of performing our audit, or

¢ Othenwise musleading

46 TR Property Imvestimens Trust

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have
identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge
acquired dunng the audit and the Directors’ statement that
they consider the Annual Report 1s fair, balanced and
understandable and whether the Annual Report appropnately
discloses those matters that we communicated to the Audit
Commuttee which we consider should have been disclosed

Under the Comparues Act 2006 we are required to report to
you I, n our opinion

e Adequate accounting recards have not been kept, or
returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not wvisited by us, or

® The financal statements and the part of the Direclors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and retumns, or

e Certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made, or

& We have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

® The Directors’ statement, set out on page 31 in refation to
going concern, and

® The part of the Carporate Governance Staternent relating
to the Company’s comphance wath the ten prowsions of
the UK Comporate Governance Code speched for our

review %‘, 41“7 ‘4

Ashley Coups

{(Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and cn behalf of Ernst & Young LLP,
Statutory Auditor

tondon

9 june 2015




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Year ended 31 March 2015 Year ended 31 March 2014
Revenue Capital Revenue Capual
Return Retumn Total Retum Retum Total
Notes £000 £000 E£000~ £000 £000 £'000
Investment Income
Investment income 2 29,315 - 29,315 27,791 - 27791
Other operating income 4 348 - 348 7 - 7
Gross rental income 3 3,065 - 3,065 3,384 - 3,384
Service charge income 3 1,413 - 1413 1,448 - 1,448
Gans on investrments held at
fair value 10 - 189,246 189,246 - 129,120 129,120
Net movement on foreign
exchange, investments 10 - {2,633) (2,633) - 746 746
Net movement on foreign
exchange, cash and cash
equivalents - {1,585) {1.585) - (393) (393)
Net retumns on contracts
for difference 10 2,548 24,046 26,594 1,303 6,150 7453
Total Income 36,689 209,074 245,763 33,933 135,623 169,556
Expenses
Management and performance fees 5 (1,245) (11,479) {12,724) (1,181) (13,207) (14,388}
Direct property expenses, rent
payable and service charge costs 3 {1,920) - {1,920) {1,850) - {1,850)
Other administrative expenses 6 (1,117} (a1) (1,158) (890) - {890)
Total operating expenses (4,282) (11,520) {15,802) (3,921) {13,207) (17,128)
Operating profit 32,407 197,554 229,961 30,012 122,416 152,428
Finance costs 7 {1,013) {3,039) {4.052) (792) (2,376} (3,168)
Profit from operations
before tax 31,394 194,515 225,909 29,220 120,040 143,260
Taxation 8 (3,180) 1,849 (1,331) (3,540) 3,095 (445)
Total comprehensive income 28,214 196,364 224,578 25,680 123,135 148,815
Earnings per Ordinary share 9 8.89p 61.85p 70.74p 809 3878p 46 87p

The Total column of this statement represents the Group's Statement of Comprehensive Income, prepared in accordance
with IFRS The Revenue Return and Capital Return columns are supplementary to this and are prepared under guidance
published by the Assouation of Investment Compames All tems in the above statement dernve from continuing operations

All incomne 15 attnbutable to the shareholders of the parent company There are no minonty interests

The notes on pages 51 to 71 form part of these accounts
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

-_—— - — e - - —

Share Share Capital Retaned
Capitat Premium Redemption Earmings
Ordwary Account Reserve Ordemary Tatal
For the year ended 31 March 2015 Notes £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £o00™
At 31 March 2014 79,375 43,162 43,934 642,967 809,438 '
Net profit for the perod - - - 224,578 224,578
Dwidends pad 17 - - - (23,97) (23,971),
At 31 March 2015 79,375 43,162 43,934 843,574 1,010,045
Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
For the year ended 31 March 2014 £'000 £000 £'000 €000 £000
At 31 March 2013 79,469 43,162 43,840 517,748 684,219
Net profit for the penod - - - 148,815 148,815
Shares repurchased (94) - 94 (736) (736)
Dividends paid 17 - - - (22,860) (22,860}
At 31 March 2013 79,375 43,162 43,934 642,957 809,438

The notes on pages 51 to 71 form part of these accounts
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group and Company Balance Sheets

as at 31 March 2015

‘t Group Company Group Company
N . 2015 2015 2004 2014
Notes © = g£o000 _ _ E000 £000 £'000
Non-current assets i R ol !
Investments held at fair value 10 | 1,055,988 1,055988 = 880483 880,483
Investments in subsidianes 10 , - 53517 - 53,305
; 1,055,988 1,109,505 | 880,483 933,788
Deferred taxation asset 12, 237 237 : 200 235
|
' 1,056,225 1,109,742 | 880,683 934,023
| |
Current assets !
Debtors 12 20,882 20,484 ! 11,405 11,385
Cash and cash equivalents 21,427 21,411 9,740 9,599
‘ 42,309 41,895 i 21,145 20,984
|
Current liabilities 13, (88,489) (141,592)| (77390) (145569)
Net current liabilities ! (46,180) (99,697) | (56,245) (124,585)
! |
i
Total assets less current liabilities E 1,010,045 1,010,045 " 824,438 809,438
\
Non-current liabilities 13 ! - - . (15,000) -
Net assets ' 1,010,045 1,010,045 ‘ 809,438 809,438
1
| |
¢ |
Capital and reserves E !
Called up share capital 14 79,375 79,375 79,375 79,375
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 43,162
Capital redemption reserve 15 ¢ 43,934 43,934 43,934 43,934
Retamned earnings 16 1 843,574 843,574 ' 642,967 642,967
Equity shareholders’ funds i 1,010,045 1,010,045 | 809,438 809,438
Net Asset Value per: | |
Ordinary share 19 318.12p 318.12p ]L 254 94p 254 94p

These accounts were approved by the directors of TR Property Investrment Trust plc (Company No 84492) and
authonised for issue on 9 June 2015

rd

C Burton
Director

The notes on pages 51 to 71 form part of these accounts
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group and Company Cash Flow Statements

as at 31 March 2015

Group Company Group Company
2013 2015 2014 2014
€000 £000 £000 £000

net cash inflow from operating activities
Profit from operations before tax 225,909 225,944 149,260 150,400
Financang actwities 4,052 3,860 3,168 3,124

Gans on investments and denvatives held at far value

through profit or loss (213,292) (213,029) . (135270) (136,940)

Reconciliation of operating revenue to ]
i
|
!

Net movement on foreign exchange, cash and cash equivalents 1,585 1,585 393 393
Increase in accrued ncome I (1,197) (814) ‘ (284) (323)
Net sales/(purchases) of investments , 31,737 31,262 (6,163) (30,381)
(Increase)/decrease In sales settlement debtor i (1.622) {1,622) 386 386
Increase/ (decrease) in purchase settlement creditor i 5,448 5,448 | (6,749) (6,749)
Increase in other debtors ! (2a2) (247) } (1,194)  (1,190)
(Decrease)/increase in other creditors l (566) {1,227) 6,663 30,993
Scrip dwvidends included in investment income (1,203) {1.203) (2,641) (2,641)
Net cash inflow from operating activities |

before interest and taxation 50,609 49,957 7569 7072
Interest pad {(4,052) (3,860) {3,168) (3,124)
Taxation paid (1,314) (729) {3,338) (2,384)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 45,243 45,368 1,063 1,564
Financing activities

(23.971)  (23971) | (22.860)  (22,860)
- - (736) (736)
(8000)  (8.000)| 19,000 19,000

Equity dwidends paid
Repurchase of shares
(Repayment)/drawdown of loans

Net cash used in financing activities {31,971) {(31,971) l] (4,596) {4,596)

Increase/(decrease) in cash 13,272 13,397 (2,533) {(3,032)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 9,740 9,599 | 13,666 13,024

Net movement on foreign exchange, cash and cash equvalents | (1.585) (1.585) {393) (393)

1

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year f 21,427 21,411 9,740 9,599

Note

Dwndends receved 29,919 29,919 25,833 25,833

Interest receved 407 407 132 132

The notes on pages 51 to 71 form part of these accounts
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

as at 31 March 2015

1 Accounting policies
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 have been prepared on a going concem basis in accordance with
Intemnational Finanaal Reporting Standards (IFRS), which compnse standards and interpretations approved by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (fASB), together with interpretations of the Intemational Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpretations Committee approved by the Intemational Accounting Standards Comnuttee {IASC) that remain in effect, to the
extent that they have been adopted by the European Uman and as regards the Company finanoal statements, as apphed n
accordance wath the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

The Group and Company financial statements are expressed in Stering, which 1s thewr functional and presentational currency
Sterling 1s the functional curency because 1t 1s the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates
Values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except where otherwise indicated

a) Basis of consohidation
The CGroup accounts consolidate the financial statements and s subsidianes to 31 March 2015

In accordance with 1FRS10 the Company has been designated as an investment entity on the basis that
e It obtains funds from investors and provides those investors wath mvestment management senaces,

e [t commits to its investors that its business purpose 15 to \nvest solely for returns from capital appreciaton and investment
income, and

e It measures and evaluates performance of substantially all of its investments on a farr value basis

Each of the subsidianes of the company was established for the sole purpose of operating or supporting the investment
operations of the company {including raising additional financing), and 1s not wself an mvestrnent entty IFRS 10 sets out that in
the case of controlled entities that support the investment actmvity of the investment entity, those entities should be consolidated
rather than presented as mvestments at fair value Accordingly the Company has consolidated the results and financial positions of
those subsidianes

Subsidianes are consolidated from the date of therr acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains conirol, and
continue to be consolidated unul the date that such control ceases The finanaal statements of subsichanes used in the preparauon
of the consahdated financial statements are based on consistent accounting policies All mtra-group balances and transachons,
incuding unrealised profits ansing therefrom, are eliminated This 1s consistent with the presentation in previous years

All the subsichanes of the Company have been consolidated in these financial statements

b) Income

Dmndend recevable on equity shares are treated as revenue for the year on an ex-dividend basis Where no ex-dmdend date 1s
avallable, dmdends recevable on or before the year end are treated as revenue far the year Prowvision 1s made for any dndends not
expected to be receved Where the Group has elected to receve these dvidends in the form of additonal shares rather than cash
the amount of cash dividend foregone 1s recognised as income Differences between the value of shares receved and the cash
dnadend foregone are recogrised in the caprtal retums of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income The fixed retums on debt
secunties are recognised on a time apportionment basis so as to reflect the effective yield on each such secunty Interest recevable
from cash and short term deposits 1s accrued to the end of the year Stock lending income 1s recognised on an accruals basis

©) Expenses
All expenses and finance costs are accounted for on an accruals basis An analysis of retamed earnings broken down inte revenue and
capital tems 15 given in note 16 In armving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue items except as follows

e Expenses which are madental to the acquisimon or disposal of an investment,

e Expenses are presented as capital where a connection wath the maintenance or enhancement of the value of the mvestments
can be demonstrated,

e One quarter of the base management fee is charged to revenue, with three quarters allocated to capital retum to reflect the
Board's expectations of long term investment returns All performance fees are charged 1o capital retum,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Accounting policies continued

e For the year under review, the base management fee includes a number of third party services induding fund administration,
custody and company secretanal services From 1 Apnl 2015, these senvces will be charged directly to the company and
disclosed separately From 1 Apnil 2015 these expenses, together with the Depositary Fee will be charged on the same basis as
the base management fee, one quarter to income and three quariers to capital

d) Finance costs
The finance cost I respect of capital mstruments other than equity shares 15 calculated so as to give 2 constant rate of return on the
outstanding balance One quarter of the finance cost Is charged to revenue and three quarters to capital return

e) Taxation
Current tax assets and habiliies are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authonhes,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Income tax 15 charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to tems that are credited or charged to equity Otherwise income
tax 15 recogmised n the Group Staterment of Comprehensive Income

The tax effect of different tterns of expenditure 1s allocated between capital and revenue using the Group's effective rate of tax for
the year The charge for taxation 1s based on the profit for the year and takes nto account taxation deferred because of tempaorary
differences between the treatment of certain items for taxaton and accounting purposes

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the camying amounts of assets and habilites m
the Balance Sheet and the comesponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 15 accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method Deferred tax liabilines are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable profits will be avalable against which deductble temporary differences can be utitsed

The Company 1s an investment trust under s 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, 1s not hable for tax on capital
gains Capual gans ansing in subsidiary companies are subject to capital gains tax

f) Investment property

investment property 15 measured nially at cost incuding transaction costs Transaction costs include transfer taxes, professicnal
fees for legal services and imtial teasing commussions to brng the property to the condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost 1s
incurred If the recognition critena are met The purchase and sale of properties 1s recogmised to be effected on the date
unconditonal contracts are exchanged

Subsequent to Inial recognition, Investment property 1s stated at fair value Gains or losses ansing from changes in the far values
are induded in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they anse

Investment property is derecognised when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit 15 expected from 1its disposal Any gains or losses on the retrement or disposal of investment property are recognised in
the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income 0 the year of retirement or disposal

Gains or losses on the disposal of investment property are determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset in the previous full penod financal stetements

Revaluation of Investment Properties

The Group catmies its investment properties at fair value n accordance with IFRS 13, revalued twice a year, with changes in fair
values being recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income The Group engaged Deloitte as independent
valuztion specialists to determine farr value as at 31 March 2015

Valuations of Investment Properties
Determination of the fair value of investment properties has been prepared on the basis defined by the RICS Valuatien Standards
6th Editon (The Red Book) as follows

*The estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an
arm'’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the pariies had each acted knowdedgeably, prudently and without compulsion”

The valuation takes into account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenants' profiles, future revenue streams, capual values
of fixtures and fittings, plant and machinery, any enwironmental matters and the overall repair and condition of the property) and
discount rates applicable to those assets These assumpions are based on focal market condiions exstng at the balance sheet date

TR Property Investment Trus,




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 Accounting polictes continued
In armving at therr estimates of fair values as at 31 March 2015, the valuers have used their market knowledge and professional
judgement and have not only relied solely on histoncal transactional comparables

Rental ncome
Rental income recewvable under operating leases 1s recognised on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease, except for
contingent rental income which is recogrused when 1t anses

Incentives for lessees to enter into lease agreements are spread evenly over the lease term, even if the payments are not made
on such a basis The lease term Is the non-cancellable peniod of the lease together with any further term for which the tenant has
the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease, the directors are reasonably certain that the tenant wall
exerase that option Premiums received to terminate or extend leases are recognised in the capital account of the Group
Staternent of Comprehensive Income when they anse

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

Income ansing from expenses recharged to tenants 1s recognised In the penod in which the expense can be contractually
recovered Semice charges and other such receipts are included gross of the related costs In revenue as the directors consider
that the Group acts as prncipal in this respect

g€ Investments
When a purchase or sale 1s made under contract, the terms of which require delivery within the tmeframe of the relevant market,
the investments concemned are recognised or derecognised cn the trade date

All the Group's investments are defined under IFRS as investments designated as fair value through profit or loss but are also
described in these financial statements as investments held at far value

All investments are designated upon mitial recogniion as held at fair value, and are measured at subsequent reporung dates at
fair value, which, for quoted investments, 15 either the bid price or the last traded price, depending on the convention of the
exchange on which the nvestiment 1s quoted Unguoted investments or investments for which there 1s only an inactive market are
held at fair value which 15 based on valuations made by the directors 1 accordance with IPEVCA guidelines and using current
market prices, trading conditions and the general economic cimate

in its financial statements the Company recognises its investments in subsidianies at fair value, which 15 deemed to be cost
adjusted for movements In net asset value since establishment

Changes in the fair value are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income On disposal, realised gains and
losses are also recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

Denvatives

Denvatives are held at farr value based either on traded prices or directors’ fair valuation to the extent that traded prices are
unavallable Gains and losses on denvative transactions are recognised i the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income They
are recogrused as capital and are shown n the capital column of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income if they are of a
capnal nature and are recognised as revenue and shown tn the revenue column of the Group Statement of Comprehensive
tncome if they are of a revenue nature To the extent that any gains or losses are of a mixed revenue and capital nature, they are
apportioned between revenue and capital accordingly

Contracis for Difference ("CFDs") are synthetic equities and are valued by reference to the investments’ underiying market values

The sources of the returns under the denvative contract (e g notional dwidends, finanang costs, mterest retums and capital
changes} are allocated to the revenue and capital accounts in alignment wath the nature of the underlying source of income and
in accordance with the guidance given n the AIC SORP Notional dnvadend income or expenses ansing on long or short posiuons
are apportioned wholly to the revenue account Notional interest expense on long positions 1s apporttoned between revenue and
capital w accordance with the Board's long term expected returns of the Company (currently determined to be 25% to the
revenue account and 75% to capital reserves) Changes w value relating to underlying price movements of secunttes in relation to
CFD exposures are allocated wholly to capital reserves
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Accounting policies continued

h) Non-current habilities
Al loans and debentures are imitally recognised at cost, being the far value of the consideration recewed, less 1ssue costs where
applicable After inial recognition, all interest beanng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Amortised cost 1s calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlement. The costs of arranging any interest
bearing loans are capttalised and amortised over the life of the loan on an effective Interest rate basis

1) Foreign currency translation
Transactions involving foreign cumrencaies are converted at the raie ruling at the date of the transacton

Foresgn currency monetary assets and habilines are translated into Sterling at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date Foreign
exchange differences are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

1) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash in hand and demand deposits

k) Adoption of new and revised Standards

Standards and interpretations effective in the current period
The accounung policies adopied are consistent with those of the previous consolidated financal statements except as follows
The Group has adopted the following new and amended 1AS, 1FRS and IFRIC Interpretations as of 1 Apnl 2014

e |IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

e IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in Other Entities

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued before the reporting date that become effective after 31 March 2015 will not have a matenal effect on
equity or profit for the subsequent penod The Group has not early adopted any new Internatonal Financial Reporting Standard
or Interpretation

Standards, amendments and mnterpretations ssued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group financial
staternents are listed below

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial tnstrurments which reflects all phases of the finanual instruments
project and replaces 1AS 39 Financial Instruments Recogniton and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9 The
standard ntroduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairmeny, and hedge accounting IFRS 9 1s effectve
for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with eary application permitted Retrospective application is required but
comparative information 1s not compulsory Early application of previous versions of IFRS 9 {2009, 2010 and 2013) 15 permitted if
the date of inibial application 1s before } February 2015 The adoption of IFRS 9 1s unlikely to have a matenal effect on the
classification and measurement of the Fund's financial assets or financial liabities
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2 Investment income
2015 2014
mﬁ'ﬂﬂﬂq E'0C0
Dmdends from UK hsted mvestments 1,550 2,001
Dindends from overseas listed investments 20,646 16,995
Scnp dividends from listed investrments 1,203 2,641
Interest from hsted investments 369 236
Property income distnbutions 5,547 5,918
29,315 27791
3 Net rental income
2015 2014
£000 £'000
Gross rental income 3,065 3,384
Service charge income 1.413 1,448
Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs (1,920) (1.850)
2,558 2,982

Operating leases

The Group has entered into commeraal leases on 13 property portfolio Commercial property leases typically have lease terms
between S and 15 years and include dauses to enable penodic upward rewision of the rental charge according to prevailing
markei conditions Some leases contain options to break before the end of the lease term

Future minmum rentals under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are as follows

2015 2014

£000 €000

Within 1 year 2,200 2,800
After 1 year but not more than S years 5,900 4,800
More than 5 years 3,500 2,100
11,600 9,700

4 Other operating income

2015 2014

£000 £'000

Interest receivable 33 7
Stock lending income 315 -
348 7

Stock lending 1s the temporary transfer of secunties by a lender to a borrower, with an agreement by the bomower to return
equwvalent secunties to the lender at an agreed date Fee income 1s received for making the investments available to the borrower
The pancipal nsks and rewards, namely the market movements 10 share pnces and assoqated dmdend income are retained by
the lender Dunng the penod in which the secunties are on loan the lender is restncted from trading in the securites on loan tn
all cases the secunties lent continue to be recognised on the balance sheet

All securies lent under these ariangements were fully secured against collateral At 31 March 2015, there were no secunties on loan

The maximum aggregate value of secunties on loan dunng the year was £69,663,000 (2014 nl)
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Management and performance fees

2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
= Revenue mee=CaprtalwwemeTotal-{  Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 €000
Management fee 1,245 3,734 4,979 1,181 3,538 4719
Performance fee - 7745 1745 - 9,669 9,669
1.245 11,479 12,724 1,181 13,207 14,388
A summary of the terms of the management agreement 15 given in the Report of the Directors on pages 30 io 31
Other administrative expenses
2015 2014
£000 £'000
Drrectors’ fees (Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 40 to 41) 230 213
Auditors’ remuneration
— {or audtt of the consolidated and parent company financial statemends 72 70
— for audit of the finanaal statements of subsidianes pursuant to legislation 10 16
— for other assurance senvices {intenm accounts and Trustee letters) 5 5
Legal fees 54 12
Taxation fees 69 65
Other expenses 476 445
Irecoverable VAT 201 64
Expenses charged to Revenue 1,117 890
Expenses charged to Capital 41 -
1,158 890

The capital expenses relate to VAT on costs incurred in connection with the extension of the residential leases on The Colonnades

where the lease premiums are recognised n the capital account

Finance costs

2015 2014
£'000 £000

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable wathin 1 year 2,279 1,395
Debentures repayable between 1 and 5 years 1,773 1,773
4,052 3,168

Amount allocated to capita!l return (3.039) (2,376)
1.013 792
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8 Taxation
a) Analysis of charge in the year
Jomtman201 5 imtussir 2015 mmnmmen 2015 2014 2014 2014
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Caputal Totat
Retumn Retumn ! Return Retum
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
UK corporation tax at 21% {2014 23%}) 1,707 (1.707) - 1,760 (212) 1,548
Overseas taxaton 1,472 15 1,487 1,789 32 1,821
3,179 (1.692) 1,487 3,549 (180) 3,369
Under/(over) prowision n respect of pnor years 3 (122) (119) 8 (8) -
Current tax charge for the year 3,182 {1,814) 1,368 3,557 (188) 3,369
Deferred taxation {2) {35) (37) 7y 2907y (2,924)
3,180 (1.849) 1,331 3,540 (3,095) 445

b) Factors affecting current tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the penod s lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for a large company of 219% (2014 23%)
The difference 15 explained below

2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
Revenue Caprtal Totat Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Retum Retum

£'000 £'000 £000 E"000 E'000 £000
Net profit on ordinary actvties before taxation 31,394 194,515 225909 29220 120,040 149,260
Corporation tax charge at 21% (2014 23%) 6,593 40,848 47,441 6,721 27609 34,330
Effects of
Non taxable gains on investments - (39.742) (39742) - (29,698) (29,698)
Currency movements not taxable - 886 886 - 81 8n
Tax relief on expenses charged to capital - 1,351 1,351 - 1,821 1,821
Non-taxable income - (5.050) (5,050) {1,415y (1,415
Nonrtaxable UK dmdends (578) - (578) (605) - (605)
Non-taxable overseas dwvidends (4,336) - (4,336) (4.371) - 4,371)
Overseas withholding taxes 1,472 15 1,487 1,789 32 1,821
Under/(over) prowision in respect of pnor years 3 (122) (119) 8 (8) -
Losses utihsed not charged for (39) - (39) - - -
Disallowable expenses 22 - 22 15 - 15
Deferred tax not provided 45 - 45 - - -
Rate change on deferred tax (2) - {2) a7 - (7
Capital gain on Colonnades - (35) {35) - (1,355)  (1,355)

3,180  (1,849) 1,331 3,540  (3,095) 445

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of £1,966,000 (2014 £396,000) ansing as a result of losses carned forward
It 15 considered too uncertain that the Group will generate profits 1 the relevant companes that the losses would be available
to offset against and, on this basis, the deferred tax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised

Due to the Company's status as an Investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the condittons required to obtain
approval for the forseeable future, the Company has not prowded deferred tax on any capital gains arsing on the revaluation or
disposal of investments In respect of properties held in subsidianies, prowision for capital gatns tax has been made for revaluation
surpluses not sheltered by brought forward capital losses or non-trade debits
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8 Taxation continued

¢) Prowvision for deferred taxation

The amounits for deferred taxation prownded at 200% (2014 21%) compnse
i 1

2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
Revenue Caprtal Total Revenue Caprtal Total
Return Return Return Retum
Group £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Capital gains - - - - 35 35
Accelerated capital allowances 113 - 113 115 - 115
Unutlised losses camed forward - (350) {350) - (350) (350)
Shown as
Deferred tax liability/(asset) 113 (350) (237) 115 (315) (200)
2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
Company £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 E000
Accelerated capital allowances 113 - 13 115 - 115
Unuthsed losses carned forward - (350) (350) - (350) (350)
Shown as
Deferred tax hability/{asset) 113 (350) (237) 115 {350) (235)
The movement in provision m the year 1s as follows
2015 2013 2015 2014 2014 2014
Revenue Capital Total Revernue Caprtal Total
Return Return Retum Retum
Group E'000 £7000 E'000 £000 E'000 £000
Prowision at the start of the year 115 (315) {200) 131 2,592 2,723
Accelerated capital allowances (2) - {2) (16} - 16)
Capital gains - (35) (35) - (2907)  (2,907)
Provision at the end of the year 113 (350) (237) 115 (315) (200)
) 2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capial Total
Return Return Return Return
Company £000 £ 000 £ 000 E'000 £'000 £000
Prowision at the start of the year 115 (350) (235) 131 (350) (219)
Accelerated capital allowances {(2) - {2) (16) - {(16)
Provision at the end of the year 113 (350) (237) 115 (350) (235)
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Earnings per share

Earnings per Ordinary share

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The eamings per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capial, as below

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
E£000 £000
Net revenue profit 28,214 25,680
Net capital profit 196,364 123,135
Net total profit 224,578 148,815
Weighted average number of shares in issue dunng the year 317,500,980 317536,391
pence pence
Revenue earnings per share 889 809
Capital earnings per share 61 85 3878
Earnings per Ordinary share 7074 4687
investments held at fair value
a) Analysis of investments
Group Company Croup Company
2015 2015 2014 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Listed i the United Kingdam 440,679 440,679 370,807 370,807
Listed Overseas 539,875 539,875 438,561 438,561
Investment Properties 75,434 75,434 71,115 71,115
Investments held at far value 1,055,988 1,055,989 880,483 880,483
Investments i subsidianies at fair value - 53,517 - 53,305
1,055,988 1,109,505 880,483 933,788
b) Gains on investments held at farr value
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
£000 £000
Gains on sale of investments 76,072 32,576
Movement i investment holding gams 113,174 96,544
Cains on investments held at farr value 189,246 129,120
Net movement on foreign exchange, investments (2,633) 746
186,613 129,473
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10 Investments held at fair value continued
¢) Business segment reporting . -
d
T Qross™
Valuation Net Net Valuation revenue
31 March additsons/ appreciation/ ' 31 March 31 Masch
2014 {disposals} {deprecation) 2015 2015
£000 £'000 £'000 E£000 €000 ,
Listed investments 809,368 (8,901} 180,087 980,554 29,315
Direct property? 71,115 (4,840) 9,159 75.434 3,065
880,483 (13,741} 189,246 1,055,988 32,380
Contracts for differences 3,351 {16,793) 24,046 10,604 2,548
883,834 (30,534) 213,292 1,066,592 34,928
d) Geographical segment reporting
Gross
valuaten Net Net Valuation revenue
31 March addtions/ appreciation,/ 31 March 31 March
2014 (disposals) (depreciation) 2015 015
£000 £'000 E'000 £000 €000
UK hsted equities and convertibles! 365,242 (13,645) 82,952 434,549 7.097
UK direct property? 71,115 (4,840) 9,159 75,434 3,065
UX fixed Interest3 5,565 - 565 6,130 293
Continental European listed equities 435,929 6,479 96,599 539,007 21,849
European fixed interest 2,632 (1,735) (29) 868 76
880,483 (13,741) 189,246 1,055,988 32,380
UK contracts for differences 3175 {10,831) 12,823 5,167 1,164
European contracts for differences 176 {5,962) 11,223 5,437 1,384
883,834 (30,534} 213,292 1,066,592 34,928

included i the above fhigures are purchase costs of £331,000 (2014 £252,000) and sales costs of £185,000 (2014 £158,000)
These compnse mainly stamp duty and commission

! Included within UK listed equities and convertibles s a holding In NewRiver which 15 listed on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM) with a farr value of
£7246,000 (2014 £4,077000)

2 Net additions/(disposals) includes £3,776 000 of capital expenditure Net appreciation/(depreciation) includes amounts in respect of rent free penods

3 Included within UK fixed interest 1s a holding 1n NewRiver 5 85% 31/12/15 Convertible Unsecured Loan Stock which is listed on the Guernsey stock exchange
with a value of £6,130,000 (2014 £5 565,000)

4 Gross reverue for contracts for difference relates to dwidends recewable, on an ex dwidend basis, on the underying positions held

e) Substanhal share interests

The Group held interests in 3% or mare of any class of capital in 6 companies we invest in None of these investments
1s considered significant 1n the context of these financial statements See note 21 on page 71 for further details of
subsidiary investments
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Investrients held at fair value continued

f) Fair value of financial assets and financial habilites

Financal assets and finanaial habilties are cammed in the Balance Sheet either at their fair value (investments) or the balance
sheet amount 15 a reasonable approximation of fatr value (due from brokers, dwvidends and interest recevable, due to brokers,
accryals and cash at bank)

Fair value hierarchy disclosures
The table below sets out farr value measurements using IFRS 13 fair value herarchy

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2015 E'000 £000 £000 E'000
Equity investments 973,470 - 86 973,556
Investment Properties - - 75,434 75,434
Fixed Interest tnvestments 868 6,130 - 6,998
Contracts for difference - 10,604 - 10,604
974,338 16,734 75,520 1,066,592

Level § Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2014 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Equity investments 800,967 - 204 801,171
Investment Properties - - 71,115 71,115
Fixed interest investments 2,632 5,565 - 8,197
Contracts for difference - 3,351 - 3,351
803,599 8,916 71,319 883,834

Categonsation withun the fhuerarchy has been deterrmined on the basis of the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value
measurement of the relevant asset as follows

Level 1 - valued using quoted prices in an actve market for identical assets
Level 2 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted prices within Level 1
Level 3 — valued by reference to valuation techmiques using imputs that are not based on observable market data

The valuaton techniques used by the Group are explained 1n the accounting polices in notes 1 (f) and 1 (g)

Reconcthation of movements 10 financial assets categorised as level 3

31 March Apprecation / 31 March

2014 Purchases Sales {Depreciation} 2015

At 31 march 2015 £000 E000 E'D00 £000 £000

Unhsted equity investments 204 - - (118) 86
Investment Properties

— Mixed use 34,500 3,081 (926) 5,595 42,250

- Industnal 11,550 8,302 - 735 20,587

- Offices 25,065 4173 (19,470) 2,829 12,597

71,115 15,556 {20,396) 9,159 75,434

71,319 15,556 (20,396) 9,041 75,520

Transfers between hierarchy levels
There were no transfers dunng the year between level 1 and level 2 nor between levels 1 or 2 and level 3

Key assurmptiens used in value in use calculations are explained in the accounting policies in note 1 (f)
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Investments held at fair value confinued
f} Far value of fnancal assets and financial habilties continued
Sensitivity information

The significant unobservable inputs used 1n the farr value measurement categonsed within Level 3 of the fair value hwerarchy of
investment properties are

e Estmated rental value £4-£50 per sq ft
o Capialisation rates 4%-9%

Sigruficant increases {decreases) in estimated rental value n 1solation would result ; a significantly higher (lower) far value
measurement A significant increase (decrease) in Caputalisation Rates in isolation would result i a sigrificantly lower (higher) fair
value measurement

Finanaal Instruments

Risk management policies and procedures

The Group invests In equities and other instruments for the tong term in the pursuit of the Investment Objective set aut on

page 23 The Group 1s exposed to a varnety of nsks that could result in erther a reduction or an increase in the profits avatlable for
distnbution by way of dividends

The pnincpal nsks the Group faces in its portfolio managesment aciwities are
e Market nsk {compnsing price nsk, currency nisk and nterest rate nsk)

e Lquidity nsk

e Credit nsk

The Manager's policies and processes for managing these risks are summansed on pages 25 to 26 and have been apphed
througheut the year

111 Market Price Risk
By the very nature of its actvities, the Group's investments are exposed to market price fluctuations

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a diversified portfolio and reports to the Board on the portfolic actmity and performance at each board meeting
The Board monitors the mvestment activity and strategy to ensure it 1s compatble with the stated objectives

The Group's exposure to changes in market prices on its quoted equity investments and investment property portfolio, was as
follows

2015 2014
£'000 £000
Investments held at fair value 1,055,988 880,483

Concentratron of exposure to price risks

As set out in the Invastment Policies on page 23, there are guideiines to the amount of expesure to a single company,
geographucal region or direct property These guidelines ensure an appropnate spread of exposure to individual or sector price
nsks As an investment company dedicated to investment in the property sector, the Croup 1s exposed to price movements across
the property asset class as a whole
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1 Financial Instruments continued

Price risk sensitvity

The followmng table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and the value of shareholders’ funds to an
increase or decrease of 15% n the fair values of the Group's equity, CFD and direct property investments The level of change is
consistent with the dlustration shawn n the previous year The sensitvity 15 based on the Group's equity, CFD and direct property
exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other vartables held constant.

2015 2015 2014 2014
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
s fair value in fair value n faw vafue in far value
£000 £'000 £'000 €000
Statement of Comprehensive Income — profit after tax
Revenue return (72) 72 (58) 58
Capual retum 159,799 (159,799) 132,422 (132,422)
Change to the profit after tax for the year/shareholders’ funds 159,727 (159,727) 132,364 (132,364)
Change to total earmings per Ordinary share 50.29p (50 29)p 41 68p (41 68)p

112 Currency Risk
A proportion of the Group's portfolio 1s invested in overseas securiies and their Sterling value can be significantly affected by
movements in foreign exchange rates

Management of the nisk

The Board receves a report at each board meeting on the proporien of the investment portfolio held in Sterling, Euros or other
currencies The Group may sometimes hedge foreign currency movements outside the Eurozone by funding investmerts in
overseas secunues with unsecured loans denominated in the same currency or through forward currency contracts

Cash deposits are held in Stering and/or Euro denominated accounts
Foreign currency exposure

At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure
(Sterling has been shown for reference)

Currency 2015 2014
Sterling 4% 4% 44 3%
Euro 46 7% 41 2%
Swedish Krona 6 2% 7 1%
Other 5 7% 74%

The following table sets out the Group's total exposure to foreign currency nsk and the net exposure to foreign currencies of the
net monetary assets and habilities

Swedish

Sterling Euro Krona Other
2015 E'000 £000 £000 £000
Recewables (due from brokers, dvdends and other income recevable) 16,796 1,846 807 -
Cash at bank and on deposit 15,653 5,706 - 68
Bank loans, debentures and overdrafts (68,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and other crechtors) (20,489) - - -
FX forwards {55,013) 59,626 {9,650) 6,470
CFD positions (Gross expasure) 46,791 36,002 - -
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary items (64,262) 103,180 (8.843) 6,538
Investments held at fair value 516,113 406,767 77,028 56,080
Non-current assets 237 - ~ -
Total cumrency exposure 452,088 509,947 68,185 62,618
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112 Currency Risk continued Swedish
Sterhng Euro Krona Other
2014 £000 E000 £000 £000
Recewvables (due from brokers, dmdends and other income recenable) 9,422 1,338 349 a7
Cash at bank and on deposit 6,018 2,712 703 307
Bank loans and overdrafts (61,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) (16,390) - - -
FX forwards (16,854) 11,492 {10,841) 16,402
CFD positions (Gross exposure) 30,632 16,219 - -
Deferred taxation asset 200 - - -
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary 1iems (48,072) 31,761 (9,789) 16,806
Investments held at farr value 441922 321,031 70,983 46,547
Non-current habilities (15,000) - - -
Total currency exposure 378,850 352,792 61,194 63,353

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after tax for the year on the Group's equity in regard to the exchange

rates for Stering/Euro and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other currencies

It assumes the following changes in exchange rates
Sterling/Euro +/- 15% {2014 15%)
Sterling/Swedish Krona +/- 15% (2014 15%)
Sterhng/Other +/- 15% (2014 15%)

if Sterling had strengthened against the currencies shown, this would have the following effect

Year ended March 2015

Year ended March 2014

Swedish Swedish

Euro Krena Other Eurc Krona Other
£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive Income — profit after tax
Revenue return {1,986) (250) (173) (1,718) (318} (183)
Capiial return {53.682) (10,032} (7.304) (42,457) (5,244) (5.437)

Change to the profit after tax for

the year/shareholders’ funds (55.668) (10,282) (7.477) (44,175) (9,562} (5.620)
2015 2014

Change to total earnings per Ordinary share

(23 13}p (1869)p

if Sterling had weakened against the currencies shown, this would have had the following effect

Year ended March 2015

Year ended March 2014

Swedish Swedish

Euro Krona Other Euro Krona Other
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Staternent of Comprehensive Income — profit after tax
Revenue return 2,523 311 219 2,205 404 232
Capital return 72,661 13,581 9,887 57,461 12,515 7357

Change to the profit after tax for

the year/shareholders’ funds 75,184 13,892 10,106 59,666 12,919 7589
2015 2014
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share 3124p 2525p

54 TR Propery Investment Trust




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements coninved

1

Finanaal Instruments continued

113  Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate movements may affect
e the {ar value of any investments in fixed interest secunties

e the farr value of the debenture loan
o the level of income recewable from cash at bank and on deposit
e the level of interest expense on any vanable rate bank loans

o the prices of the underdying secunties held in the portfolios

Management of the risk

The possible effects on fair value and cash flows that could anse as a result of changes 1n interest rates are taken mto account
when making investment deasions Property companies usually have borrowings themselves and the level of geanng and
structure of its debt portfolio 15 a key factor when assessing the investment in a property company

The Group has fixed and varable rate borrowings The nterest rate on the debenture loan is hixed, details are set out In note 13
In addition to the debenture the Group has unsecured, multi-currency revolving loan faciliies which carry vanable rates of interest
based on the currencies drawn, plus a margin These faciities total £80,000,000 (2014 £80,000,000)

The Manager considers both the level of debt on the balance sheet of the Group (1e the debenture and any bank loans drawn)
and the “see-through” geanng, taking into account the assets and habiiies of the underlying investments, when considenng the
investment portfalio These gearing levels are reported regularly to the Board

The majonty of the Group's investment portfolio 1s non-interest beaning As a result the Group's financial assets are not directly
subject to significant amounts of nsk due to fluctuations 1 the prevailing levels of market interest rates

Interest rate exposure
The exposure at 31 March of financial assets and financal habilies to interest rate nsk 15 shown by reference to

e floating interest rates when the interest rate 1s due to be re-set

o fixed interest rates when the finanoal nstrument 15 due to be repaid

The Group's exposure to floauing mterest rates on assets 1s £21,427,000 (2014 £9,740,000)
The Group's exposure to fixed interest rates on assets 1s £6,998,000 (2014 £8,197,000)

The Graup’s exposure {o fixed interest rates on labilites 1s £15,000,000 (2014 £15,000,000)
The Group's exposure to floating interest rates on liabiliies 1s £53,000,000 (2014 £61,000,000)
Interest recenvable and finance costs are at the followng rates

e Interest received on cash balances, or paid on bank overdrafts, 15 at a margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent
{2014 same)

e Interest paid on borrowings under the muit-currency loan faciues, s at @ margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent
for the type of loan

e The finance charge on the debenture stock was at an mterest rate of 11 86% (2014 11 83%)

The year end amounts are not representative of the exposure to interest rates during the year as the level of exposure changes as
mvestments are made m fixed interest secunties, borrowings are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of borrowsngs between
floating and fixed interest rates changes
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11 Finanaal Instruments contmued
113 Interest Rate Risk continued

Interest rate sensitiity
A change of 295 on interest rates at the reporting date would have had the following direct impact

2015 2015 2014 2014

2% 2% 2% 2%

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£000 E000 E'000 £000

Change to shareholders' funds {499) 499 (789) 789
Change to total earmings per Ordinary share (016)p 0 15p {025)p 025p

This level of change s not representative of the year as a whole, since the exposure changes throughout the penod This assessment
does not take mto account the impact of interest rate changes on the market value of the investments the Group holds

114 Lqudity Risk
Unquoted investments in the portfolio are subject to hquidity nsk The Group held one unquoted investment at the year end
(see 11 6 below)

In certain market conditions, the liquidity of ditect property investments may be reduced At 31 March 2015, 7% of the Group's
investment portfolio was held in direct property investments

At March 2015, 93% of the Group’s Investment portfolio 15 held i listed secunties which are predommantly readily realisable

The debenture loan of £15m 1s repayable in 2016 Bank loan facilites are short term revalving loans which it 1s intended are
renewed or replaced but renewal cannot be certain

The table below shows the tming of cash outflows to settle the Group’s current drawn debt faalties together with antapated
Interest costs

Debt and Financing matunity profile -

Within within Within Withan Within More than
1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 3 years Total
At 31 March 2015 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 €000 £000
Bank loans* 53,000 - - - - - 53,000
Debenture loan 15,000 - - - - - 15,0600
Projected interest cash flows on bank and
debenture loans 2,452 - - - - - 2,452
T0.452 - - - - - 70,452
Within Within Within Within Within ~ More than
1 year 1-2 years 2 3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5 years Total
At 31 March 2014 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Bank loans* 61,000 - - - - - 61,000
Debenture loan - 15,000 - - - - 15,000
Projected interest cash flows on bank and
debenture Yoans 2,900 1,773 - - - - 4,673
63,900 16,773 - - - - 80,673

* A £50m one year facility which expired In January 2015 has been renewed unul January 2016 £43m was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date A
£30m two year facility which expired in May 2015 has been renewed untl May 2016 £10m was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date
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n Finanaal Instruments continued
114  uquidity Risk continued

Management of the nisk

The Manager sets guidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolio to unquoted and direct property investments These are
set out in the Investment Polictes on page 23 All unquoted investmentis and direct property investments with a value over

£1 millon must be approved by the Board for purchase

The Company maintains regular contact wath the banks providing revolving facliues and renewal discussions comimence well ahead
of facility renewal dates In addimon the Company 1s explonng new opporturites for the prowision of debt on an ongoing basis

115  Credit Risk

The fallure of a counterparty 10 a transaction to discharge 1ts obligations under that transaction could result in the Group suffenng
a loss At the period end the largest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed to was within Cash and cash equivalents
where the total bank balances held with one counterparty was £11,711,000

Management of the risk

lnvestment transactions are camed out with a number of brokers, whose credit standing 1s reviewed penodically by the Manager,
and imits are set on the amount that may be due from any one broker Cash at bank 15 only held with banks with high quality
external credit ratings

Credit sk exposure
In summary, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximum exposure to credit nsk at 31 March was as follows

2015 2015 2014 2014

Balance Maximum Balance Maximum

Sheet exposure Sheet expasure

£'000 £000 £000 £'000

Debtors 20,882 20,882 11,405 11,405
Cash and cash equivalents 21,427 21,427 9,740 9,740
Fixed interest mvestments 6,998 6,998 8,197 8,197
49,507 49,307 29,342 29,342

116  Farr values of financial assets and financial tabilities

Except for the debenture loans which are measured at amortised cost, the fair vafues of the financial assets and financia!
liabilives are either carned in the batance sheet at their fair value (investments) or the balance sheet amount 1s a reasonable
approximation of fair value (debtors, creditors, cash at bank and bank overdrafts, accruals and prepayments)

The fair values of the hsted investments are denved from the bid pnce or last waded price at which the secunties are quoted
on the London Stock Exchange and other recogrised exchanges

The farr value of contracts for difference are based on the underlying listed investment value as set out above and the amount
due from or to the counterparty under the contract 1s recorded as an asset or Labilty accordingly

The fair values of the properties are denved from an open market (Red Book) valuaton of the properties on the Balance Sheet
date by an independent firm of valuers {Deloitte)

There was one unquoted nvestment at the Balance Sheet date, Nanette Real Estate, with a total value of £86,000
The amounts of change i far value for such investments recognised n the profit or loss for the year was a profit of
£213,292,000(2014 profi of £135,270,000)

117 Capital management policies and procedures

The Group's capital management objectives are

e {0 ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern, and

e to maxmuse the total return 1o its equity shareholders through an appropnate balance of equity capital and debt.

The equity capital of the Group at 31 March 2015 consisted of called up share capital, share premium, capital redemptien and
revenue reserves totaling £1,010,045,000 {2014 £809,438,000) The Group does not regard the debenture and loans as
permanent capital
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12 Debtors . e — -
Group Company Group Company
2015 2015 2014 2014
k 600 E660~1 £000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Secunties and properties sold for future settlement 2,551 2,551 929 929
Tax recoverable 554 554 1,391 1,391
Prepayments and accrued income* 5,585 5,194 4,388 4,380
Amounts recevable in respect of Contracts for Difference 10,604 10,604 3,351 3,351
Qther debtors 1,588 1,581 1,346 1,334
20,882 20,484 11,405 11,385
Nen-current assets
Deferred taxation asset 237 237 200 235
*Includes amounts In respect of rent free penods
13 Current and non-current habilities
Grotp Company Group Company
2015 2015 2014 2014
€000 £'000 £000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdrafts 53.000 53,000 61,000 61,000
Securiies and properties purchased for future setilerment 8,562 B,562 3114 3114
Amounts due to subsidianes - 68,279 - 68,976
Tax payable 1,506 1.506 2,247 1,662
Accruals and deferred income 9,745 9,569 10,401 10,189
Other creditors 676 676 628 628
Debenture loan 15,000 - - -
88,489 141,592 77,380 145,569
Non-current liabilities
Debenture loan - - 15,000 -
- - 15,000 -

The total amount of secured creditors 1s £15,000,00C (2014 £15,000,000)

Debenture loan

The debenture loan of £15,000,000 (2014 £15,000,000) of 11 5% 2016 stock 15 1ssued by Trustco Finance plc and 15
guaranteed by the Company through a floating charge over its assets The far value of this debenture at 31 March 2015 was
£16,415,000 (2014 £17,429,000) Using the {FRS 13 far value hierarchy the debenture stack 1s deemed to be categonsed within
tevel 1

The Company and Group have complied with the terms of the debenture agreement throughout the year

Multi-currency revoiving loan facilities
The Group also has unsecured, mulh-currency, revolving short-term loan faalties totaling £80,000,000 (2014 £80,000,000)
At 31 March 2015 £53,000,000 was drawn on these faclites (2014 £61,000,000)

The terms and matunties of these faciliies are shown in notes 113 and 114
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14 Called up share capital
Ordinary share capital
The balance classified as Ordinary share caprtal includes the norminal value proceeds on the 1ssue of the Qrdinary equity share
capital compnsing Ordinary shares of 25p

Issued, allottad

and fulty paid
Number £000

Ordinary shares of 25p
At 1 Aprl 2014 317,500,980 79,375
Shares repurchased - —
At 31 March 2015 317,500,980 79,375

The voting nights are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on page 32
No Ordinary shares were repurchasec or cancelled dunng the current year (2014 375,000 repurchased and cancelled)

Since 31 March 2015 no Ordinary shares have been purchased and cancelied

15 Share premium account and capital redemption reserve
Share premium account
The balance classified as share premium ncludes the premium above nominal value from the proceeds on 1ssue of the equity
share capital compnsing Ordinary shares of 25p

Capntal redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve 1s used to record the amount equivalent to the norminal value of purchases of the Company’s own

shares in order to maintain the Company's capital

16 Retained earmings
Group Company Group Company
2015 2015 2014 2074
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Investment holding gains 388,841 424,388 273,412 287430
Realised capital reserves 406,260 378,417 325,326 319,124
795,101 802,805 598,738 506,554
Revenue reserve 48,473 40,769 44,229 36,413
843,574 843,574 642,967 642,967

Croup investment holding gains at 31 March 2015 indude a £1,368,000 lass (2014 £1,373,000 loss) relating to unlsted
investments and gains of £18,274,000 (2014 £11,323,000) relating to investment properties

Company investment holding gains at 31 March 2015 include gains of £52,453,000 (2014 £45,290,000) relating to unhsted
subsidiary investments and a £17,134,000 revaluation gain (2014 £10,189,000 gain) relating to nvestment properties
Brvidends are only distnbutable from the revenue reserve
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18

19

20

70

Dividends . -
Year ended Year ended
3t March 31 March
o 554 2014
. E000 | £000
Amounts recognised as distnbutions to equity holders in the year
Final dwdend for the year ended 31 March 2014 of 4 60p
(2013 4 35p) per Ordinary share 14,605 13,811
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 of 2 95p
(2014 2 85p) per Ordinary share 9,366 9,049
23,971 22,860
Amounts not recogmsed as distnbutions to equity holders in the year
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 of 4 75p
(2014 4 60p) per Ordinary share 15,081 14,605

The final dnvidend has not been included as a hability in these financia! statements in accordance with 1AS 10 “Events after the

Balance Sheet Date”

Set out below 1s the total dividend to be paid in respect of the year This 15 the basis on which the requirements of s 1158 of the

Corporation Tax Act 2010 are considered

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 of 2 95p

(2014 2 85p) per Ordinary share 9,366 9,049

Proposed final dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2015 of 4 75p
(2014 4 &60p) per Ordinary share 15,081 14,605
24,447 23,654

Company profit and loss account

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own Income Statement The net profit

after taxation of the Company dealt with In the accounts of the Group was £224,578,000 (2014 £148,815,000)

Net asset value per Ordinary share

Net asset value per Ordinary share 15 based on the net assets attnbutable to Ordinary shares of £1,010,045,000 (2014

£809,438,000) and on 317500,980 (2014 317,500,980) Ordinary shares in ssue at the year end

Commitments and contingent habilitres
At 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 the Group had no capital commitments or contmgent habiliies

The Company has guaranteed, through a floating charge over 1ts assets a £15,000,000 (2014 £15,000,000) participation in

11 5% 2016 several debenture stock (see note 13)
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22

Subsidianes
The Group has the following pnnapal subsidianes, all of which are registered and operaiing in England and Wales

Name of Company Principal Actmities

TR Property Finance Ltd Investment holding and finance
Trust Union Properties (Bayswater) Ltd Property investment

*The Colonnades Ltd Property imnvestrment

Trustco Finance plc Debenture 1ssuing vefhicle

All the subsidianes are fully owned and all the holdings are ordinary shares The Group also has other subsidiaries which are
constdered not significant as they are either not trading or are iImmatenai

* Indirectly held

Related party transactions disclosures
Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminaied on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company for each of the relevant categories
specified 1n 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures i1s provided 1n the audited part of the Directors’ Remmuneration Report on pages 40
and 41

Directors’ transactions

Transactions (n shares by directors are considered to be a related party transaction due to the nature of their role as directors
Movements in directors’ shareholdings are disclosed within the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 41 Dividends totalling
£7,000 (2014 £13,000) were paid in the year in respect of shares held by the Company's directors

Investment Manager's fees

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2015 Thames River Capital charged management fees totalling £4,979,000 (2014 £4,715,000)
to the Group In the norma! course of business The balance of management fees outstanding at 31 March 2015 was £186,000
(2014 E£125,000) in addition a performance fee of £7745,000 was outstanding at 31 March 2015 (2014 £9,665,000)
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive ("AIFMD")

In accordance with the AIFMD, information i relation to the Company's leverage and remuneration of the Company’s AIFM, F&C
Investment Business Limited, 15 required to be made available to investors Detailed regulatory disdlosures including those on the
AlFM's remuneration policy are available on the F&C website or from F&C on request The numencal remuneration disclosures in
relation to the AIFM's first relevant accounting penod will be made available in due course

Leverage
Under the AIFM Directive, 1115 necessary for AIFs 1o disclose thes leverage in accordance with presenbed calculations

Although leverage 1s often used as another term for geanng, under the AIFMD 1t leverage is speafically defined Two types of
leverage calculations are defined, the gross and commitment methods These methods summanly express leverage as a rauo of
the exposure of the AIF against its net asset value ‘Exposure’ typically includes debt, the value of any physical properties subject
to mortgage, non- sterling currency, equity or currency hedging at absolute natonal values {even those held purely for nsk
reduction purposes, such as forward foreign exchange contracts held for currency hedging) and dervative exposure (converted
into the equivalent underlying posiions) The commitment method nets off denvative instruments, while the gross method
aggregates them

The table below sets out the current maximum permitted mit and the actual level of leverage for the Company as at
31 March 2015

Leverage exposure Gross method Commitment method
Maximum permitted imit 200% 200%
Actual 127% 124%

The leverage limits are set by the AIFM and approved by the Board and are in line with the mits set out in the Company's
Articles of Association

This should not be caonfused with the geanng set out in the Financial Highlights which 15 calculated under the tradiional method
set out by the Assoaation of investment Companies The AIFM is also required to comply with the geanng parameters set by the
Board in relation 1o borrowings
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAIL. MEETING

THIS NOTICE IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

if you are tn any doubt as to the action you should take you should seek your own adwice from a stockbroker, solicitor, accountant or other

independent professional adviser

if you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your shares, please pass this document, together with the accompanying documents to the
purchaser, or transferee, or to the person who armanged the sale or transfer so they can pass these documents to the person who now

holds the shares

Notice 15 hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of

TR Property Investment Trust plc will be held at 12 noon on
fuesday 21 July 2015 at the Royal Automobile Club, 89/91
Pall Mall, London SW1TY 5HS for the purpose of transacing the
followang business

To consider and, «f thought fit, pass the fellowing Resalutions,
of which Resolutions 1 to 12 will be proposed as Ordinary
Resolut:ons and Resolutions 13 and 14 shall be proposed as
Speaal Resolutions

1 To recewve the Report of the Directors and the Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2015

2 To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year
ended 31 March 2015

3  To declare a final dwidend of 4 75 pence per Ordinary share
4 To re-elect Simon Marnson as a director

5 To re-elect David Watson as a director

6 To re-elect Hugh Seaborn as a director

7 To re-elect Caroline Burton as a duector

8 To re-elect Suzie Procter as a director

9 Tore-elect John Glen as a director

10 To re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditors of the Company
10 hold office until the condlusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company

11 To authonse the drectors to determine the remuneration of
the auditors

12 THAT the directors be generally and unconditionally authonsed
pursuant to and n accordance to Section 551 of the
Companies Act 2006 (the "Act”) to exercise all the pawers
of the Company to allot shares in the Company and to grant
nghts to subscnbe for, or to corvert any secunty into, shares
in the Company up to a nominal value of £26,193,830
{(being approximately 33% of the total 1ssued share capital
of the Company as at the latest practicable date pnor to
publication of the notice of the meeting) provided that this
authonty shall expire at the date of the next Annual General
Meetng of the Company (or, If earlier, at the close of business
on 21 October 2016), save that the Company shall be
entiled to make offers or agreements before the expiry of this

13

authonty which would or might require shares to be allotted
or nghts to be granted after such expiry and the directors shall
be entitled to allot shares and grant rights pursuant to any
such offers or agreements as If this authonty had not expired

THAT

(a) (subject to the passing of Resolution 12 set out above)
the directors be empowered pursuant to Section 570 and
Section 573 of the Act to allot equity secunties (as defined
i Section 560 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the
authonty conferred by Resclution 12 above and/or to sell
shares held by the Company as treasury shares for cash as
if Secuon 561(1) of the Act did not apply to any such
allotrnent, provided that this power shall be imited to

(0 the allotment of equity securihies and sale of treasury
shares for cash in connection with en offer of, or
invitation to apply for, equity securities

(aa) to shareholders In proportion {as nearly as may
be practicable) to their extsting holdings, and

{bb)to holders of other equity securmes, as required
by the nghts of those secunties, or as the Board
otherwise considers necessary, and so that the
Board may impose any hrmits or restrictions and
make any arrangements which 1t considers
necessary or appropriate to deal with treasury
shares, fractional entitlements, record dates,
legal, regulatory or practical problems n, or
under the laws of, any terntory or any other
matter, and

(1) n the case of the authonty granted under Resoluon
12 and/or in the case of any sale of treasury shares for
cash, to the aflotment (otherwise than under paragraph
(1) above) of equity secunties or sale of treasury shares
up to a nominal amount of £3,968,762 (being
approximately 5% of the total 1ssued share capwal of
the Company as at the latest practicable date pror to
publication of the notice of meeting),

(b) the power given by this resolution shall expire upon the
expiry of the authonty conferred by Resolution 12 above,
save that the Company shall be enutled to make offers or
agreements before the expiry of such power which would
or might require equity securies 1o be allotted after such
expiry and the directors shall be entitled to allot equity
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securities pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if
the power conferred hereby had not expired

THAT the Company be and 1s hereby generally and
unconditionally authonsed in accordance with Section 701

of the Act to make market purchases (within the meaning

of Section 693(4) of the Act) of Ordinary shares of 25 pence
each in the caputal of the Company on such terms and in
such manner as the directors may from tme to time
deterrmine provided that

(a) the maximum number of Ordwnary shares hereby
authonsed to be purchased shall be 14 99% of the
Company’s Ordinary shares in 1ssue at the date of the
Annual General Meeting (equivalent to 47,593,396
Ordinary shares of 25 pence each at 9 June 2015, the
date of this Notice of Annual General Meeting},

(b) the maximum pnce {(exclusive of expenses) which may
be paid for any such share shall not be more than the
higher of

(1} 105% of the average of the middle market
quotations for an Qrdinary share as taken from the
London Stock Exchange Dally Official List for the five
business days /mmediately preceding the date on
which the Company agrees to buy the shares
concemned, and

(1) the higher of the pnice of the last ndependent trade
and the highest current independent bid for an
Ordnary share i the Company on the trading venue
where the purchase 15 carned out at the relevant time

TR Properny rwastme rt Tast

(€) the miimum price (exclusve of expenses) which may
be paid for an Ordinary share shall be 25 pence, being
the normina! value per Ordinary share,

(d) the authorty hereby conferred shall exprre at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company in 2016, save that the Company shall be
entitled to enter nto a contract to purchase Ordinary
shares which wall, or may, be completed or executed
wholly or partly after the power expires and the Company
may purchase Ordinary shares pursuant to such contract
as If the power conferred hereby had not expired

Registered Office

Registered in England No 84492
11-12 Hanover Street

London

W15 1YQ

By Order of the Board

For and on behalf of

Capita Company Secretarial Services
Secretary

9 June 2015
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Notes to the Notice of Annual General Meeting

1

Members are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any
of their nghts to attend and to speak and vote on therr behalf
at the meeting A shareholder may appoint more than cne
proxy n relation to the Annual General Meeting ("AGM”)
provided that each proxy I1s appointed to exercise the nghts
attached to a different share or shares held by that
shareholder A proxy need not be a shareholder of the
Company To appoint more than one proxy, the proxy form
should be photocopied and the name of the proxy to be
appointed indicated on each proxy form together with the
number of shares that such proxy 1s appointed in respect of

To be vahd any proxy form or other instrument appomting a
proxy must be returned by post, by couner or by hand to the
Company's Registrars, Computershare Investor Senvices PLC,
The Pavilions, Bndgwater Road, Bnstol BS99 6ZY, or
altematively, by going to www eproxyappointment com and
following the instructions provided All proxies must be
appointed by no later than 48 hours before the ume of the
AGM The return of a completed proxy form or other such
nstrument will not prevent a shareholder attending the AGM
and voting in person if he/she wishes to do so

In order to be able to attend and vote at the AGM or any
adjourned meeting, (and also for the purpose of calculating
how many votes a person may cast) a person must have his/
her name entered on the Register of Members of the
Company by 6 00 pm on 19 July 2014 (or 6 00 pm on the
date 2 days before any adjoumed meeting) Changes to
entries on the Register of Members after this tme shail be
disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend
or vote at the meetmg

Shareholders should note that it 1s possible that, pursuant to
requests made by shareholders of the Company under
Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company may
be required to publish on a website a statement setting out
any matter relating to (1) the audit of the Company’s accounts
{including the auditor's report and the conduct of the audit)
that are to be laid before the AGM, or (11} any arcumstance
connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hald
office since the previous meetng at which annual accounts
and reports were ladd 1n accordance with Section 437 of the
Companies Act 2006

The Company may not require the shareholders requesting
any such website pubhcation to pay its expenses in complying
with Sections 527 or 528 of the Companies Act 2006 Where
the Company 1s required to place a statement on a website
under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, tt must
forward the statement to the Company’s auditor not later than
the ume when «t makes the statement available on the
website The business which may be dealt with at the AGM
includes any staterment that the Company has been required
under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on
a website

Any corporation which 1s a member of the Company can
appoint one or more corporate representatives who may
exerase on its behalf all of s powers as a member provided
that they do not do so In relation to the same shares

The nght to appount a proxy does not apply to persons whose
shares are held on therr behalf by another person and who
have been nominated to receve communication from the
Company n accordance with Section 146 of the Companies
Act 2006 ("nominated persons™) Norminated persons may
have a nght under an agreement with the registered
shareholder who holds shares on their behalf to be appointed
(or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy Alternatively,
if nominated persons do not have such a nght, or do not wish
1o exeraise it, they may have a nght under such an agreement
to gven instructions to the person holding the shares as to
the exercise of voting nghts
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CREST members who wish to appont & proxy or proxies
through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may
do so for the AGM to be held on 21 July 2015 and any
adjournment(s) thereof by using the procedures descnibed In
the CREST Manual CREST personal members or other CREST
sponsored members, and those CREST members who have
appointed a voting service provider should refer to therr
CREST sponsors or voting senvice provider(s), who will be able
to take the appropriate action on their behalf

In order for a proxy appointment or instruchon made by means of
CREST 10 be valid, the appropnate CREST message (@ "CREST
Proxy Instruciion”) must be propery authenucated 1n accordance
with Eurodear UK & Ireland Limited's speafications and must
contain the informaton required for such instrucions, as descnbed
in the CREST Manual The message must be transmitted so as to
be recewved by the Company's agent, Computershare Investor
Services PLC (CREST Participant ID 3RA50), no later than 48
hours before the arme appointed for the meeting For this purpose,
the tme of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by
the time stamp applied to the message by the CREST Application
Host) from which the Company’s agent 1s able to retneve the
message by enguiry to CREST 1n the manner prescribed by CREST

CREST mermnbers and, where applicable, their CREST sponsor
or voting service provider should note that Euroclear UK &
Ireland Limited does not make available special procedures in
CREST for any particular messages

Normal system timings and limitations wall therefore apply 1n
relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions It 1s the
responsibility of the CREST member concemed to take {or, if
the CREST member 1s a CREST personal member or
sponsored member or has appointed a votng service provider,
to procure that us CREST sponsor or voting senvice provider
takes) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a
message 1s transmitted by means of the CREST system by any
paracular time In this connection, CREST members and, where
applicable, thetr CREST sponsor or voting senice provider are
referred in particular to those sections of the CREST Manual
concerring practical imitations of the CREST systern and
tmings The Cormnpany may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy
Instruction 10 the circemstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a}
of the Uncerthcated Secunties Regulations 2001

Any member attending the meeung has the nght to ask
questions The Company must cause to be answered any such
question relating to the business being dealt with at the meeting
but no such answer need be given if (a) to do so would interfere
unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve the
disclosure of confidental information, (b) the answer has already
been gven on a website in the form of an answer to a queston,
or (¢) it 5 undesirable in the interests of the Company or the
good order of the meeting that the question be answered
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A copy of this notice, and other information required by
section 31 1A of the Cormparies Act 2006, can be found at
www trproperty com

Members satsfying the thresholds in section 338 of the
Companes Act 2006 may require the Company 1o give, to
members of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
Annual General Meeting, notice of a resolution which those
members intend to move {and which may properly be
moved) at the Annual General Meeting A resolution may
properly be moved at the Annual General Meeting unless

() 1t would, if passed, be ineffectve {whether by reason of
any incensistency with any enactment or the Company's
constitution or otherase), (n} 1t 1s defamatory of any person,
or {in) it15 fnvolous or vexattous A request made pursuant to
this nght may be in hard copy or electronic form, must identify
the resolution of which notice 15 to be given, must be
authenticated by the person{s} making it and must be
recewved by the Company not later than six weeks before the
date of the Annual General Meeting

Members satisfying the thresholds in section 3384 of the
Companies Act 2006 may request the Company to include in
the business to be dealt with at the Annual General Meeting
any matter {other than a proposed resolution) which may
praperly be included in the bustness at the Annual General
Meeting A matter may properly be induded in the business at
the Annual General Meeting unless (1) it 1s defamatory of any
person or (i) it 15 frivolous or vexatious A request made
pursuant to this nght may be in hard copy or electronic form,
must identfy the matter 1o be included in the business, must
be accompanied by a statement setung out the grounds for
the request, must be authenticated by the person{s) making it
and must be receved by the Company not later than six
weeks before the date of the Annual General Meeting

Biographical details of the directors are shown on page 27 of
the Annual Report & Accounts

As at 8 lune 2015 (being the latest practicable day prior to
pubhcation of the notice of the meeting), the ssued share
caprtal of the Company is 317,500,980 Ordinary shares of
25p each Therefore, the total number of voting nghts in the
Company at 8 June 2015 15 317,500,980

The terms of reference of the Audit Commuttee, the
Management Engagement Committee and the Letters of
Appointment for directors will be avallable for inspection for at
least 15 muinutes prior to and dunng the Company's AGM

You may not use any electronic address prowvided either in this
Notice or any related documents to communicate for any
purposes other than those expressly stated
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resolutions 1, 2 and 3: Accounts, Directors’
Remuneration Report and Dividend

These are the resolutions which deal with the presentation
of the audited accounts, the approval of the Directors'
Remuneration Report and the declaraton of the final
dwvidend The vote to approve the remuneration report

is adwisory only and will not require the Company to

alter any arrangements detalled n the report should the
resolution not be passed

Resolutions 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9: Re-election of
directors

These resolutions deal with the re-election of Simon
Marmson, David Watscn, Hugh Seabom, Caroline Burton,
Suzie Procter and John Glen In accordance with the UK
Corporate Govemance Code, all directors will retire on an
annual basis and have confimed that they will offer
themselves for re-election

A performance evaiuation has been compieted and your
Board has determined that each of the directors continues
to be effective and demonstrates their commitment to
their role

Resolutions 10 and 11- Auditors

These deal with the re-appointment of the auditors, Ernst
& Young LLP, and the authonsation for the directors to
determine their remuneration

Resolution 12: Allotment of share capital

Our Board considers 1t appropriate that an authonity be
granted to allot shares n the capital of the Company up
to a maximum nominal amount of £26,193,830
(representing approximately 33% of the Company's
issued share capital as at 8 June 2015, being the latest
practical date pnor to publication) As at the date of this
notice the Company does not hold any shares in treasury

The directors have no present intention of exeraising this
authonty and would only expect to use the authonty if
shares could be 1ssued at, or at a premiumn to, the NAV
per share

This authonty will expire at the earlier of close of business
on 22 October 2016 and the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held in 2016

Resolution 13: Disapplication of statutory pre-
emption rights

This resolution would give the directors the authonty to
allot shares (or sell any shares which the Company elects
to hold in treasury) for cash without first offenng them to
existing shareholders in proportion to ther existing
shareholdings

This authonty would be limited to allotments or sales in
connection with pre-emptive offers and offers to holders
of other equity secunties if required by the nghts of those
shares ar as the board othenwise considers necessary, or
otherwise up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£3,968,762 This aggregate nominal amount represents
5% of the total 1ssued share capital of the Company as
at 8 June 2015, the latest practicabie date prior to
publication of this Notice In respect of this aggregate
nomnal amount, the directors confirm their intention to
follow the provisions of the Pre-Emption Group's
Staterment of Principles regarding cumulative usage of
authorties within a roling 3-year penod where the
Principles provide that usage In excess of 7 5% should not
take place without prior consuitation with shareholders

The authonty will expire at the earlier of close of business
on 21 October 2016 and the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company held in 2016

Resolution 14: Authority to make Market Purchases
of the Company’s Ordinary shares

At the AGM held on 22 July 2014, a speaial resolution
was proposed and passed, gving the directors authonty,
until the conclusion of the AGM n 2015, to make market
purchases of the Company's own 1ssued shares up to a
maximum of 14 99% of the issued share capital

Your Board 1s proposing that they shouid be given
renewed authonty to purchase Ordinary shares in the
market Your Board believes that to make such purchases
n the market at appropniate times and pnces 1s a suitable
method of enhancing shareholder value The Company
would, within guidelines set from time to time by the
Board, make either a single purchase or a senes of
purchases, when market conditons are suitable, wath

the aim of maximising the benefits to shareholders

Where purchases are made at pnces below the prevaling
Net Asset Value per share, this will enhance the Net Asset
Value for the remaining shareholders it 1s therefore
intended that purchases would only be made at praces
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting contnued

below Net Asset Value Your Board considers that 1t will be
most advantageous to shareholders for the Company to
be able to make such purchases as and when it considers
the timing to be favourable and therefore does not
propose to set a timetable for making any such purchases

The Companies (Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury
Shares} Regulations 2003 enable companies in the
Urited Kingdom to hold in treasury any of their own
shares they have purchased with a view to possibie
resale at a future date, rather than cancelling them 1f

the Company does re-purchase any of its shares, the
directors do not currently intend to hold any of the shares
re-purchased n treasury The shares so re-purchased will
continue to be cancelled

The Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authonty limit the
maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be
paid for any such share It shall not be more than the
higher of

{1) 105% of the average of the middle market quotations
for an Ordinary share as taken from the London Stock
Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the
Company agrees to buy shares concerned, and

(1) the higher of the pnce of the last ndependent trade
and the highest current independent bid for an
Ordinary share in the Company on the trading venue
where the purchase 1s carned out

The minimum price to be paid will be 25p per Ordinary
share (being the nominal value) The Listing Rules also limit
a hsted company to purchases of shares representing up to
159% of its 1ssued share capital 1n the market pursuant to a
general authonty such as this For this reason, the Company
Is imsting 1ts authority to make such purchases to 14 99%
of the Company's Ordinary shares 1n 1ssue at the date of
the AGM, this 1s equivalent to 47,593,396 Ordinary shares
of 25p each (nominal value £11,898,348) at 9 June 2015,
the date of the Notice of the AGM The authonty will last
untif the AGM of the Company to be held in 2016
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Recommendation

Your Board believes that the resolutions contained in this
Notice of Annual General Meeting are 1n the best interests
of the Company and shareholders as a whole and
recommends that you vote in favour of them as your
Drrectors ntend to do in respect of therr beneficial
shareholdings




Directors and Other Information

Directors

C M Burton (Chairman)
1 Glen

S Mamson

S Procter

H Seaborn

D Watson

Registered Office
3rd Floor

11-12 Hanover Street
London

WI1s1YQ

Registered Number
Registered as an investment company in England
and Wales No 84492

AIFM

F&C Investment Business Limited
Exchange House

Prnmrose Street

London

EC2A 2NY

Portfolio Manager

Thames River Caprtal LLP, authorised and regulated by the
Financial Conduct Authority

3rd Floor

11-12 Hanover Street

London

W1S 1YQ

Telephone Q20 7011 4100

Fund Manager
M A Phayre-Mudge MRICS

Finance Manager and Investor Relations
J L Eiliott ACA

Deputy Fund Manager
A Lhonneur

Direct Property Manager
G P Gay MRICS

a .
The Association of
Investment Companes

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Secretary

Capita Company Secretanal Services
40 Dukes Place

London

EC3A 7NH

Registrar

Computershare investor Senvices PLC
The Paviiions

Bridgwater Road

Bnstol

BS99 6ZY

Telephone 0870 707 1363

Registered Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP

1 More London Place
London

SE1 2AF

Stockbrokers

Cenkos Secunties plc

8, 7. 8 Tokenhaouse Yard
London

EC2R 7AS

Stifel Nicolaus Europe Limited
150 Cheapside

London

EC2V BET

Solicitors
Slaughter and May
One Bunhill Row
London

ECT1Y 8YY

Depositary, Custodian and Fund Administrator
BNP Panbas Secunties Services

S5 Moorgate

London

EC2R 6PA

Website
www trproperty com
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General Shareholder Information

Release of Results
The half year results are announced in late November
The full year results are announced in early June

Annual General Meeting
The AGM s held in London in July

Dividend Payment Dates
Dividends are usually paid on the Ordinary shares as
follows

Intenm January

Final August

Dividend Payments

Diidends can be paid to shareholders by means of BACS
(Bankers” Automated Clearing Services), mandate forms
for this purpose are available from the Regstrar
Alternatively, shareholders can wnte to the Registrar (the
address is given on page 79 of this report) to give their
instructions, these must include the bank account number,
the bank account titie and the sort code of the bank to
which payments are to be made

Dividend Re-investment Plan (“"DRIP")

TR Property Investrment Trust ple now offers shareholders
the opportunity to purchase further shares in the company
through the DRIP DRIP forms may be obtained from
Computershare Investor Senaces PLC through ther

secure website www investorcentre co uk, or by phoning
0870 707 1694 Charges do apply, dealng commission
of 0 5% (subject to a minimum of £1 00) Government
stamp duty of 0 5% also applies

Share Price Listings

The market pnces of the Company's shares are published
daily in The Financial Times Some of the infermation 15
published in other leading newspapers The Financial
Times also shows figures for the estimated Net Asset
Values and the discounts applicable

Share Price Information
ISIN GB0O009064097
SEDOL 0906409
Bloomberg TRYLN

Reuters TRY L

Datastrearn TRY
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Benchmark

Details of the benchmark 1s given in the Strategic Report

on page 23 of this Report and Accounts The benchmark
index 1s published darly and can be found on Bloomberg,

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net Total
Return index in Sterling
Bloomberg TRORAG Index

Internet

Detalls of the market pnce and Net Asset Value of the
Ordinary shares can be found on the Company's website
at www triproperty com

Shareholders who hald their shares in certificated form
can check therr heldings with the Registrar, Computershare
Investor Services PLC, via www computershare com

Please note that to gain access to your details on the
Computershare site you will need the holder reference
number stated on the top left hand cormer of your share
certificate

Disability Act

Copies of this Report and Accounts and other documents
issued by the Company are available from the Company
Secretary If needed, copies can be made available in a
vanety of formats, including Braille, audio tape or larger
type as appropnate

You can contact the Registrar, Computershare investor
Services PLC, which has installed textphones to allow
speech and hearnng impaired people who have ther own
textphone to contact them directly, without the need for
an intermediate operator, by dialing 0870 702 0005
Specially trained operators are available durng normal
business hours to answer quenes via this service

Alternatively, if you prefer to go through a ‘typetalk’
operator (provided by the Royal National Institute for Deaf
People) you should dial 18001 followed by the number
you wish to dial
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General Shareholder Information connved

Nominee Share Code

Where notification has been provided in advance, the
Company will arrange for copies of shareholder
communications to be provided to the operators of
nominee accounts Nominee investors may attend general
meetings and speak at meetings when invited to do so by
the Chairman

CGT Base Cost

Taxation of capital gains for shareholders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Upon a disposal of ali or part of a shareholder's holding
of Ordinary shares, the impact on the shareholder's capital
gains tax base cost of the conversion to Sigma shares in
2007 and the redesignation to Ordinary shares in 2012
should be considered

In respect of the conversion to Sigma in 2007, agreement
was reached with HM Revenue & Customs ("HMRC") to
base the apportionment of the capital gains tax base cost
on the proportion of Ordinary shares that were converted
by a shareholder into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007

Therefore, if an Ordinary sharehelder converted 20% of
ther existing Ordinary shares into Sigma shares on 25 July
2007, the capttal gains tax base cost of the new Sigma
shares acquired would be equal to 20% of the onginal
capttal gains tax base cost of the Ordinary shares that they
held pre-conversion The base cost of their remaining
holding of Ordinary shares would then be 80% of the
ongnal capital gains tax base cost of their Ordinary shares
held pre-conversion

As part of the re-designation of the Sigma shares into
Ordinary shares in December 2012, a further agreement
was reached with HMRC that a shareholders capital gains
tax base cost in their new Ordinary shares should be
equivalent to their capital gains base cost 1n the pre-
existing Stigma shares (1€ ther capital gans base cost
under the existing agreement If applicable)

If in doubt as to the consequences of this agreement
with HMRC, shareholders should consult with their own
professional advisors
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Market Purchases

The shares of TR Propenty Investment Trust pic are hsted
and traded on the London Stock Exchange Investors may
purchase shares through therr stockbroker, bank or other
financial intermediary

Holding shares in Certificated Form

Investors may hold their nvestment in certficated form
Qur registrars, Computershare operate a dealing service
which enables investors to buy and sell shares quickly
and eastly anline without a broker or the need to open

a trading account Alternatively the Investor Centre allows
nvestors to manage portfolios quickly and securely,
update details and view balances without annual charges
Further details are available by contacting Computershare
on 0870 702 0000 or vist www computershare com

TR Property Investment Trust plc now offers shareholders
the opportunity to purchase further shares in the
company through the Dividend Re-investment Plan
("DRIP") through the registrar, Computershare
Shareholders can obtain further information on the DRIP
through their secure website www investorcentre co uk,
or by phoning 0870 707 1694 Charges do apply Please
note that to gain access to your detatls or register for the
DRIP on the Computershare site you will need the holder
reference number stated on the top left hand cormer of
your share certificate

Saving Schemes, I1SAs and other plans

A number of banks and wealth management organisations
provide Savings Schemes and I1SAs through which UK
chents can invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc

ISA and savings scheme prowviders do charge dealing and
other fees for operating the accounts, and investors
should read the Terms and Conditions prowided by these
companies and ensure that the charges best suit therr
planned investment profile Most schemes carry annual
charges but these vary between prowider and product
Where dealing charges apply, in some cases these are
applied as a percentage of funds invested and others as a
flat charge The optimum way to hold the shares will be
different for each investor depending upon the frequency
and size of nvestments to be made

Details are given below of two providers offenng shares
in TR Property Investment Trust, but there are many
other options
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Allrance Trust Savings

Alhance Trust provide and adrminister a range of self- select
investment plans, including tax-advantaged I1SAs and SIPPs
(Self-Invested Pension Plans) and also investment Plans
and First Steps, an Investment Plan for Children For more
information Alliance Trust can be contacted on 01382 573

737 or visit www alliancetrust.co.uk

Investors in TR Property through the ATS investment Plan
and ISA recewve all shareholder communications A voting
mnstruction form 1s provided to faciltate voting at general
meetings of the Company

F&C Asset Management Limited (“F&C")

F&C offer a number of Private Investor Plans, Investment
Trust and Junior 15As and Chiidren’s Investment Plans
Investrments can be made as lump sums or through
regular savings For more information see inside the back
cover F&C can be contacted on 0800 136 420, or visit
www fandc com

Please remember that the value of your investments and
any income from them may go down as well as up Past
performance is not a guide to future performance You
may not get back the amount that you invest if you are
mn any doubt as to the suitability of a plan or any
investrment avarlable within a plan, please take
professional advice

Saving Schemes and 15As transferred from

BNP Parnbas

In 2012 BNP Panbas informed us that they were closing
down the part of their business which operated Savings
Schemes and I1SAs Investors were given the choice of
transfernng their schemes to Alliance Trust Savings ("ATS")
or a provider of their own chaice or to close their
accounts and sell the holdings

For investars who elected to transfer their plans to ATS,
any questions regarding their account should be directed
to ATS on 01382 573 737
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc contnued

Iy 2012 BNP Panbas dosed down the part of therr business
that operated Savings Schemes and ISAs [nvestors were
given the choice of transferring their schemes to Alhance
Trust Savings ("ATS"} or to a prowider of therr own choice,

or to close their accounts and selt the holdings

if investors did not respond to the letters from BNP
Paribas, their accounts were transferred to ATS

Any questions regarding accounts transferred to ATS
should be directed to ATS on 01382 573 737

Share Fraud and boiler room scams

Shareholders in a number of Investment Trusts have been
approached as part of a share fraud where they are
informed of an opportunity to sell their shares as the
company 1s subject to a takeover bid This 1s not true and
1s an attempt to defraud shareholders The share fraud
also seeks payment of a “commussion” by shareholders to
the parties carrying out the fraud

Shareholders should remamn alert to this type of scam and
treat with suspicion any contact by telephone offering an
attractive investment apportunity, such as a presmium
price for your shares, or an attempt to convince you that
payment 1s required In order to release a settlement for
your shares These frauds may also offer to sell your
shares in companes which have Iittle or no value or may
offer you bonus shares These so called "boiler room”
scams can also nvolve an attempt to obtain your
personal and/or banking information with which to
commit identity fraud

The caller may be fnendly and reassunng or they may
take a more urgent tone, encouraging you to act quickly
otherwise you could lose money or miss out on a deal

If you have been contacted by an unauthonsed firm
regarding your shares the FCA would like to hear from
you You can report an unauthonsed firm using the FCA
helphne on 0800 111 6768 or by wisiting their website,
which also has other useful information, at www fca org uk

If you receive any unsohcited investment advice make
sure you get the correct name of the person and
orgamsation If the calls persist, hang up If you deal with
an unauthorised firm, you will not be ehgible to recewe
payment under the Financial Services Compensation
Scheme

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager
would never make unsolicited telephone calls of

such a nature to shareholders
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How to Invest

One of the most convenient ways to invest 1n TR Property Investment Trust plc ss through one of the savings plans run

by F&C Management Limited ('F&C")

{ F&C Private Investor lsranriPiP)
¢ Aflexible way to invest with a lump sum from

£500-orregularsavings*from*£50-a"month=You=-

« can also make additional lump sum top-ups at
any tme from £250

F&C Investment Trust ISA.

Use your ISA allowance to make an annual tax-
efficent 1nvestrment of up to £15,240 for
2015/16 tax year with a lump sum from £500
or regular savings from £50 a month You can
also rake additional lump sum top-ups at any
time from £250 and transfer any existing I1SAs
to us whilst maintaining all the tax benefits

F&C Child Trust Fund {CTF)

CTFs are cdosed to new mvestors, however, 1f your
child has a CTF with another prowder, it 1s easy to
transfer it to F&C. From 6 Apnl, the Registered
Contact on a CTF will be able to transfer a CTF to
a Junior I15A. Addional contnbutions can be made
to the shares account version of the CTF from as
Ittle as £25 per month or £100 lump sum — up
to a maximum of £4,080 for 2015/16 tax year

F&C Children’s Investment Plan {CiP)
A flexible way to save for a child With no
maximum contnbutions, the plan can easily be set
up under bare trust (where the child 1s noted as

" the benefical owner) to help reduce inhentance
tax hability or kept in your name f you wish to
retain control over the mnvestment. Investments
can be made from a £250 lump sum or £25 a
month You can also make additional lump sum
top-ups at any time from £100

F&C Junior 15A (JISA)

This is a tax-efficent savings plan for children
who did not qualify for a CTF It allows you to
invest up to £4,000 or £4,080 for 2015/16 tax
year with all the tax benefits of the CTF You can
invest from £30 a month, or £500 lump sum,
or a combination of both From & Apnl, CTF
holders will be able to transfer a CTF to a JISA

BMO e ! A part of BMO Finanadl Group

Potential investors are reminded that the value of investments and the
income from them may go down as well as up and you may not recewe
back the full amount onginally invested Tax rates and reliefs depend on
the circumstances of the indvidual The CTF and JISA accounts are
opened in the child's name Money cannot be withdrawn until the child
turns 18

Annual management charges and certain transaction costs apply
according to the type of plan

Annual account charge

ISA: £60+VAT

PIP: E40+VAT

JISA/CIP/CTF £25+VAT

You can pay the annual charge from your account, or by direct debit
(in addition to any annual subscnption hmits)

Dealing charge per holding
ISA: 0 2%
PIP/CIP/JISA postal instructions £12, online instruction £8

The dealing charge applies when shares are bought or sold but the fixed
rate charge does not apply to the reinvestment of dmdends for the PIP/
CiP/JISA or the investment of regular monthly savings

There 1s no dealing charge on a CTF but & switching charge of £25
apphes if more than 2 switches are carned out in one year

Govemnment stamp duty of O 5% also applies on purchases (where applicable)

There may be additional charges made if you transfer a plan to another
provider or transfer the shares from your plan For full details of charges,
please read the Key Features and Terms and Conditions of the plan before
investing

How to Invest
You can invest In all our savings plans online

New Customers

Contact our Investor Services Team

Call 0800 136 420 (8 30am — 5 30pm, weekdays, calls
may be recorded)

info@fandc.com

www . fandc.com/apply

Email
investing online

Existing Plan Holders

Contact our Investor Services Team

Call 0845 600 3030 (*9 00am — 5 00pm, weekdays, calls
may be recorded)

investor.enquiries@fandc.com

F&C Plan Admimistration Cenire

PO Box 11114, Chelmsford CMS99 20G

Email
By post

FiC

CLIENTS

l FIRST '

F&C Management Limited 15 authorised and regulated by the Finanaal Conduct Authorty FRN 119230 and 1s @ member
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B4 TR Praperty Invessment Trust
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